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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

Xl ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO

Commission File Number: 001-34354

Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Luxembourg 98-0554932
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No

40, avenue Monterey
L-2163 Luxembourg
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg
(352) 24 69 79 00
(Address and telephone number, including area afdegistrant’s principal executive offices)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(bheRct:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registert
Common Stock, $1.00 par val NASDAQ Global Select Marke
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefct:
None

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a vkelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40506 éturities Act. Yex] No[O
Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is notiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act. YeEl No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant &E)filed all reports required to be filed by Seetd® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiach shorter period that the Registrant was redudadile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastia@s. Yedsx] No[

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant basnétted electronically and posted on its corpokebsite, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted @untsio Rule 405 of Regulations S-T (§232.405 of thiapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regiigtwas required to submit and post such filegsB No[O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (828% of this chapter) is not contained
herein and will not be contained, to the best efRegistrant’s knowledge, in the definitive proxyirformation statements incorporated by
reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any amerent to this Form 10-KXI

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantl&s@ge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting

company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirmpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated file Accelerated filel

Non-accelerated file O (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar O
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsbedl company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Adt¢sd No
The aggregate market value of the voting stock hgldonaffiliates of the registrant as of JuneZm,3 was $1,602,571,543 based on



closing share price as quoted on the NASDAQ Gldkedket on that day and the assumption that alkcttirs and executive officers of the
Company, and their families, are affiliates. Téétermination of affiliate status is not necesgaitonclusive determination for any other
purpose.

As of January 31, 2014, there were 22,628,618 andantg shares of the Registrant’s shares of baakiinterest (excluding 2,784,130
shares held as treasury stock).

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statnt to be filed subsequent to the date hereof tv@tSecurities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A in connectiith the registrant’s Annual Meeting of Stockhaksléo be held on May 21, 2014 are
incorporated by reference into Part IIl of this Bep Such Definitive Proxy Statement will be filadth the Securities and Exchange
Commission not later than 120 days after the cammtuof the registrant’s fiscal year ended Decendie2013.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and certain infotima incorporated herein by reference contain forddooking statements within the safe
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigat Reform Act of 1995. These statements may redatanong other things, future events or
our future performance or financial condition. Wersuch as “anticipate,” “intend,” “expect,” “may,”“could,” “should,” “would,” “plan,”
“estimate,” “believe,” “predict,” “potential,” or “ continue” or the negative of these terms and comparable teriogy are intended to ident
such forward-looking statements. Forward-lookitatesments are not guarantees of future performamzkinvolve a number of assumptions,
risks and uncertainties that could cause actualtsgo differ materially. Important factors thabvweld cause actual results to differ materially
from those suggested by the forw-looking statements include, but are not limitecthe risks discussed in Item 1A of Part | “Rislcteas.”

We caution you not to place undue reliance on th@searddooking statements which reflect our view only ithe date of this report. We ¢
under no obligation (and expressly disclaim anyigdtion) to update or alter any forward-looking t&ements contained herein to reflect any
change in our expectations with regard thereto lnsirege in events, conditions or circumstances omlwvany such statement is based.

PART |

Except as otherwise indicated or unless the comezdires otherwise*Altisource,” “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” refer to Altisourc
Portfolio Solutions S.A., a Luxembourg société gnua or public limited company, and its wh-owned subsidiaries.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
The Company
Altisource® , together with its subsidiaries, isrampier marketplace and transaction solutions penidr the real estate, mortgage and
consumer debt industries offering both distributiod content. We leverage proprietary businessegsmyxendor and electronic payment
management software and behavioral science baségias to improve outcomes for marketplace pgrtais.
We are publicly traded on the NASDAQ Global SelMatrket under the symbol “ASPS.” We are incorpatatader the laws of Luxembourg.
On August 10, 2009, we became a stand-alone podfigpany in connection with our separation from QeWwaancial Corporation (“Ocwen”)
(the “Separation from Ocwen”). Prior to our Sepiarafrom Ocwerf , our businesses were wholly-owsigsidiaries of Ocwen.
2013 Highlights
Our 2013 highlights include:

* Recognized revenue of $768.4 million, a 35% inczeasnpared to the year ended December 31, 2012;

* Recognized service revenue of $662.1 million, a 428ease compared to the year ended Decembe032; 2

*  Recognized diluted earnings per share of $5.19% ihcrease compared to the year ended Decemb2032,;

»  Generated cash flows from operations of $185.5anilla 59% increase compared to the year endedniirre31, 2012;

»  The average number of loans serviced by Ocwen okLBErvicing totaled 1.2 million, a 57% increase gared to the year ended
December 31, 2012;

e« On November 15, 2013, we acquired Equator, LLC (f&qr”), a national leader in mortgage and reatestelated business process
management solutions, for an initial purchase pofcg63.4 million plus
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contingent earn-out consideration of up to an @oftil $80 million over three years, subject to Bquachieving annual performance
targets;

On March 29, 2013, we completed the acquisitiothefHomeward Residential, Inc. (‘Homeward”) feesed businesses from Ocv
for an aggregate purchase price of $75.8 million;

On April 12, 2013, we completed the Residentiali@hp LC (“ResCap”) feebased business transaction with Ocwen for an agtg
purchase price of $128.8 million;

+ On May 7, 2013, we increased borrowings under enits secured term loan agreement to $400 milliGrurthermore, on
December 9, 2013, we refinanced the senior se¢aradloan which included, among other changes, limgehe interest rate of the
term loans and

We repurchased 1.2 million shares of our commockstmder our stock repurchase program during tle geded December 31,
2013 at an average price of $116.99 per share.

Reportable Segments
We classify our businesses into the following thmeyaortable segments:

Mortgage Service: Provides services that span the mortgage anastate lifecycle and are typically outsourceddanl servicers, originators
and investors in single family homes. We provitese services primarily for loan portfolios serdidly Ocwen. We also have longstanding
relationships with some of the leading capital netsKirms, commercial banks, hedge funds, insuranogpanies and mortgage bankers.
Within the Mortgage Services segment, we provieéeftiowing services:

Asset management Asset management services principally includeerty preservation, property inspection, real estatned
(“REQ”) asset management, our consumer real egtatal - Hubzu® and REO brokerage services. We also provide prppeshagemen
lease management and renovation management sefimicgsgle family rental properties.

Insurance services- Insurance services include an array of title iaaae services, including pre-foreclosure and Ri©dearches,
titte commitments, settlement and escrow servioeksaher title insurance services including titlsirance for loan originations. We also
provide insurance program management and insuiegerecy and brokerage services applicable to lerahetsesidential loan servicers.

Residential property valuatior- Residential property valuation services prindipaiclude traditional appraisal products througir o
licensed appraisal management company and alteenadiuation products primarily through our netwofkeal estate professionals. We
generally provide these services for loan servijderglers and investors in single family homes.

Default management services Default management services principally includiee€losure trustee services for loan servicers and
non-legal processing and related services for aulgiuthe supervision of foreclosure, bankruptcy evidtion attorneys.

Origination management services Origination management services principally ideMortgage Partnership of America, L.L.C.
(“MPA”") and our contract underwriting and qualitgrdrol businesses. MPA serves as the manager offBeters Mortgage
Cooperative, Inc. (“BPMC"), which is referred tothe Lenders One Mortgage Cooperative (“Lenders’Daenational alliance of
independent mortgage bankers that provides its rassnhith education and training along with reveanbkancing, cost reducing and
market share expanding opportunities. We provitieroorigination related services in the residemiaperty valuation business. In
addition, some of the origination related resdbasinesses, including the flood certification besi are included in the Technology
Services REALSuite business.
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Financial Service: Provides collection and customer relationship agament services primarily to debt originators sexicers (e.g., credit
card, auto lending, retail credit and mortgage) uedutility and insurance industries. Within thadhcial Services segment, we provide the
following services:

Asset recovery managementAsset recovery management principally includestqobarge-off debt collection services on a
contingency fee basis.

Customer relationship managementCustomer relationship management principallyudels customer care and early stage
collections services as well as insurance and slairacessing, call center services and analytiggbart.

Technology ServicesComprises our REALSuite of software applicatidguator’s software applications and our informatiechnology
(“IT") infrastructure services. We currently proe our IT infrastructure services to Ocwen andiitissidiaries, Home Loan Servicing
Solutions, Ltd. (“HLSS"), Altisource Residential fporation (“Residential”), Altisource Asset Managam Company (“AAMC”)and our othe
segments. The REALSuite platform provides a finitggrated set of software applications and teabgiebk that manage the end-to-end
lifecycle for residential and commercial mortgagan servicing including the automated managemeahpayment of a distributed network of
vendors. A brief description of the key REALSwed Equator’s software products is below:

REALServicing@ — An enterprise residential mortgage loan sergiginoduct that offers an efficient and effectivatfirm for loan
servicing including default administration. Thish@ology solution features automated workflows eottlist reporting capabilities. The
solution spans the loan servicing lifecycle frorardioarding to satisfaction including all colleatp payment processing and reporting.
We also offer the REALSynerdy enterprise commeloin servicing system.

REALTrans® — A patented electronic businesskosiness exchange that automates and simplifiesréfeging, tracking and fulfillin
of vendor provided services principally relatedrtortgages. This technology solution, whether wabeld or integrated into a servicing
system, connects multiple service providers throaigingle platform and forms an efficient methodrf@anaging a large scale network of
vendors.

REALRemif — A patented electronic invoicing and paymenteysthat provides vendors with the ability to subimitices
electronically for payment and to have invoice pawis deposited directly to their respective bardoants.

REALDoc® — A correspondence management platform that extrsitiees and generates correspondence and is capatiegrating
with commercially available servicing, originatiand process management applications.

Equator’s Solutions— The EQ Workstatiof , EQ Marketplate , EQ Midsefrcand EQ Portal™ platforms can be used a la cart
or together as an end-to-end solution. EQ Workstatrovides comprehensive, end-to-end workflow ttadsaction services to manage
real estate related activities. EQ Marketplaceviges a coordinated means of purchasing a varfetgab estate services from vendors
including realtors, title, closing, inspection araluation. EQ Midsource allows users of EQ Wortistato outsource all or specific
components of real estate related activities. B@aPprovides realtors direct access to processergate transactions with secure
exchange of data and documents along with realtoketing, training and certification.
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Corporate Items and Eliminationsncludes costs related to corporate support fanstincluding executive, finance, legal, humarougses,
vendor management, risk and operational effectiseaad also includes eliminations of transacti@ta/éen the reporting segments. Corp¢
Items and Eliminations also include the cost ofiitées until approximately 40% of the facilitieseaoccupied by the business units, at which
time costs are allocated to the business units.

We classify revenue in three categories: sendggemue, revenue from reimbursable expenses andordrslling interests. In evaluating our
performance, we focus on service revenue. Sereigenue consists of amounts attributable to oubfesed services. Reimbursable expenses
and non-controlling interests are pass-throughsteanwhich we earn no margin. Reimbursable exggrsnsist of amounts we incur on
behalf of our customers in performing our fee-basmdices, but we pass such costs directly on teastomers without any additional
markup. Non-controlling interests represent thmiegs of Lenders One, a consolidated entity nat@by Altisource, and are included in
revenue and reduced from net income to arrive tainoceme attributable to Altisource.

Separation of the Residential Asset Businesses

On December 21, 2012, we completed the spin-offe/ofwholly-owned subsidiaries, Residential and ABMnto separate publicly traded
companies (the “Separation of the Residential ABssinesses”). Residentialcommon stock is listed on the New York Stock Exaye unde
the symbol “RESI,” and AAMC’s common stock is lidten the New York Stock Exchange’s NYSE MKT under symbol “AAMC.” We
distributed all of the shares of Residential comrstmtk and AAMC common stock to our shareholdeneobrd as of December 17, 2012.
Residential is focused on acquiring and managinglsifamily rental properties by acquiring portéaiof sub-performing and non-performing
residential mortgage loans throughout the UnitedeSt AAMC provides asset management and ceraporate governance services to
Residential. Residential and AAMC are further diggd in Item 7 of Part Il, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition
and Results of Operations.

Customers

We provide services to some of the most respectgghizations in their industries, including onefu United States’ largest sub-prime
servicers, a government-sponsored enterprise (“®S$iElity companies, commercial banks, servicargestors, mortgage bankers and
financial service companies across the United State

Our three largest customers in 2013 accountedd@®s @f our total revenue. Our largest customer, @cwecounted for 65% of our total
revenue in 2013. From January 1 through SepteB®e2013, Ocwen'’s residential loan servicing pdidfgrew from $203.7 billion in unpaid
principal balance (“UPB”) to $434.8 billion. Ocwenpositioned as the fourth largest mortgage senin the United States. We believe
Ocwen’s highly scalable platform and low cost ofiagastructure positions it to be very competitasadditional mortgage servicing portfolios
become available.

Related party revenue primarily consists of revesarmmed directly from Ocwen and its subsidiariesd mvenue earned from the loans servicec
by Ocwen and its subsidiaries when Ocwen designstas the service provider. We earn additionameae on the portfolios serviced by
Ocwen and its subsidiaries that are not considesiated party revenue when a party other than Oseéacts Altisource as the service
provider. Related party revenue as a percentagegwhent and consolidated revenue was as followthéoyears ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011
Mortgage Service 71% 68% 72%
Financial Service 30% <1% <1%
Technology Service 49% 42% 39%
Consolidated revent 65% 60% 58%
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We record revenue we earn from Ocwen and its siavid under various longrm servicing contracts at rates we believe tmmbeket rates ¢
they are consistent with one or more of the follogvithe fees we charge to other customers for coatbpmservices; the fees Ocwen pays to
other service providers; and fees charged by ompetitors.

Our services are provided to customers primaritated in the United States. Financial informafmmour segments can be found in Note 22
to our consolidated financial statements.

Sales and Marketing

We have experienced sales personnel and relatipnsdmagers with subject matter expertise. Thedigittuals maintain relationships
throughout the industry sectors we serve and payn@ortant role in generating new client leadsvali as identifying opportunities to expand
our services with existing clients. Additional dsaare also generated through requests for proposatsses from key industry participants.
Our sales team works collaboratively and is comatasprincipally with a base salary and commis§iorsales generated.

Our primary sales and marketing focus is suppottieggrowth of Ocwen and its subsidiaries, expapdatationships with MPA’'s members
and Equator customers and targeting new customatsould have a material positive impact on osults of operations. Given the highly
concentrated nature of the industries we servejrieand effort spent in expanding relationships/imning new relationships is significant.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of contractual restrictipimternal security practices, patents, trademadsyrights, trade secrets and other
intellectual property to establish and protect saftware, technology and expertise. We also owa®necessary and appropriate, have
obtained licenses from third parties to intelleCpraperty relating to our services, processeskarginess. These intellectual property rights ar
important factors in the success of our businesses.

As of December 31, 2013, we have been awarded ateatthat expires in 2023, three patents thatrexpi2024, six patents that expire in
2025, one patent that expires in 2027 and one pHitenexpires in 2030. In addition, we have reged trademarks, or recently filed
applications for registration of trademarks, inuamer of countries or groups of countries including United States, the European
Community, India and in eight other countries arugs of countries. These trademarks generallybeaenewed indefinitely, provided they
are being used.

We actively protect our rights and intend to coméirour policy of taking all measures we deem reaislenand necessary to develop and prote
our patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade seargtother intellectual property rights.

Industry and Competition

The industry verticals in which we engage are higldmpetitive and generally consist of a few natlorendors as well as a large number of
regional, local and in-house providers resulting fnagmented market with disparate service offgrinFrom an overall perspective, we
compete with global business process outsourcingsfi Our Mortgage Services segment competes aiibmal and regional third party
service providers and ineuse servicing operations of large mortgage lended servicers. Our Financial Services segmenpetas with othe
large receivables management companies as wellragraented group of smaller companies and lawdfifocused on collections. Our
Technology Services segment competes with datepsaoty and software development companies anduseh@chnology and software
operations of other loan servicers.

Given the diverse nature of services we and oumpatitors offer, we cannot determine our positiothi@ market with certainty, but we believe
we represent only a small portion of very largeedimarkets. Given our size, some of our competiteay offer more diversified services,
operate in broader geographic markets or havegréaancial resources than we do. In additiomeof our larger customers retain multiple
providers and continuously evaluate our performagzgnst our competitors.
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Competitive factors in our Mortgage Services businaclude the compliance, quality and timelineflssup services, the size and competence
of our network of vendors and the breadth of theises we offer. For Financial Services, competitictors include the ability to achieve a
collection rate comparable to our competitors;abmpliance, quality and personal nature of theiserthe consistency and professionalism o
the service; and the recruitment, training andrétention of our workforce. Competitive factorsour Technology Services business include
the quality of the technology-based applicationsewices; application features and functions; e&skelivery and integration; our ability to
maintain, enhance and support the applicationgmices; our ability to recruit and retain softwarel other technical employees; and the cos
of obtaining, maintaining and enforcing our patents

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we had the following nundfemployees:

United Consolidated
States India Philippines Luxembourg Altisource
Mortgage Service 34¢€ 2,532 204 6 3,08¢
Financial Service 92C 1,76¢ 30 2 2,72(
Technology Service 45¢ 901 8 1 1,36¢
Corporate 10¢ 443 9 10 571
Total empk)yee 1,83: 5,64‘ 251 19 7,74-1

We have not experienced any work stoppages, antbngder our relations with employees to be godt: believe our future success will
depend, in part, on our ability to continue toaadtr hire and retain skilled and experienced persbn

Seasonality

Our revenues are seasonal. More specifically, EiadServicesasset recovery revenue tends to be higher in begfiarter, as borrowers m
utilize tax refunds and bonuses to pay debts, aneémglly declines throughout the rest of the y@ddortgage Services revenue is impacted by
REO sales and lawn maintenance, which tend to tieetlowest levels during fall and winter montred highest during spring and summer
months.

Government Regulation

Our businesses are subject to extensive laws gutatens by federal, state and local governmeamgtiorities including the Federal Trade
Commission (“FTC"), the Consumer Financial PrometBureau (“CFPB”), the Securities and Exchange @a@sion (“SEC”) and the state
agencies that license our mortgage-related sergicgollection entities. We also must comply veithumber of federal, state and local
consumer protection laws including, among othérs Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Fair Debt Collecti®ractices Act, the Real Estate
Settlement Procedures Act (“RESPA”), the Truth enting Act (“TILA"), the Fair Credit Reporting Acthe Telephone Consumer Protection
Act, the Homeowners Protection Act, the CaliforHiameowner’s Bill of Rights and the Secure and Eaiforcement for Mortgage Licensing
(“SAFE”") Act. These requirements can and do chagstatutes and regulations are enacted, promdigatamended. One such enacted
regulation is the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform @whsumer Protection Act (“Dodd-Frank Act”). Theddl-Frank Act is extensive and
includes reform of the regulation and supervisibfimancial institutions, as well as the regulatiminderivatives, capital market activities and
consumer financial services. The Dodd-Frank Attoag other things, created the CFPB, a federalyer@sponsible for regulating consumer
financial services and products. Title XIV of thedd-Frank Act contains the Mortgage Reform and-Rnédatory Lending Act (“Mortgage
Act”). The Mortgage Act imposes a number of additil requirements on lenders and servicers ofeatiml mortgage loans by amending and
expanding certain existing regulations. In sonsesapenalties for noncompliance are significainttyeased and could lead to settlements or
consent orders affecting us or our customers tlagt cartail or restrict the business as it is cutyeconducted.
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We are subject to certain federal, state and lomasumer protection provisions. We are also sulijelitensing and regulation as a mortgage
service provider and/or debt collector in a numifestates. We are subject to audits and examirgtloat are conducted by the states. Our
employees may be required to be licensed by vastate commissions for the particular type of sendelivered and to participate in regular
continuing education programs. From time to time,receive requests from state and other agendiesdords, documents and information
regarding our policies, procedures and practicgarding our mortgage services and debt collectiginess activities. We are also subject to
the requirements of the Foreign Corrupt Practiceis(ACPA”) and comparable foreign laws, due to adaitivities in foreign jurisdictions.

Available Information

We file Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Rep@n Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K aheioinformation with the SEC.
These filings are available to the public overltiternet at the SEC’s websitelatp://www.sec.gov You may also read and copy any
document we file at the SEC’s public reference rdocated at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 2032lease call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330 for further information on the public referemoom.

Our principal Internet addressvisvw.altisource.corand we encourage investors to use it as a waysif/dading information about us. We
promptly make the reports we file or furnish witle tSEC, corporate governance information (includingCode of Business Conduct and
Ethics), select press releases and other relafedration available on this website. The contaftsur website are available for informational
purposes only and shall not be deemed incorpotatedference in this report.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors and other informatiorcinded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K shoulccheefully considered. The risks and
uncertainties described below are not the only ereeface. Additional risks and uncertainties nasently known to us or that we presently
deem less significant may also impair our busimgssations. If any of the following risks actuatlgcur, our business, operating results and
financial condition could be materially adversetffeated.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
Our continuing relationship with Ocwen may inhibitr ability to obtain and retain other customeratticompete with Ocwen.

As of December 31, 2013, our Chairman owns or otsinore than 13% of Ocwen’s common stock and 26&upcommon stock. We
derived 65% of our 2013 revenue from Ocwen andutssidiaries. Given this close and continuingti@teship with Ocwen, we may encounter
difficulties in obtaining and retaining other cusiters who compete with Ocwen. Should these and ptitential customers view Altisource as
part of Ocwen or as too closely related to or ddpahupon Ocwen, they may be unwilling to utilizae services, and our growth could be
inhibited as a result.

We are dependent on a certain key customer relstiipn the loss of which or reduction in the sizevbich could affect our business and res
of operations.

We currently generate approximately 65% of our nesefrom Ocwen and its subsidiaries. Ocwen isrestially obligated to purchase cert
services from our Mortgage Services, Financial 8es/and Technology Services segments under sagieements that extend through
August 2025 subject to termination under certaovisions. The loss of Ocwen as a customer or fagure to pay us would significantly
reduce our revenue and adversely affect our resfiliperations. Further, Ocwen has grown sigaifity in recent years through acquisitions
of mortgage servicing rights and acquisitions ahpanies with mortgage servicing rights and mortgarggination platforms. As a result of
Ocwen’s growth, we have grown. If Ocwen does mottinue to acquire mortgage
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servicing rights or does not grow its mortgage ioatjon business, our business and results of tipasacould be negatively impacted.

Significant regulatory scrutiny of foreclosure giaes of the servicing industry has resulted itlsgients between banks and servicers and
government entities, on-going monitoring of bankd aervicers by regulatory authorities, investigagi of banks and servicers and private
lawsuits. If Ocwen were to be negatively impadted significant way by this regulatory scrutinyasher actions, Altisource’s business and
results of operations could be negatively impacted.

We have key customer relationships, other than @¢cthe loss of which could affect our businessrasdlts of operations.

While no individual client, other than Ocwen, reggets more than 10% of our consolidated revenuarevexposed to customer concentrat
Most of our customers are not contractually obgatb continue to use our services at historicadlfeor at all. The loss of any of these key
customers or their failure to pay us could reduserevenue and adversely affect results of operatio

The strength of the economy and the housing masgkeaffect demand for our services.

The performance and growth of our origination ssggibusiness is dependent on the volume of logmations by third parties. In the event
an economic slowdown, increase in interest rateggrother factor that would likely lead to a dem®in the level of origination transactions,
including refinancing transactions, our originatgervices growth prospects could be adversely @ffie€urther, in the event that adverse
economic conditions or other factors lead to aidedh levels of home ownership and a reductiothewaggregate number of United States
mortgage loans outstanding, our revenues from aftware applications could be adversely affected.

Our business is subject to substantial competition.

The markets for our services are very competiti@er competitors vary in size and in the scopelaeddth of the services they offer. We
compete for existing and new customers against thatth parties and the in-house capabilities of @ustomers. Some of our competitors have
substantial resources and some have widely usbddkagy platforms which they seek to use as a coithgeadvantage to drive sales of other
products and services. In addition, we expectrihekets in which we compete will continue to attra&w competitors and new technologies.
These new technologies may render our existingi@olyies obsolete, resulting in operating inefficies and increased competitive pressure
There can be no assurance we will be able to camqueicessfully against current or future competitorthat competitive pressures we face ir
the markets in which we operate will not materialtjversely affect our business, financial conditod results of operations.

Our intellectual property rights are valuable andyainability to protect them or challenges to oight to use them could reduce the value of
our services or increase our costs.

Our patents, trademarks, trade secrets, copyragtither intellectual property rights are imporassets. The efforts we have taken to pr
these proprietary rights may not be sufficientféeaive. The unauthorized use of our intellectoiaperty or significant impairment of our
intellectual property rights could harm our busBjesake it more expensive to do business or hurability to compete. Protecting our
intellectual property rights is costly and time soming.

Although we seek to obtain patent protection farionovations, it is possible we may not be ablpratect some of these innovations.
Changes in patent law, such as changes in thedgarding patentable subject matter, can also inqacability to obtain patent protection for
our innovations. In addition, given the costs bfaining patent protection, we may choose not tdgat certain innovations that later turn out
to be important. Furthermore, there is alwaysabssibility, despite our efforts, that the scopéhef protection gained will be insufficient or an
issued patent may be deemed invalid or unenforeeabl
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Further, as our technology solutions and serviesgldp, we may become increasingly subject torigiEment claims by others. Any claims,
whether with or without merit, could:

*  be expensive and time-consuming to defend;

e cause us to cease making, licensing or using téapynasolutions that incorporate the challengedlliettual property;
e require us to redesign our technology solutionfgakible;

« divert management’s attention and resources and/or

e require us to enter into royalty or licensing agneats in order to obtain the right to use necestsatynologies.

Technology failures or defects, development dedaysstallation difficulties could damage our busgs operations and increase our costs.

Disruptions, failures or defects in our technolagyelays in the development of, or installatiofficlilties with, our next generation technolc
may interrupt or delay our ability to provide sees to our customers. Any sustained and repe&nagpbtions in these services may have an
adverse impact on our and our customers’ resulpefations.

As part of our business and operation of our teldgyo we electronically receive, process, store madsmit confidential and sensitive busir
information of our customers. In addition, we collpersonal consumer data such as names and agkiressial security numbers, driver’s
license numbers and payment history records. Toiradransmission of this information over the inét is essential to maintaining consumer
confidence. Security breaches and acts of vandal@rtd result in a compromise or breach of therietdgy we use to protect our customers’
business and personal information and transactte @hd could result in the assessment of penailtiesuld otherwise cause interruptions in
our operations. Furthermore, Congress or indivigteties could enact new laws regulating electroommerce that could adversely affect us
and our results of operations.

We have a long sales cycle for many of our sendoestechnology solutions and if we fail to cloakes after expending significant time and
resources to do so, our business, financial cooditind results of operations may be adversely tifiec

We may experience a long sales cycle for developantpin services. We may expend significant timd resources in pursuing a particular
service or customer that does not generate revenue.

In addition, many of our services in the Technol&gyvices segment are based on sophisticated sefamd computing systems with long
sales cycles. We may encounter delays when denglogw technology solutions and services. We exgerience difficulties in installing or
integrating our technologies on platforms used tayaustomers. Further, defects in our technoladyt®ns, errors or delays in the processing
of electronic transactions or other difficultieutsbresult in interruption of business operatiateday in market acceptance, additional
development and remediation costs, loss of custgmeygative publicity or exposure to liability cte.

Delays due to the length of our sales cycle orsciosturred that do not result in sales could haneterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Our business is subject to extensive regulation,failure to comply with existing or new regulatiomay adversely impact us.

Our business is subject to extensive regulatiofetgral, state and local governmental authoritieiding the FTC, the CFPB, the SEC and
the state and local agencies that license or ogersgain of our mortgage related services, indgdisurance services, and collection servi
We also must comply with a number of federal, st local consumer protection laws including, aghothers, the Gramm-Leadiiley Act,
the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, RESPA, T]lthe Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Telephone Q@wner Protection Act, the Homeowners
Protection Act, the California Homeowner’s Bill Bfghts, the SAFE Act, the Mortgage Act and the FCHAAese requirements can and do
change as statutes and regulations are enactedylyated or amended.
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The ongoing economic uncertainty and troubled haueiarket have resulted in increased regulatomytisgr of all participants involved in the
mortgage industry. This scrutiny has included felland state governmental agency review of akketspof the mortgage lending and servi
industries, including an increased legislative egllatory focus on consumer protection practid@se such enacted regulation is the Dodd-
Frank Act (see further description in th&bvernment Regulatiorgection in Item 1 of Part 1Business”). In some cases, penalties for
noncompliance are significantly increased and ctedd to settlements or consent orders on us, rocugiomers, that may curtail or restrict out
business as it is currently conducted.

We are subject to certain additional federal, st local consumer protection regulations. We ate subject to licensing and regulation as
mortgage services provider, mortgage originatiotemwriter, valuation provider, appraisal managenecentpany, asset manager, property
manager, title insurance agency, other insuranagerkservices, agent and provider, real estateebiand/or debt collector in a number of
states. We are subject to audits and examinati@isate conducted by the states in which we dabasi Our employees and subsidiaries me
be required to be licensed by various state conomssor the particular type of service sold anghasticipate in regular continuing education
programs. From time to time, we receive requests fstate and other agencies for records, docuna@atinformation regarding our policies,
procedures and practices for our mortgage sergiedsiebt collection business activities. We irgignificant ongoing costs to comply with
governmental regulations.

As a result of increased federal and state govemtahscrutiny of the mortgage industry, legislatias been enacted to address the mortgage
market, with particular focus on loans that ardefault. In addition, national servicing standandse been implemented that, among other
things, require very specific loan modification dodeclosure procedures to be followed. This llegisn and these standards have further
reduced the number of loans entering the foreckopuwcess and have negatively impacted our defantices revenue and profit. It is unclear
when or if volumes will increase in the future.

The volume of new or modified laws and regulatibas increased in recent years and, in additionesodividual municipalities have begur
enact laws that restrict mortgage services aawitilf requlators impose new or more restricteguirements, we may incur significant
additional costs to comply with such requiremenitéciv could further adversely affect our result®pérations or financial condition. In
addition, our failure to comply with these laws ardulations can possibly lead to civil and crinhinbility, loss of licensure, damage to our
reputation in the industry, fines and penalties litightion, including class action lawsuits or admtrative enforcement actions. Any of these
outcomes could harm our results of operationsraritial condition.

If we fail to comply with privacy regulations imgakon providers of services to financial institato our business could be harm

As a provider of services to financial institutiopmge are bound by the same limitations on disclesifithe information we receive from their
customers that apply to the financial institutitimsmselves. If we fail to comply with these regiglas, we could be exposed to lawsuits or to
governmental proceedings, our customer relatiosstiia reputation could be harmed and we couldHibitad in our ability to obtain new
customers. In addition, the adoption of more retsite privacy laws or rules in the future on tleeléral or state level could have an adverse
impact on us by increasing our costs or requiringnges in our services.

Our customers are subject to government regulatiequiring our customers to, among other thingereee their vendors and maintain
documentation that demonstrates their oversigtgutfperformance does not meet our customers’ statsg our results of operations could be
adversely affected.

Our customers are subject to a variety of govertmegulations, including those promulgated by tid8. Certain regulations require our
customers to oversee their vendors and documemtrtteedures performed to demonstrate that oversijliisource, as a vendor, is subject to
oversight by our customers. If we do not meetstaedards established by our customers or if amgratversight procedures result in a
negative outcome for Altisource, we may lose cugtiegnor may no longer be granted referrals for oedervices, negatively impacting our
business and results of operations.
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We rely on third party vendors for many aspectsusfbusiness. If our vendor oversight processédfective or we face difficulties managing
our relationships with third party vendors, our véts of operations could be adversely affected.

We rely on third party vendors to provide goods sexvices in relation to many aspects of our opmrat Our dependence on these vendors
makes our operations vulnerable to such third @sirfailure to perform adequately under our corgradth them. In addition, where a vendor
provides services that we are required to provitden a contract with a client, we are responsibteséich performance and could be held
accountable by the client for any failure of pemfi@nce by our vendors. We evaluate the competemtgavency of our third party vendors.
Additionally, we perform ongoing vendor oversightigities to identify any performance or other issuelated to these vendors. If a vendor
fails to provide the services that we require quext, or fails to meet contractual requirementshsas service levels or compliance with
applicable laws, the failure could negatively impagr business by adversely affecting our abilitgé&rve our customers and/or subjecting
litigation and regulatory risk for ineffective vemdoversight. Such a failure could adversely dffee reliability and quality of the services we
provide our customers and could adversely affectesults of operations.

If financial institutions at which we hold escrowdatrust funds fail, it could have a material adseimpact on our compar

We hold customers’ assets in escrow and trust atsau various financial institutions, pending cdetipn of certain real estate activities. We
also hold cash in trust accounts at various firenastitutions where contractual obligations maedaaintaining dedicated bank accounts for
Financial Services collections. These amountdalein escrow and trust accounts for limited pasiof time and are not included in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. We swonte liable for funds owed to third parties assault of the failure of one or more of
these financial institutions, and there is no got@ we would recover the funds deposited, whettreugh Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation coverage, private insurance or otherwis

We may be subject to claims of legal violationsvarngful conduct which may cause us to pay unerpditigation costs or damages or mos
our products or processes.

From time to time, we may be subject to costly aime-consuming legal proceedings that claim legalations or wrongful conduct. These
lawsuits may involve clients, our clients’ custoserendors, competitors and/or other large grofipsaintiffs and, if resulting in findings of
violations, could result in substantial damageserhiatively, we may be forced to settle some cladntsof court and change existing company
practices, services and processes that are cyrrentnue generating. This could lead to unexpeatsts or a loss of revenue.

Our debt makes us more sensitive to the effe@sarfomic change; our level of debt and provisionsur debt agreements could limit our
ability to react to changes in the economy or awdustry.

Our debt makes us more vulnerable to changes inesults of operations because a portion of oun las/s from operations is dedicated to
servicing our debt and is not available for otherppses. Additionally, increases in interest ratdisnegatively impact our cash flows as the
interest on our debt is variable. The provisiohewr debt agreement could have other negativeezprences to us including the following:

« limiting our ability to borrow money for our workincapital, capital expenditure, debt service rezgqugnts or other general corporate
purposes;

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our operations, our businedseoindustry in which we compete and

» placing us at a competitive disadvantage by lirgithar ability to invest in the business.

Our ability to make payments on our indebtedneggnds on our ability to generate cash in the futlfreve do not generate sufficient cash
flows to meet our debt service and working capiguirements, we may need to seek additional fingnar sell assets. This may make it n
difficult for us to obtain financing on terms that acceptable to us, or at all. Without any dirdmcing, we could be forced to sell assets to
make up for any shortfall
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in our payment obligations under unfavorable cirstamces. If necessary, we may not be able tassdits quickly enough or for sufficient
amounts to enable us to meet our obligations.

In addition, our debt agreement contains covertaatslimit our flexibility in planning for or reairtg to changes in our business and our
industry including limitations on incurring additial indebtedness, making investments, granting léard merging or consolidating with other
companies. Complying with these covenants may iinqua ability to finance our future operationsaapital needs or to engage in other
favorable business activities.

Our failure to comply with the covenants contaimedur debt agreement, including as a result ofntsdeyond our control, could result in an
event of default which could materially and advirsdfect our operating results and our financiainclition.

Our debt agreement requires us to comply with warigperational, reporting and other covenantslimétus from engaging in certain types of
transactions. If there were an event of defaulteurour debt agreement that was not cured or wathecholders of the defaulted debt could
cause all amounts outstanding with respect todaht to be immediately due and payable. We camsmire you that our assets or cash flows
would be sufficient to fully repay borrowings undrir outstanding debt instruments, either upon ritgtor if accelerated, upon an event of
default or that we would be able to refinance streesture the payments on those debt instruments.

Our failure to maintain certain debt to EBITDA rasi contained in our debt agreement could resulequired payments to the lenders of a
percentage of our excess cash flow, which coulenadly and adversely affect our ability to use @xcess cash flow for other purpos

Our debt agreement requires us to distribute 50%upexcess cash flow, as defined in the debt aggag if our debt to EBITDA ratio exceeds
3.50 to 1.00 and 25% of our excess cash flow ifdait to EBITDA ratio is 3.50 to 1.00 or less, gegater than 2.75 to 1.00. If we were
required to distribute a portion of our excess dash to our lenders, we may be limited in our #hito grow our business through acquisitions
or investments in technology and we may be limitedur ability to repurchase our common stock. &8enot assure you that we will maintain
debt to EBITDA ratios at levels that will not reguius to distribute a portion of our excess caslv fb lenders.

Risks Related to our Growth Strategy
Our ability to grow is affected by our ability tetain and expand our existing client relationshaps! our ability to attract new customers.

Our ability to retain existing customers and exptrabe relationships and attract new customenshigst to a number of risks including the
risk that we do not:

*  maintain or improve the compliance and qualityef/&es we provide to our customers;
* meet or exceed the expectations of our customers;

» successfully leverage our existing client relatfops to sell additional services and

e attract other servicers and non-distressed honersels new customers.

If our efforts to retain and expand our client tielaships and to attract new customers do not pedfeetive, it could have a material adverse
effect on our business and results of operatiodsoan ability to grow our operations.

Our ability to expand existing relationships anmleat new customers is also affected by broadem@uodc factors and the strength of the ove
housing market, which can reduce demand for omicses and increase competition for each custoniersiness. SeeThe strength of the
economy and the housing market can affect demaralifeservices’
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If we do not adapt our services to changes in teldgy or in the marketplace, or if our ongoing eféato upgrade our technology al
particularly our efforts to complete developmenbof next generation technology are not successgfellcould lose customers and hi
difficulty attracting new customers for our sensce

The markets for our services are characterizebbgtant technological change, frequent introductibnew services and evolving industry
standards. We are currently in the process ofldpirgy and introducing our next generation techggldur future success will be
significantly affected by our ability to completarccurrent efforts and in the future enhance, pringhrough use of automation, econometrics
and behavioral science principles, our servicesdawvelop and introduce new services that addresmtheasingly sophisticated needs of our
customers and their customers. These initiativey the risks associated with any new service dguakent effort including cost overruns,
delays in delivery and performance effectivenéBsere can be no assurance that we will be sucdéssfaveloping, marketing and selling
new services that meet these changing demandsrpleting the development of our next generatiohttetogy. In addition, we may
experience difficulties that could delay or prevég successful development, introduction and nianxef these services. Finally, our
services and their enhancements may not adequagsythe demands of the marketplace and achievketrazceptance. Any of these results
would have a negative impact on our financial cbodiand results of operations and our ability tovgour operations.

Our growth objectives are dependent on the timing market acceptance of our new service offerings.

Our ability to grow may be adversely affected biiclilties or delays in service development or itheility to gain market acceptance of new
services to existing and new customers. There@guarantees that new services will prove to lmengercially successful.

Our business is dependent on the trend towardautng.

Our continued growth at historical rates is depahde the industry trend towards outsourced sesvidéhere can be no assurance this trend
will continue, as organizations may elect to perf@uch services themselves or may be preventeddtagourcing services. A significant
change in this trend could have a materially adveffect on our continued growth.

Our strategy to make acquisitions to acceleratenghoinitiatives involves potential risks.

During 2013, we acquired fee-based businesses@owen and acquired Equator. We intend to continumnsider acquisitions of other
businesses that could complement our businesaddition to considering acquisitions that coulceofiis greater access in our current markets
we also consider acquisitions of entities offergngater access and expertise in other asset typemnarkets that are related to ours but we do
not currently serve. As we acquire businessesnaseface a number of risks including a loss of ®ooun our daily operations, the need for
additional management, constraints on operatinguress, constraints on financial resources fromgration and system conversion costs, the
inability to maintain key pre-acquisition relatidrgs with customers, suppliers and employees amel ategration risks. Moreover, any
acquisition may result in the incurrence of additibamortization expense of related intangible tasshich could reduce our profitability.

We may be unable to achieve some or all of thefltemee expect from the continued relationship v#sidential following the Separation of
the Residential Asset Businesses.

We may not be able to fully achieve the strategit #nancial benefits we expect from our relatidpshith Residential following the
Separation of the Residential Asset Businessesjar benefits may be delayed. These outcomes ntay dicamong other things, Residential
is not successful in fully executing its strategyatquire non-performing loan portfolios with atoam of the portfolios converting to single
family rental assets or if Residential is not siesfel in continuing to raise equity and debt tomupits growth.

Risks Related to International Business

Our international operations subject us to additbrisks which could have an adverse effect onresults of operations.
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We have reduced our operating expenses by utilibwgr cost labor in foreign countries such asaratd the Philippines. As of

December 31, 2013, 5,895 of our employees weradtadadia and the Philippines. These countriessaubject to relatively higher degrees of
political and social instability and may lack timérastructure to withstand political unrest or matulisasters. Such disruptions can decrease
efficiency and increase our costs in these countidéeakness of the United States dollar in relatathe currencies used in these foreign
countries may also reduce the savings achievaldedh this strategy. Furthermore, the practicetitizing labor based in foreign countries
come under increased scrutiny in the United Staels as a result, some of our customers may regsite use labor based in the United
States. We may not be able to pass on the inde&asts of higher-priced United States-based l&bour customers which ultimately could
have an adverse effect on our results of operations

In many foreign countries, particularly in thosé¢hwileveloping economies, it is common to engadmisiness practices that are prohibited by
laws and regulations applicable to us, such aE@RA. Any violations of the FCPA or local anti-ogption laws by us, our subsidiaries or our
local agents, could have an adverse effect on wsinbss and reputation and result in substantiahfiial penalties or other sanctions.

Any political or economic instability in these cdtias could result in our having to replace or i@gthese labor sources which may increase
our labor costs and have an adverse impact oresuits of operations.

Altisource is a Luxembourg company and it may Kecdit to enforce judgments against it or its diters and executive officel

Altisource is a public limited company organizedlanthe laws of Luxembourg. As a result, Luxemigdaw and the articles of incorporation
govern the rights of shareholders. The rights afsholders under Luxembourg law may differ fromtiglats of shareholders of companies
incorporated in other jurisdictions. A significgmdrtion of the assets of Altisource are locatetside the United States. It may be difficult for
investors to enforce, in the United States, judgsiebtained in United States courts against Altisewr its directors based on the civil liabi
provisions of the United States securities lawa@nforce, in Luxembourg, judgments obtained heofurisdictions including the United
States.

A significant change of the Luxembourg tax regimefdts interpretation by the Luxembourg tax autties could adversely affect our resu
of operations.

Altisource is organized under the laws of, and kjeadtered in, Luxembourg. This allows Altisouroéenefit from a favorable tax treatment.
It is possible that changes in Luxembourg taxasiatutes, administrative practice or applicableil@ipns may cause a reduction in, or an
elimination of, the benefits we receive under thisteng Luxembourg tax treatment, which could régub significant increase to our income
tax expense and adversely affect our results afabipas.

Risks Related to Our Employees

Our success depends on our directors, executiieergfand key personnel.

Our success is dependent on the efforts and abiliti our directors, executive officers and otrer &mployees many of whom have signific
experience in the real estate and mortgage, finheeivices and technology industries. In paréicwe are dependent on the services of
William C. Erbey, our Chairman of the Board, andl\atin B. Shepro, our Chief Executive Officer, aslivees the services of key personnel at
each of our segments. The loss of the servicasypbf these directors, executives or key persoifimelny reason, could have a material
adverse effect upon our business, results of dpasand financial condition.

Our inability to attract and retain skilled empl@gmay adversely impact our business.

Our business is labor intensive and places sigmfiemportance on our ability to recruit, train aethin skilled employees. Additionally,
demand for qualified technical and software prdfesss conversant in certain technologies may eksepply as new and additional skills are
required to keep pace with evolving computer
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technology. Our ability to locate and train emgey is critical to achieving our growth objectiv@ur inability to attract and retain skilled
employees or an increase in wages or other costiratting, training or retaining skilled emplogemuld have a materially adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results adragions.

Risks Related to Our Relationships

We could have conflicts of interest with Ocwen, 8l Besidential, AAMC, our Chairman, our CEO or agament due to his, her or their
relationship with Ocwen, HLSS, Residential or AAMBich may be resolved in a manner adverse to us.

We do a substantial amount of business with OcResjdential and AAMC and provide certain servieeBlLSS. Conflicts may arise between
Ocwen, HLSS, Residential or AAMC and us becausmuiofongoing agreements with them and because afghee of our respective
businesses.

Our Chairman is also the Chairman of Ocwen, HLSSitRential and AAMC. As a result, he has obligagitmus as well as to these other
entities and could have conflicts of interest wigBpect to matters potentially or actually invotyior affecting us and Ocwen, HLSS,
Residential or AAMC, as the case may be. Our @hairalso has substantial investments in Ocwen, HR8Sidential and AAMC, and cert.
of our other officers and directors own stock ofiaqs in one or more of Ocwen, HLSS, Residential AAMC. Such ownership interests
could create, or appear to create, conflicts afragt with respect to matters potentially or adcyualolving or affecting us and Ocwen, HLSS,
Residential and AAMC, as the case may be.

We follow policies, procedures and practices toidypotential conflicts with respect to our dealivggh Ocwen, HLSS, AAMC and
Residential, including our Chairman recusing hifiem negotiations regarding, and approvals @nsactions with these entities. We also
manage potential conflicts of interest through sight by independent members of our Board of Diecfindependent directors constitute a
majority of our Board of Directors), and we wilkalseek to manage these potential conflicts thraligpute resolution and other provisions of
our agreements with Ocwen, HLSS, Residential ant&AThere can be no assurance that such measuteewifective, that we will be ab
to resolve all conflicts with Ocwen, HLSS, Residehor AAMC or that the resolution of any such digié will be no less favorable to us than
if we were dealing with a third party that had nafi¢he connections we have with these businesses.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located in &ghsffice space in Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of LukRearg. A summary of our principal
leased office space as of December 31, 2013 argktfraents primarily occupying each location iscdigs:

Mortgage Financial Technology Corporate and
Services Services Services Support Services

Luxembourg X X X X
United State!

Atlanta, GA X X X X

Boston, MA X

Dallas, TX X

Irvine, CA X X

Los Angeles, C/ X

Louisville, KY X X

Plano, TX X

Sacramento, C, X

Seattle, WA X

St. Louis, MO X

Tempe, AZ X

Vestal, NY X

Winstor-Salem, NC X X
Pasay City, Philippine X X X X
India

Bangalore X X X X

Goa X

Mumbai X X X X

We do not own any real property. We consider tliasiities to be suitable and adequate for theagament and operations of our business.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in legal prodegd arising in the ordinary course of businesse fdtord a liability for litigation if an
unfavorable outcome is probable and the amourdss tan be reasonably estimated, including expétsedance coverage. For proceedings
where a range of loss is determined, we recordstdstimate of loss within the range. When legatpedings are material, we disclose the
nature of the litigation, and to the extent possikthe estimate of loss or range of loss. In girion of management, after consultation with
legal counsel and considering insurance coveraggendpplicable, the outcome of current legal prdicegs, both individually and in the
aggregate, will not have a material impact on uarfcial condition, results of operations or cdstw$. Our businesses are also subject to
extensive regulation which may result in regulaforyceedings against us. See Item 1A of ParRisk Factors above.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART II

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ GlobaleseMarket under the symbol “ASPS.” The followiradpke sets forth the high and low
close of day sales prices for our common stocktHferperiods indicated, as reported by the NASDAGb& Select Market:

2013
Quarter ended Low High
March 31 $ 67.38 $ 96.0z
June 3( 69.4: 100.1¢
September 3 95.2% 142.3(
December 3: 132.8¢ 170.1¢
2012
Quarter ended Low High
March 31 $ 4858 % 64.7¢
June 3( 52.3¢t 73.2¢
September 3 70.7C 91.0¢
December 3: 84.5¢ 124.3:

The number of holders of record of our common staxkf January 31, 2014 was 70. The number offlssadestockholders is substantially
greater than the number of holders as a largeguooti our common stock is held through brokeragadi

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividends ooa@umon stock, and we do not anticipate payingash dividends in the foreseeable
future. Additionally, the payment of cash dividenday be limited by Luxembourg law and by covenantsur debt agreement.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tolcler return on our common stock with the cumutatbtal return on the S&P’s 500
Index for the period commencing on August 10, 2@08 first trading day of our common stock, andiegan December 31, 2013. The graph
assumes an investment of $100 at the beginningi®period and does not include the effects opibe-distribution values of Residential and

AAMC, which were distributed to Altisource shareti@ls in December 2012. The comparisons in the greplow are based upon historical
data and are not indicative of, nor intended tedast, future performance of our common stock.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

The information required by this item is incorp@dherein by reference to our definitive proxyesta¢nt in connection with our 2014 annual
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touRen 14A under the Securities Exchange Act &4L9

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In May 2012, our shareholders approved a new geylrchase program, which replaced the previouk segpurchase program. Under the
program, we are authorized to purchase up to 3llomshares of our common stock in the open mairketdition to amounts previously
purchased under the prior program. From authdozatf the previous program in May 2010 through &aber 31, 2013, we have purchased
approximately 3.7 million shares of our common ktimcthe open market at an average price of $6pdddhare. We purchased 1.2 million
shares of common stock at an average price of $2%&r share during the year ended December 38,204 0.3 million shares at an average
price of $63.25 per share during the year endecibéer 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2013, appraeiyn.3 million shares of common
stock remain available for repurchase under thgrara. Luxembourg law limits share repurchases pr@fmately the balance of Altisource
Portfolio Solutions S.A. (unconsolidated parent pamy) retained earnings, less shares repurchasedf December 31, 2013, approximately
$14 million was available to repurchase our commstock under Luxembourg law. Our senior secured tean also limits the amount we can
spend on share repurchases in any year and magmpne@purchases in certain circumstances. As oébber 31, 2013, approximately $55
million was available to repurchase our commonlsto@er our senior secured term loan.

The following table presents information relateatm repurchases of our equity securities durimgttinee months ended December 31, 2013:

Total
number
of shares
purchased as
part of
publicly Maximum number
Total Weighted announced of shares that may
number of average plans yet be purchased
shares price paid or under the
Period purchased(1) per share programs(2) plans or programs
Common stock
October 17— 31, 2013 79,17. $ 148.1: 79,17: 2,572,33!
November +— 30, 2013 280,40! 149.0: 280,40! 2,291,93I
December — 31, 2013 — — — 2,291,93I
Total shares of common sto 359,57 $ 148.8: 359,57 2,291,93'

(1) Includes shares withheld from employees to satesfywithholding obligations that arose from thereige of stock options.
(2) In May 2012, our shareholders authorized us tolpsge up to 3.5 million shares of our common stadké open market.

The provisions of our senior secured term loan@gent, as amended, limit, among other things, bilityato incur additional debt, pay
dividends and repurchase stock.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data as of andtfar years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, 2010, &0 2009 has been derived from our

audited consolidated financial statements.

The historical results presented below may nothdeative of our future performance and do not measgly reflect what our financial position
as of December 31, 2009 and results of operatimmnthé year ended December 31, 2009 would have ledmwe operated as a separate, stan

alone entity for the period prior to the Separafimm Ocwen.

The selected consolidated financial data shouldeld in conjunction with the information contairiedtem 7 of Part I, “Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition deksults of Operatior” and our consolidated financial statements andsttereto in Item
8 of Part Il, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

For the years ended December 3.

(in thousands, except per share date 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Revenue $ 768,35 $ 568,36( $ 423,68 $ 301,37¢ $ 202,81.
Cost of revenu 492,48l 366,20: 275,84¢ 189,05¢ 126,79
Gross profit 275,87 202,15¢ 147,83t 112,31¢ 76,01t
Selling, general and administrative exper 113,81( 74,71% 62,13 57,35: 39,47
Income from operation 162,06 127,44 85,70 54,96 36,54:
Other income (expense), n

Interest expens (20,29) (1,210 (85) (119 (1,660

Other income (expense), r 557 (1,58¢) 28¢€ 923 2,69/

Total other income (expense), | (19,739 (2,799 203 804 1,03¢

Income before income taxes and non-controlling

interests 142,33: 124,64¢ 85,91( 55,77 37,57¢
Income tax (provision) bene! (8,540 (8,73%) (7,949 402 (11,605
Net income 133,79: 115,91: 77,96° 56,17« 25,97
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: (3,82() (5,289 (6,85%) (6,909 —
Net income attributable to Altisourt $ 129,97. $ 110,62° $ 71,11. $ 49,27. $ 25,97:
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 5.6 $ 474 $ 292 $ 19¢ $ 1.0¢

Diluted $ 5.1¢ $ 4.4 $ 271 $ 1.8 $ 1.07
Transactions with related parties included ab

Revenue $ 502,08 $ 338,22° $ 245,26: $ 154,98( $ 94,89°

Selling, general and administrative exper 2,921 2,43( 1,89: 1,05¢ 4,30¢

Other income (expens 773 86 — — (1,290
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December 31

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Cash and cash equivale $ 130,32: $ 105,50: $ 32,12 $ 22,13 $ 30,45¢
Accounts receivable, n 101,29 88,95¢ 52,00t 53,49t 30,49°
Premises and equipment, | 87,25: 50,39¢ 25,60( 17,49: 11,40¢
Intangible assets, n 276,16:. 56,58¢ 64,95( 72,42¢ 33,71¢
Goodwill 97,37¢ 14,91t 14,91t 11,83¢ 9,32¢
Loan to Ocwer 75,00( — —
Total asset 724,83 429,22¢ 224,15¢ 197,80( 120,55t
Long term debt, ne 395,25¢ 198,02° — — —
Capital lease obligatior — 233 83€ 1,532 664
Total liabilities 567,09 269,39° 58,21¢ 45,90z 34,20¢

Note: Significant events affecting our historiearnings trends in 2011 through 2013, includingugsitions, are described in Item 7 of Part
“ Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdtion and Results of Operatioris

ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management’s discussion and analysis of finan@abti@ion and results of operations (“MD&A”) is applement to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and is intendqatdvide a reader of our financial statements wittarrative from the perspective of
management on our businesses, current developnfieatscial condition, results of operations andildity. Significant sections of MD&A are
as follows:

Overview.This section, beginning on page 24, provides arg®mn of recent developments we believe are irtgrt in understanding
our results of operations and financial conditismell as understanding anticipated future treliddso provides a brief description of
significant transactions and events that affectctivaparability of financial results and a discussid the progress being made on our
growth initiatives.

Consolidated Results of Operatioii$is section, beginning on page 27, provides afyaiseof our consolidated results of operations fol
the three years ended December 31, 2013.

Segment Results of Operatioikis section, beginning on page 29, provides alyaisaof each business segment for the three years
ended December 31, 2048 well as Corporate Items and Eliminations. lditiah, we discuss significant transactions, evemntd trend:
that may affect the comparability of the resultsmgeanalyzed.

Liquidity and Capital ResourcedThis section, beginning on page 37, providesratyais of our cash flows for the three years ended
December 31, 2013. We also discuss restrictiorsash movements, future commitments and capitalress.

Critical Accounting Policies.This section, beginning on page 40, identifies éhmscounting principles we believe are most impabrtia
our financial results and that require significartigment and estimates on the part of managemelication. We provide all of our
significant accounting policies in Note 2 to the@mpanying consolidated financial statements.

Other Matters. This section, beginning on page 43, providesautision of off-balance sheet arrangements toxtemtethey exist. In
addition, we provide a tabular discussion of carttral obligations and discuss any significant cotmmaits or contingencies.
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OVERVIEW
Our Business

We, through our subsidiaries, are a premier malkegpand transaction solutions provider for thé estate, mortgage and consumer debt
industries offering both distribution and contaiMe leverage proprietary business process, vendbel@ctronic payment management softy
and behavioral science based analytics to improteomes for marketplace participants.

Our business segments are based upon our organaksitructure, which focuses primarily on the &y offered, and are consistent with the
internal reporting used by our Chief Executive €Hfito evaluate operating performance and to asisesglocation of our resources.

We classify our business into three reportable segen TheMortgage Servicesegment provides services that span the mortgatjesah

estate lifecycle and are typically outsourced anlservicers, loan originators and investors iglsifamily homes. ThEinancial Services
segment provides collection and customer relatipnstanagement services primarily to debt originratnd servicers (e.g., credit card, auto
lending, retail credit and mortgage) and the ytiihd insurance industries. Thechnology Servicesegment principally consists of our
REALSuite software applications, Equator’s softwapplications as well as our IT infrastructure ggrs. The REALSuite platform provides a
fully integrated set of software applications aechinologies that manage the end-to-end lifecyalegsidential and commercial mortgage loan
servicing including the automated management agchpat of a distributed network of vendors. Equateoftware applications provide
comprehensive, end-to-end workflow and transacteEmices to manage real estate related activitidgparchase related services from
vendors. In additiorCorporate Items and Eliminatiornisclude eliminations of transactions between thporeéng segments and costs related tc
corporate support functions including executiveafice, legal, human resources, vendor managernsnind operational effectiveness.

We classify revenue in three categories: sendggemue, revenue from reimbursable expenses andardrslling interests. In evaluating our
performance, we focus on service revenue. Sereigenue consists of amounts attributable to oubfesed services. Reimbursable expenses
and non-controlling interests are pass-throughstéanwhich we earn no margin. Reimbursable exggrsnsist of amounts we incur on
behalf of our customers in performing our fee-basmdices, but we pass such costs directly on teastomers without any additional
markup. Non-controlling interests represent thmiegs of Lenders One, a consolidated entity nateshby Altisource and are included in
revenue and reduced from net income to arrive ainoeme attributable to Altisource.

We have prepared our consolidated financial statésria accordance with accounting principles gdheagcepted in the United States of
America ("“GAAP").

Altisource’s Vision and Growth Initiatives

Since our separation from Ocwen, Altisource hastreca company providing a full suite of mortgagal estate and consumer debt services
leveraging our technology and global operationsr @lationship with Ocwen provided a foundationvarich we built our business and
remains an important priority for us. Altisourceision has evolved to become the premier provideeal estate and mortgage marketplaces
offering both distribution and content. Within #eeindustries, we are facilitating transactionatezl to home sales, home rentals, home
maintenance, mortgage origination and mortgagdéaegy The Equator acquisition, with its marketfareal estate and servicing transaction
solutions, is in line with this vision and accelesaour evolution and growth.

We believe there are significant growth opportasitior Altisource in the real estate and mortgagekets, leveraging our distribution and
transaction solutions. Our strategic growth itikies are:

Real estate market:

*  supporting Ocwen’s growth
* deploying Hubzu to other institutions and the nistrdssed home sales market
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»  providing property management, lease managementesnadation management services to the single yaraiital market
Mortgage market:

*  maintaining and growing our services provided tov®e as it continues to grow its residential loatviseng portfolio
e growing our origination related services by promglservices to the members of Lenders One and Oswagination platform
« developing our next generation REALServicing tedbgyp

Distribution and transaction solutions:

» developing our next generation vendor, invoice @acliment management technologies through REALTRE#LRemit and
REALDoc

Stock Repurchase Plan

In May 2012, our shareholders approved a new gelrchase program, which replaced the previouk segpurchase program. Under the
program, we are authorized to purchase up to 3lf®mshares of our common stock in the open mairkeddition to amounts previously
purchased under the prior program. From authadozaf the previous program in May 2010 through &aber 31, 2013, we have purchased
approximately 3.7 million shares of our common ktiocthe open market at an average price of $6ped4hare. We purchased 1.2 million
shares of common stock at an average price of $2%f&r share during the year ended December 38,204 0.3 million shares at an average
price of $63.25 per share during the year endeciber 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2013, apprdeiyn&.3 million shares of common
stock remain available for repurchase under thgraro. Luxembourg law limits share repurchases pr@fimately the balance of Altisource
Portfolio Solutions S.A. (unconsolidated parent pamy) retained earnings, less shares repurchasedf December 31, 2013, approximately
$14 million was available to repurchase our comstock under Luxembourg law. Our senior secured tean also limits the amount we can
spend on share repurchases in any year and magrpn@purchases in certain circumstances. As oéber 31, 2013, approximately $55
million was available to repurchase our commonlstawer our senior secured term loan.

Separation of Residential Asset Businesses

On December 21, 2012, we completed the capitadizatnd distribution of Residential and AAMC to @lmareholders. SeeSeparation of the
Residential Asset Busines!” in Iltem 1 of Part |, “Business!

On December 24, 2012, the shares of ResidentiahanMIC were distributed to our shareholders of recas of December 17, 2012, in the
form of a taxable pro rata stock distribution. @bareholders received a pro rata distribution of:

« one share of Residential common stock for evemetishares of Altisource common stock held;
e one share of AAMC common stock for every 10 shafeSitisource common stock held and
» cashin lieu of fractional Residential and AAMC stsa

Residential is focused on acquiring and managinglsifamily rental properties by acquiring portéaiof sub-performing and non-performing
residential mortgage loans throughout the UnitedeSt AAMC provides asset management and ceraporate governance services to
Residential. We are providing property manageniease management and renovation management setoiBesidential. Prior to the
separation, we capitalized Residential with $100ioni of cash and AAMC with $5 million of cash.

We eliminated the assets and liabilities of Redidéand AAMC from our consolidated balance shéfsative at the close of business on
December 21, 2012. As Residential and AAMC weneetimmment stage companies and had not yet commeapegdtions at the time of
separation, these entities had no historical residiloperations. We do not expect any negativeaghpn our future operations other than
interest expense on the debt we borrowed in Nove2®E2 to capitalize these entities.
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The carrying value of net assets transferred bigdlirce was as follows:

(in thousands) Residential AAMC Total
Cash $ 100,00 $ 5,000 $ 105,00(
Reduction in Altisource retained earnir $ 100,00 $ 5000 $ 105,00(

Factors affecting comparability
The following additional items may impact the comgtality of our results:

e The average number of loans serviced by Ocwen okLBErvicing totaled 1.2 million for the year endédcember 31, 2013
compared to 0.7 million and 0.5 million for the yganded December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectiVéig.average number of
delinquent non-Government-Sponsored Enterprisent@8E”) loans serviced by Ocwen on REALServicingled 296 thousand for
the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to ®lisahd and 137 thousand for the years ended Dec&hp2012 and 2011,
respectively;

*  On November 15, 2013, we acquired Equator for #impurchase price of $63.4 million plus contingeonsideration of up to an
additional $80 million over three years, subjecEtpuator achieving annual performance targets;

e« On March 29, 2013, we completed the acquisitiothefHomeward fee-based businesses from Ocwen faggegate purchase price
of $75.8 million;

* On April 12, 2013, we completed the ResCap feebassiness transaction with Ocwen for an aggregatehase price of $128.8
million;

* In November 2012, we borrowed $200 million undseaior secured term loan agreement and increasdztbaowings to $400
million on May 7, 2013. On December 9, 2013, wilmemced the senior secured term loan which inaydenong other changes,
lowering the interest rate of the term loans. regeexpense totaled $20.3 million for the yeareendecember 31, 2013 compared to
$1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 20i2qomparative amount in 2011);

We repurchased 1.2 million shares of our commockstmder our stock repurchase program during tle geded December 31,
2013 compared to 0.3 million shares and 1.6 milibares during the years ended December 31, 2@12(4r1, respectively;

* In April 2011, we acquired Springhouse, LLC, anrajgal management company that utilizes a natioawahel of appraisers to
provide real estate appraisals principally to magggoriginators, including the members of Lendere,@nd real estate asset mana
and

e InJuly 2011, we acquired the assembled workfofcEr@acmail, a sub-contractor in India that perforasset recovery services.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Summary Consolidated Results

Following is a discussion of our consolidated resaf operations for the years ended December@i13,2012 and 2011. For a more detailed
discussion of the factors that affected the resifltsur business segments in these periods, Segrhent Results of Operatidrselow.

The following table sets forth information on oesults of operations for the years ended Decemhber 3

% Increase % Increase
(in thousands, except per share datz 2013 (decrease’ 2012 (decrease’ 2011
Service revenu
Mortgage Service $ 490,33: 39 $ 351,90¢ 56 $ 224,94
Financial Service 92,47¢ 45 63,97¢ (8 69,23:
Technology Service 103,89: 40 74,18¢ 32 56,09
Eliminations (24,649 (6) (23,14) (49 (15,509
662,05¢ 42 466,92 39 334,75t
Reimbursable expens 102,47¢ 7 96,14’ 17 82,07
Non-controlling interest: 3,82( (298) 5,28/ (29) 6,85¢
Total revenue 768,35’ 35 568,36( 34 423,68
Cost of revenu 492,48( 34 366,20: 33 275,84¢
Gross profi 275,87" 36 202,15¢ 37 147,83t
Selling, general and administrative exper 113,81( 52 74,71 20 62,13!
Income from operation 162,06 27 127,44 49 85,70%
Other income (expense), n
Interest expens (20,29) N/M (1,210 N/M (85)
Other income (expense), r 557 13t (1,589 N/M 28¢
Total other income (expense), | (19,739 N/M (2,799¢) N/M 203
Income before income taxes and non-controlling
interests 142,33: 14 124,64¢ 45 85,91(
Income tax provisiol (8,540) 2 (8,73¢) (20 (7,949
Net income 133,79: 15 115,91: 49 77,96%
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: (3,820 28 (5,289 23 (6,859
Net income attributable to Altisour $ 129,97: 17 $ 110,62 56 $ 71,11:
Margins:
Gross profit/service reveni 42% 43% 44%
Income from operations/service revetr 24% 27% 26%
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 5.6% 19 $ 4.7¢ 62 $ 2.9z
Diluted $ _ 51I¢ 17 $ 4% 60 $ 271

N/M — not meaningful.
Revenus

We recognized service revenue of $662.1 milliorg6g million and $334.8 million for the years end2ecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The growth in service revenue okierthree year period was primarily driven by Ocwearontinued growth, expansion of
services we provide to the loans in Ocwen’s semgigiortfolio and growth in our Financial Servicesiness from new customer relationship
management customers and, in 2013, expansion afhauge-off mortgage collection services.
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The increase in revenue from reimbursable expethsdsg the three year period is due primarily te ¢gowth of Ocwen'’s loan servicing
portfolio, although reimbursable expenses can sayificantly from year to year based on the miseifvices ordered.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenue principally includes payroll andpbogee benefits associated with personnel emplayedstomer service and operations rc
fees paid to external providers related to the igiom of services, reimbursable expenses, techyalod telecommunications expenses as wel
as depreciation and amortization of operating asset

We recognized cost of revenue of $492.5 millior&2 million and $275.8 million for the years enddecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The increase in cost of revenuendutie three year period is primarily attributatalehe growth in Ocwen’s loan servicing
portfolio and higher costs in our Technology Sezsisegment as we continue to invest in the devedapof our next generation technology
and infrastructure to support our growth. Additily, we have been carrying excess staff in thetlyage Services segment since late 2012 in
anticipation of the ResCap and Homeward non-GSgslahe majority of which were boarded in 2013.

Gross profit as a percentage of service revenuel¥s 43% and 44% for the years ended Decemb&é(38B, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The decreases in gross margin percentages duitgetiod are primarily attributable to the mixsafrvice revenue, the timing of investments
in new services and technology and the timing @frbimg new loans. In 2013, we experienced highawth in the lower margin property
inspection and preservation services from theahitferrals from the Homeward and ResCap port$adiod higher costs in our Technology
Services segment as we continue to invest in theldement of our next generation technology to suppur growth initiatives, partially offs
by improved performance in our Financial Serviagnsent from the growth of higher margin mortgagargh-off and customer relationship
management services. In 2012, we reported highsts in our Technology Services segment from imeests in the development of our next
generation technology, costs incurred to develepdmtal property management business and the lymivthe lower margin origination
services business.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ardrime from Operations

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SGQ&rcludes payroll for personnel employed in extaey finance, legal, human resources,
vendor management, risk and operational effectsgneles. This category also includes occupansiscprofessional fees, depreciation on
non-operating assets and amortization of intangibets.

We recognized SG&A of $113.8 million, $74.7 milliamd $62.1 million for the years ended Decembef813, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The increase in SG&A during the three year penmdlides expansion of some of our corporate funstiortluding occupancy costs, to sup|
Altisource’s growth, and higher marketing costatedl to Hubzu. In 2013, amortization expense #&s1$million higher than 2012 from the
2013 Homeward, ResCap and Equator transaction2018, we reported higher professional servicasguily from expenses incurred in
connection with the Separation of the Resident&dei Businesses.

Income from operations as a percentage of sereigenue was 24%, 27% and 26% for the years endeehiber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Income from operations as a pergentd service revenue declined in 2013 compar@D1@ as a result of the mix of service
revenue, the timing of investments in new servaras technology, the timing of boarding new loand isgreases in amortization expense fi
the Homeward and ResCap fee-based business ammssind the Equator acquisition. Income from afiens as a percentage of service
revenue increased in 2012 compared to 2011 be&B&A grew at a slower pace than service revenugigiig offset by costs associated w
the Separation of the Residential Asset Businesses.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net principally includdsriast expense and interest income. Interest segen the year ended December 31, 2013
increased by $19.1 million compared to the yeaedridecember 31, 2012 from the

28




Table of Contents

senior secured term loan borrowed in the fourthrtguaf 2012 (no comparative amount in 2011). \&eognized interest income of $0.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2013 comgban $0.1 million for the year ended December2B12 (no comparative amount in 20
from a fourth quarter 2012 $75.0 million loan tov@n. Ocwen repaid the loan in February 2013.

Income Tax Provisio

We recognized an income tax provision of $8.5 mili$8.7 million and $7.9 million for the years edd>ecember 31, in 2013, 2012 and 2!
respectively. Our effective tax rate was 6.0%% @nd 9.2% for the years ended December 31, 2@12, &nd 2011, respectively. The
effective tax rate in all three periods differsrréhe Luxembourg statutory tax rate (29.2% in 2848 28.8% in 2012 and 2011) primarily
because of the effect of a favorable tax rulingusembourg and the mix of income and losses witlying tax rates in multiple taxing
jurisdictions.

Our consolidated effective income tax rate for ficial reporting purposes may change periodically uchanges in enacted tax rates,
fluctuations in the mix of income earned from oonestic and international operations, which maguigect to differing tax rates, and our
ability to utilize net operating loss and tax ctemdirryforwards.

SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following section provides a discussion of faetesults of operations of our business segnfentbe years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011. Transactions between segmentseoarged for as third party arrangements for puepad presenting segment results of
operations. Intercompany transactions primarilysist of IT infrastructure services and chargedteruse of certain REALSuite applications
from our Technology Services segment to our othhersgegments. Generally, we reflect these as sereienue in the Technology Services
segment and technology and telecommunications egpeithin cost of revenue and SG&A in the segmeoeiving the services. Consulting
services are reflected in outside fees and serwitbin cost of revenue. Certain prior year amsumve been reclassified to conform to the
current period presentation.

Financial information for our segments is as fokow

For the year ended December 31, 20:

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Items and Consolidated

(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue

Service revenu $ 490,33! $ 92,47¢ $ 103,89: $ (24,649 $ 662,05¢

Reimbursable expens 101,99¢ 47¢ — — 102,47¢

Non-controlling interest: 3,82( — — — 3,82(

596,15: 92,95¢ 103,89: (24,64 768,35

Cost of revenu 374,71 55,32¢ 84,53t (22,099 492,48(
Gross profi 221,43¢ 37,63( 19,35 (2,545 275,87
Selling, general and administrative exper 46,51¢ 15,57 12,44: 39,28 113,81(
Income from operation 174,92: 22,05¢ 6,911 (41,829 162,06
Other income (expense), r (13€) (10) 7 (19,595 (19,734
Income before income taxes and non-controlling

interests $ 174,78 $ 22,04¢ $ 6,91¢ $ (61,425 $ 142,33.
Margins:

Gross profit/service revent 45% 41% 1% N/M 42%

Income from operations/service revet 36% 24% 7% N/M 24%
Transactions with related partie

Revenue $ 423,96¢ $ 2759. % 50,527 $ — $ 502,08

Selling, general and administrative exper 86 — — 2,83t 2,921

Other income — — — 778 778

N/M — not meaningful.
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For the year ended December 31, 20:

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Iltems and Consolidated

(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue

Service revenu $ 351,90¢ $ 63,97¢ $ 74,18¢ $ (23,14) $ 466,92

Reimbursable expens 95,60 543 — — 96,14°

Non-controlling interest: 5,28¢ — — — 5,28¢

452,79t 64,52: 74,18¢ (23,147 568,36(

Cost of revenu 285,58t 46,73) 54,63¢ (20,75¢6) 366,20:
Gross profit 167,21( 17,78t 19,55¢ (2,39)) 202,15¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 25,09¢ 13,41¢ 8,88¢ 27,31( 74,71
Income from operation 142,11: 4,37( 10,661 (29,70)) 127,44
Other income (expense), r (1,719 (27) (25) (1,039 (2,799
Income before income taxes and non-controlling

interests 140,39¢ $ 434 $ 10,64: $ (30,739 $ 124,64¢
Margins:

Gross profit/service revent 48% 28% 26% N/M 43%

Income from operations/service revet 40% 7% 14% N/M 27%
Transactions with related parti

Revenue $ 306,77: $ 20 $ 31,24t $ — 3 338,22

Selling, general and administrative exper 57 — — 2,37: 2,43(

Other income — — — 86 86
N/M — not meaningful.

For the year ended December 31, 20:
Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Iltems and Consolidated

(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue

Service revenu $ 224,94. $ 69,23. $ 56,09 $ (15,509 $ 334,75¢

Reimbursable expens 80,12« 1,95(C — — 82,07

Non-controlling interest: 6,85¢ — — — 6,85¢

311,92: 71,18: 56,09 (15,509 423,68

Cost of revenu 202,03! 51,09¢ 36,87« (14,156 275,84¢
Gross profit 109,88 20,08t 19,22( (1,359 147,83t
Selling, general and administrative exper 15,27¢ 15,63¢ 4,86 26,35: 62,13:
Income from operation 94,60¢ 4,451 14,35 (27,70 85,70"
Other income (expense), r 24¢ (34) (49) 38 203
Income before income taxes and non-controlling

interests $ 94,85¢ $ 4417 $ 14,30: $ (27,667 $ 85,91(
Margins:

Gross profit/service revent 49% 29% 34% N/M 44%

Income from operations/service revetr 42% 6% 26% N/M 26%
Transactions with related partie

Revenue $ 223,18 $ 266 $ 21,81: $ — $ 245,26.

Selling, general and administrative exper — — — 1,89: 1,89:

N/M — not meaningful.
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Mortgage Services

Revenu

Revenue by service line was as follows for the yesded December 31:

% Increase

% Increase

(in thousands) 2013 (decrease) 2012 (decrease) 2011
Service revenu
Asset management servic 197,99¢ 84 $ 107,48( 65 $ 64,97!
Insurance service 119,83! 4C 85,60: 52 56,49¢
Residential property valuatic 103,30( 29 80,32: 55 51,78t
Default management servic 41,81 () 50,22« 52 32,97¢
Origination management servic 27,38 (3) 28,28 51 18,71:
Total service revenu 490,33: 3¢9 351,90t 56 224,94.
Reimbursable expense
Asset management servic 96,94 4 92,99: 22 76,51
Default management servic 3,17 N/M 42¢ (88) 3,491
Insurance service 1,64 (25) 2,18¢ N/M 11€
Origination management servic 231 N/M = N/M —
Total reimbursable expens 101,99¢ 7 95,60 19 80,12
Non-controlling interest: 3,82( (28) 5,28¢ (23 6,85¢
Total revenus 596,15:. 32 $ 452,79 45 $ 311,92
Transactions with related partie
Asset management servic 264,35( 45 $ 181,94 33 $ 136,68
Residential property valuatic 98,95¢ 3& 73,40t 51 48,73¢
Insurance service 42,48 12 37,84¢ 42 26,73
Default management servic 16,45: 21 13,54¢ 23 11,03:
Origination management servic 1,72¢ N/M 23 N/M —
Total 423,96 38 $ 306,77 37 $ 223,18

N/M — not meaningful.

We recognized service revenue of $490.3 milliontfieryear ended December 31, 2013, a 39% increamspased to the year ended

December 31, 2012. The growth in all business|iegcept default management services and origmatanagement services, is primarily
driven by Ocwen’s growth as loans from its sengcptatform acquisitions are boarded on REALSengciburing 2013, we assisted Ocwen
with the boarding of 1.1 million loans onto REALS8ieing from Ocwen’s acquisitions of Homeward, Regs@ad OneWest Bank FSB
servicing rights. Typically, the initial servicesdered immediately following loan boardings anedo margin property inspection and

preservation services, which is a significant driekethe 84% growth of asset management serviceng®. Asset management service revenu

also increased from new services introduced in 20d& expanding the percentage of homes sold gir@uction on Hubzu and from
capturing referrals for certain services beforeltiams were boarded on REALServicing. Growth mithsurance services and residential
property valuation businesses also reflects Ocwlanger loan portfolio, but doesn’t yet reflect thermalized referral volume we expect from
the new portfolios. Default management servicgsmae was lower as one of Ocwen'’s subservicingoousts is continuing its temporary
moratorium on the foreclosure of its loans, theunegments under the “Making Homes Affordable” pragrlimit servicers’ ability to initiate a
foreclosure while pursuing other avenues of resmiuand a greater percentage of loans pendinglémee actions are being placed on holc

modification
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consideration or stopped due to modification. @&aton management service revenue only declinedn32013 over 2012, despite the
estimated 14% decline in overall U.S. originatiatuwne.

We recognized service revenue of $351.9 milliontfieryear ended December 31, 2012, a 56% incremspased to the year ended
December 31, 2011. This growth in all of the basmlines, except origination management serweas driven by the growth in Ocwenloar
servicing portfolio and expansion in services pded. A portion of the growth is from a higher eaptrate of REO sales on Hubzu sold
through auction resulting in a higher percentagaro@éssion and an increase in the average REO saées (The higher origination
management services revenue in 2012 is due to thagkeeall originations volume, the increase in tisenber of Lenders One members and the
incremental rolleut and capture of origination related servicethéomembers. The number of Lenders One membeafsascember 31, 201
2012 and 2011 were 271 members, 241 members anch@iders, respectively.

Certain of our Mortgage Services businesses aradtefd by seasonality. REO sales and lawn maintenservices are generally lowest dui
the fall and winter months and highest during ivéng) and summer months.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenue consists of the following for tleags ended December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2013 (decrease) 2012 (decrease) 2011

Compensation and benef $ 64,64+ 20 $ 53,84: 44 3 37,26¢
Outside fees and servic 187,13 61 116,32 57 73,88¢
Reimbursable expens 101,99¢ 7 95,60 19 80,12
Technology and telecommunicatic 19,15( 3 18,50¢ 82 10,15(
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,781 36 1,30¢ 11t 60¢
Cost of revenu $ 374,71 31 $ 285,58t 41 9 202,03!

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 313 80$374.7 million increased by 31% compared toytbar ended December 31, 2012,
driven primarily by the growth of Ocwen'’s loan seimg portfolio. Outside fees and services inceshat a greater rate than service revenue
due to revenue mix, primarily the higher level oerty inspection and preservation referrals. @@msation and benefits increased at a lowe
rate than service revenue as we began to experieadnefit of our workforce efficiency initiatis®n higher referral volumes even after
carrying excess employees for a part of the yeaupport Mortgage Services’ anticipated growth.

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 32 80$285.6 million increased by 41% compared toytbar ended December 31, 2011,
driven primarily by the growth of Ocwen'’s loan sieimg portfolio and the development of closing ditieé services in 2011, new origination
related services in 2012 and new rental propertyageament services in 2012.

Gross profit as a percentage of service revenuel®d¥s 48% and 49% for the years ended Decemb&(3B, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The decreases in gross margin percentages durgpgehod are primarily attributable to revenue mfxservices delivered and the timing of
boarding new loans. In 2013, we experienced highawth in the lower margin property inspection gmeservation services from the early
referrals from the Homeward and ResCap portfopiastially offset by lower compensation and benefists as a percentage of service rev
from process efficiencies and higher utilizatidProperty inspections are generally higher followihg boarding of a new portfolio. Generally,
we have been able to maintain our margins in adesf accelerated growth, and we anticipate th@hgforward, we will improve margins as
we receive referrals for the full suite of defanelfated services on newly boarded loans, reducédoge and vendor costs as a percent of
service revenue through our workforce efficienagiatives, displace vendors with internal persorated lower cost and deploy vendor, proces
and payment management technologies. In 2012ntst significant factors impacting gross profitegsercent of
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service revenue were the mix of services provideduding growth of the lower margin originationated appraisals. We also incurred costs
in 2012 to develop the rental property managemasiniess, including the Separation of the Residieitiset Businesses.

Our margins can vary substantially depending upbamservicing rights are acquired and boarded talF¥ervicing by Ocwen. Typically,
compensation and benefits will increase in antibgeof a boarding as we hire and train persormeldiver services in advance of the actual
boarding of loans. Subsequently, as new loanba@aeded, for the initial months post-boarding, emdtto deliver an elevated level of lower
margin valuations and property inspection and puadi®n services.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ardrime from Operations

We recognized SG&A of $46.5 million, $25.1 milliemd $15.3 million for the years ended Decembe813, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The increase in SG&A from 2012 to 2013 primariliates to an $18.4 million increase in amortizatapense from the 2013 acquisitions of
the Homeward and ResCap fee-based businesse®12n\W&e incurred higher professional services qosisarily as a result of the Separation
of the Residential Asset Businesses.

Income from operations as a percentage of sereigenue was 36%, 40% and 42% for the years endeehier 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Income from operations as a pergentd service revenue declined in 2013 as a re$ldtver gross margins and higher
amortization expense from the 2013 Homeward anc€CRe$ee-based business acquisitions. In 2012riedoom operations as a percentage
of service revenue declined as gross margins dathmd SG&A grew at a higher pace than servicenmsveue to the 2012 costs associated
with the Separation of the Residential Asset Busses.

Financial Services

Revenut

Revenue by service line was as follows for the yesded December 31.:

% Increase % Increase
(in thousands) 2013 (decrease’ 2012 (decrease’ 2011
Service revenu
Asset recovery manageme $ 46,79¢ 58 $ 29,58: ) $ 37,37:
Customer relationship managem 45,68( 33 34,39’ 8 31,86(
Total service revenu 92,47¢ 45 63,97¢ (8) 69,23:
Reimbursable expense
Asset recovery manageme 47¢ (22) 54z (72) 1,95(
Total reimbursable expens 47¢ (12 543 (72) 1,95(
Total revenue $ 92,95¢ 44 $ 64,52 @ $ 71,18:
Transactions with related partie
Asset recovery manageme $ 2759 nNv 8 20¢€ (22 $_ 26¢

N/M — not meaningful.

We recognized service revenue of $92.5 milliontfer year ended December 31, 2013, a 45% increaspaced to the year ended

December 31, 2012 primarily due to increased chaffymortgage collections and growth in customéatienship management revenues from
the addition of two new clients during 2013 andangion of services provided to existing clientfie Thcreases were partially offset by lower
credit card charge-off placements
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from the continuing record low credit card delinqog rates. With respect to the charge-off mortdaggness, we expanded our capabilities i
connection with the ResCap fee-based businessattois, and in the second quarter of 2013, we begaviding these services to the ResCap
loans serviced by Ocwen and a greater portionebther loans in the Ocwen portfolio.

We recognized service revenue of $64.0 milliontfer year ended December 31, 2012, an 8% decreagsoed to the year ended

December 31, 2011 due to a decline in service evéom asset recovery management services. THael@as primarily due to the shift of
existing services for one of the segment’s largastomers to a lower cost geography with corresipgridwer fees from our customer for
these services and a decline in total placemerdasesult of lower credit card delinquencies. Rdiytioffsetting this decline, service revenue in
customer relationship management increased ovesaime periods. Our global delivery platform catssig highly trained specialists in
various geographic regions. The use of specialistertain countries may result in lower commissiates paid by clients but results in higher
margins principally due to the lower employee @tsicture.

Certain of our Financial Services businesses apadted by seasonality. Asset recovery manageraeenue tends to be higher in the first
quarter of each year as borrowers utilize tax réfusnd bonuses to pay debts.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenue consists of the following for tleags ended December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2013 (decrease’ 2012 (decrease’ 2011

Compensation and benef $ 41,80( 28 $ 32,70( 10 $ 29,76«
Outside fees and servic 4,401 (22) 5,59¢ (52 11,581
Reimbursable expens 47¢ (12 543 (72 1,95(C
Technology and telecommunicatic 7,704 7 7,221 @) 7,78¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 944 40 67% N/M 11
Cost of revenu $ 55,32¢ 18 $ 46,731 9 $ 51,09¢

N/M — not meaningful.

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 313 20$55.3 million increased by 18% compared toytsar ended December 31, 2012,
driven primarily by higher mortgage charge-off angtomer relationship management employees in ctionewvith new business. These
increases were partially offset by lower outsidesfand services.

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 32 80%$46.7 million decreased by 9% compared toythe ended December 31, 2011, dr
primarily by lower outside fees and services duth&reduction in account placements. In July 20dl purchased the assembled workforc

a sub-contractor in India that performs asset regoservices. For periods prior to the acquisitibe costs paid to the sub-contractor were
included in outside fees and services. Subsedadhe acquisition, these costs have been recadeatding to the nature of the expenses ant
are included in compensation and benefits and t@obg and telecommunications expenses (includex & of revenue ) or occupancy related
costs and other (included in SG&A).

Gross profit as a percentage of service revenuetds 28% and 29% for the years ended Decembé&(3B, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
2013, gross profit as a percentage of service tevarcreased due to growth of higher margin moegawrge-off and customer relationship
management services. In 2012, gross profit age@eptge of service revenue remained flat compax@611 as we actively worked to man
our cost structure in that period of declining mwe. We principally managed our cost structureugh a reduction in compensation and
benefit costs both through a reduction in overadidcount as well as expanding our use of our glwbskforce.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ardrime from Operations

We recognized SG&A of $15.6 million, $13.4 milliamd $15.6 million for the years ended Decembe813, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
SG&A increased in 2013 principally from a $3.8 moifi increase in amortization expense from the asitijom of the ResCap fee-based
businesses. In 2012, SG&A expenses decreasedgaligdrom lower costs as a result of shifting wam our global delivery platform and
from lower depreciation and amortization expenssed to assets no longer utilized by Financial/tges.

Income from operations as a percentage of sereienue was 24%, 7% and 6% for the years ended Dexe3t, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Income from operations as a pergentd service revenue increased in 2013 due tcehigloss margins and slower SG&A
growth, despite the increase in amortization expdrmsn the acquisition of the ResCap fee-basecdhbasi In 2012, income from operations a
a percentage of service revenue increased as B®&&A more than offset decreased gross margins.

Technology Services

Revenut

Revenue by service line was as follows for the yesded December 31.:

% Increase % Increase
(in thousands) 2013 (decrease’ 2012 (decrease’ 2011
Revenue
REALSuite and Equatc $ 67,31¢ 41 % 47,77¢ 25 $ 38,33¢
IT infrastructure service 36,57: 38 26,41¢ 49 17,75¢
Total revenue $ 103,89: 40 $ 74,18¢ 32 $ 56,09
Transactions with related partie
REALSuite and Equatc $ 34,03: 63 $ 20,89« 38 $ 15,16¢
IT infrastructure service 16,49¢ 59 10,35! 56 6,641
Total $ 50,52 62 $ 31,24¢ 413 $ 21,81:

We recognized service revenue of $103.9 milliontfieryear ended December 31, 2013, a 40% incresspased to the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily due to growth in Ocvgdoan servicing portfolio on REALServicing. Reveralso increased from the
November 15, 2013 acquisition of Equator. Eqt’s revenue for the period from November 15, 20¥8ulgh December 31, 2013 is included
in the Technology Services segment. IT infrastrieservices revenue increased in 2013 due toca@ase in cost to support strategic
initiatives and headcount growth at both Ocwen Altidource. IT infrastructure services are billeala cost plus basis. As such, the increase
in cost to support headcount growth in both Altimeuand Ocwen resulted in a corresponding incrieas®/enue in the Technology Services
segment.

We recognized service revenue of $74.2 milliontfer year ended December 31, 2012, a 32% increaspaced to the year ended
December 31, 2011 due to the growth in Ocwen'’s kmmwicing portfolio on REALServicing. An increaiseflood certification services to
Lenders One members also contributed to the inenee®012 compared to 2011. We began offeringdfloertification services in early 2011.
The increase in IT infrastructure services revanug012 reflects the growth experienced by our ijage Services segment and by Ocwen.

Services provided to our other segments are elimihia consolidation but are included as revenusénTechnology Services segment and as
technology and telecommunications expense, a coemati cost of revenue, in our other segments.
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Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenue consists of the following for tleags ended December 31:

% Increase % Increase
(in thousands) 2013 (decrease’ 2012 (decrease’ 2011
Compensation and benef $ 50,36¢ 89 $ 26,60: 71 $ 15,51¢
Outside fees and servic 1,92¢ 14 1,69( 132 727
Technology and telecommunicatic 20,54¢ 13 18,15¢ 21 14,99
Depreciation and amortizatic 11,69¢ 43 8,18: 45 5,634
Cost of revenu $ 84,53¢ 55 $ 54,63 48 $ 36,87«

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 313 20%$84.5 million increased by 55% compared toytsar ended December 31, 2012
primarily due to hiring more and higher cost persno support the development of our next genemd®EAL Suite software. We expect cost
of revenue in the Technology Services segmentdease as we continue to invest in personnel tpatipur development and growth
initiatives. In addition, we acquired Equator oavidmber 15, 2013 and recognized Equator’'s cosvaiue from the date of acquisition.
Depreciation and amortization increased in 2016harily as a result of our 2012 investment in a stisarecovery center. Outside fees and
services and technology and telecommunicationsiatseased consistent with the growth in headcount.

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 32 80$54.6 million increased by 48% compared toytkar ended December 31, 2011,
driven primarily by hiring more and higher costgminel to support the development of our next gditer REALSuite software, increased
technology and telecommunications costs from thitiadh of new facilities and the expansion of exigtfacilities. Outside fees and services
increased in 2012 as a result of the increasemauftertification services provided to Lenders @rambers. Technology and
telecommunications costs increased principally tdube addition of new facilities, expansion ofsixig facilities and increased licensing fees
for software to support our growth.

Gross profit as a percentage of service revenuel@¥s 26% and 34% for the years ended Decemb&038B, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
2013, gross profit as a percentage of service 1evdeclined as we continued to invest in the deweémnt of our next generation technologies.
Gross profit as a percentage of service revenulinddan 2012 as we experienced faster growth énldkver margin IT infrastructure services
and incurred higher costs in the development ofnext generation technology. We invest in the tgmaent of our next generation
technologies to support our continued expansiongaadth initiatives.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ardrme from Operations

We recognized SG&A of $12.4 million, $8.9 million&$4.9 million for the years ended December 3132@012 and 2011, respectively.
SG&A increased in 2013 principally from a $1.0 ioifl increase in amortization expense from the 2xisitions of the Homeward and
ResCap fee-based businesses and Equator, highatistdative employee costs and increased depreai&itom increased administrative
assets. In 2012, SG&A expenses increased prinduidyto an increase in occupancy costs.

Income from operations as a percentage of sereigenue was 7%, 14% and 26% for the years endechibece31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Income from operations as a pergened service revenue decreased in 2013 and 204 fodawer gross margins and higher
SG&A as described above.
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Corporate Items and Eliminations

Corporate Items and Eliminations include costs geced by us related to corporate support functinasiding executive, finance, legal,
human resources, vendor management, risk, opesheffiectiveness and interest expense. It alsaded eliminations of transactions between
the reporting segments.

Corporate costs for the year ended December 3B P@teased compared to the year ended Decemb&032,primarily due to higher
compensation and employee-related costs, consutteygeciation and amortization, lease costs ateddst expense. We incurred higher
compensation and employee-related costs as we éegaertain corporate functions in 2013 to supportcontinued growth. The higher
depreciation and amortization and lease costserédahe build out of new facilities to support @ontinued expansion. We reflect initial lease
and other facility-related costs in our Corporagraent until the facilities are approximately 4086upied by the business units, at which time
the cost is reflected in the respective segmeirtantial statements.

Corporate costs increased for the year ended Dezreddh 2012 compared to the year ended Decemb@031, primarily as a result of the
build-out of new facilities to support our growth.

Interest expense for the year ended December 3B, i28reased by $19.1 million from the $200 millgenior secured term loan borrowed in
the fourth quarter of 2012 and increased to $40Bomion May 7, 2013. Interest expense in 2012tes to the senior secured term loan was
recorded from the date of borrowing on November202,2 (no comparative amount in 2011).

We recognized interest income of $0.8 million foe tyear ended December 31, 2013 compared to $0idmfor the year ended December
2012 (no comparative amount in 2011) from a fogudhrter 2012 $75.0 million loan to Ocwen. Ocwepaid the loan in February 2013.

The amount of intercompany revenue eliminated msotidation increased over the three year peria@mecember 31, 2013 due to growth
in our operations over the same period. Thesecomepany transactions primarily consisted of ITrasfructure services as well as charges fol
the use of certain REALSuite applications from dachnology Service segment to our other two busisegments. While the expenses are
recognized in the Mortgage Services and Finan@alies segments above, the elimination of thepereses are reflected in Corporate Items
and Eliminations.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity

Our primary source of liquidity is cash flows fraperations. We seek to deploy excess cash gedénatdedisciplined manner. Principally,
intend to use excess cash to develop complemesgavices and businesses that we believe will gemeatiractive margins in line with our c
capabilities. Further, we evaluate potential asitjons that are aligned with our vision and cacederate the achievement of our strategic
objectives. We also intend to use excess cagtpiarchase shares of our common stock.

Senior Secured Term Loan

On November 27, 2012, we entered into a sevensador secured term loan agreement with Bank of daagN.A., as administrative agent,
and certain lenders, pursuant to which we borro$2aD million. On May 7, 2013, we amended the sesgcured term loan agreement to
increase the principal amount of the senior sectewd loan by $200 million and to provide additibslare repurchase capacity, among other
changes. Under the terms of the senior securedltam, as amended, we have the ability to bornoadditional $200 million under an
accordion provision. On December 9, 2013, we edtérto Amendment No. 2 (“Second Amendment”) togbrior secured term loan
agreement in which we incurred indebtedness iridiva of Refinancing Debt (as defined in the sesiecured term loan agreement), the
proceeds of which were used to refinance, in to#, $397.5 million of term loans outstanding unither senior secured term loan agreement
immediately prior to the effectiveness of the SetAdmendment. The Refinancing Debt bears intertelsineer rates and has a maturity date
approximately one year
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later than the prior term loans. Generally, thegimaapplied to either the Adjusted Eurodollar ratéhe Base Rate, as defined in the senior
secured term loan agreement, was reduced by lmeageepoint and the floor was reduced by 0.25 p¢age points. The Second Amendment
further modified the senior secured term loan agerd to, among other changes, increase the maxipaumitted amount of Restricted Junior
Payments (as defined in the senior secured termdgeeement), including share repurchases by thep@oy.

The refinanced term loans under the senior sederedloan agreement must be repaid in equal cotiseauarterly principal installments of
$1.0 million commencing on December 31, 2013, whthbalance due at maturity. After giving effecthe Second Amendment, all amounts
outstanding under the senior secured term loareagget will become due on the earlier of (i) Decenthe2020, being the seventh anniversar
of the closing date of the Second Amendment ahth@ date on which the loans are declared to leeadd owing by the administrative ager
the request (or with the consent) of the Requiredders (as defined in the senior secured termdgeeement) upon the occurrence of any
event of default under the senior secured term smpaement. However, if leverage ratios, as ddfinghe senior secured term loan agreer
exceed 2.75 to 1.00, a percentage of cash flow brugsed to repay principal. No mandatory prepayswere owed for the year ended
December 31, 2013. We are permitted to make vatyrgrepayments without penalty after June 9, 20l grepayments are made prior to
June 9, 2014, 1.0% of the principal amount of ttepaid term loan will be incurred. Interest payisare due monthly. The interest rate as o
December 31, 2013 was 4.50%.

The debt covenants in the senior secured termdgegement limit, among other things, our abilityrteur additional debt, pay dividends and
repurchase stock. Inthe event we require additiliquidity, our ability to obtain it may be lingtl by the senior secured term loan.

Cash Flows

The following table presents our cash flows forykars ended December 31:

% %
Increase Increase

(dollars in thousands) 2013 (decrease’ 2012 (decrease’ 2011
Net income adjusted for n-cash item: $  190,65! 31 $ 145,67. 51 $ 96,65’
Working capital (5,189 82 (29,149 N/M 14,95¢
Net cash flows provided by operating activit 185,47- 59 116,52 4 111,61:
Net cash flows used in investing activit (215,94) (95) (110,567 (239 (33,070
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financ

activities 55,29: (18) 67,41: 19¢ (68,55()
Net change in cas 24,82 (66) 73,37" N/M 9,991
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 105,50:. 22¢ 32,12¢ 45 22,13¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 130,32 24 $ 105,50 22¢ $ 32,12t

N/M — not meaningful.
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities generally denhsf the cash effects of transactions and evéatisfactor into the determination of net
income. For the year ended December 31, 2013 ewergted $185.5 million of cash flows from openagicor approximately $0.28 for every
dollar of service revenue compared to $116.5 mmiltd cash flows from operations, or approximate®y2$ per dollar of service revenue in
2012 and $111.6 million of cash flows from openasioor approximately $0.33 per dollar of servicgeraie in 2011. The increase in cash
flows from operating activities during 2013 compmhte 2012 is primarily due to the increase in nebime, after adding back depreciation and
amortization, including amortization of intangiléesets and favorable changes in working capitak ificrease in cash flows from operating
activities during 2012 compared to 2011 is prinyagiilie to the increase in net income, after addauk ldepreciation and amortization,
substantially offset by a decline in working capgieincipally due to higher accounts receivable.
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In periods of growth, operating cash flows per Bervevenue dollar can be negatively impacted mxafithe nature of some of our services.
Certain services are performed immediately follagyvim shortly after the referral, but the collectwfrthe receivable does not occur until a
specific event occurs (i.e., the foreclosure is plate, the REO asset is sold, etc.). As we coatinwgrow, our receivables will also grow and
our cash flows from operations may be negativelyanted when comparing one period to another.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

On March 29, 2013, we acquired the Homeward feedbasisiness from Ocwen for $75.8 million, afteraking capital and net income
adjustment. On April 12, 2013, we entered int@agreement with Ocwen to establish additional tenetegted to the existing servicing
arrangements between Altisource and Ocwen in cdiomewith Ocwen’s acquisition of certain mortgagevicing platform assets of ResCap.
The cash consideration paid by Altisource to Ocweder the ResCap agreement totaled $128.8 milkam November 15, 2013, we acquired
Equator for initial consideration of $63.4 milliamd up to $80 million in potential additional catesiation (the “Earn Out”).

On February 15, 2013, Ocwen repaid the $75.0 millian that was borrowed from us in December 201&pital expenditures for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $34idnp35.6 million and $16.4 million, respectiye Capital expenditures in 2013, 2(
and 2011 primarily related to facility build-outsdainvestments in infrastructure and the next gatiear of our REALSuite software

applications. Capital expenditures in 2012 alstuitled investments in a disaster recovery censdrabntinued, to a lesser degree, in 2013.

On March 31, 2013, we sold our 49% interest in €spondent One S.A. (“Correspondent One”) to Ocwe$12.6 million. During 2011, we
invested $15.0 million in Correspondent One.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash flows from financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2013 primarily included actigigociated with debt proceeds, debt
issuance costs, share repurchases, stock optiociseeeand payments to non-controlling intere§ia.May 7, 2013, we amended our senior
secured term loan agreement to increase the painaipount of the senior secured term loan by $2illlomand received $201.0 million,
including a $1.0 million original issue premium. eVdlso incurred debt issuance costs of $2.4 miliiasonnection with the amendment. On
December 9, 2013, we entered into the Second Amendthe proceeds of which were used to refinandel, the $397.5 million of term
loans outstanding and included an original isssedlint of $0.5 million. We incurred an addition@l&million of debt issuance costs in
connection with the Second Amendment. In 2013spent $141.0 million to repurchase our common séoukstock option exercises provis
proceeds of $6.9 million. Also during 2013, wear$3.5 million of the borrowings under the sersecured term loan and distributed $4.2
million to non-controlling interests.

Cash flows from financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2012 primarily included actigitgociated with debt proceeds, debt
issuance costs, the distribution of cash in conmeetith the Separation of the Residential AssetiBesses, share repurchases, stock option
exercises and payments to non-controlling intere®ts November 27, 2012, we entered into a $200omisenior secured term loan, which
included an original issue discount of $2.0 milliamd incurred related debt issuance costs of @lidn. A total of $105.0 million of the
senior secured term loan proceeds were distridntBs&cember 2012 in connection with the Separaticthe Residential Asset Businesses. In
2012, we spent $16.8 million to repurchase our comstock and stock option exercises provided pideeé $3.2 million. Also during 2012,
we distributed $7.1 million to non-controlling iméssts.

Cash flows from financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2011 primarily included actigigociated with share repurchases, stock
option exercises and payments to non-controllingrests. In 2011, we spent $62.2 million to repase our common stock, and stock option
exercises provided proceeds of $1.0 million. Adsoing 2011, we distributed $6.8 million to non-trofling interests.
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Liquidity Requirements after December 31, 2013

On November 15, 2013, we completed the acquis@fdbquator and paid $63.4 million at closing inttéset of closing working capital
adjustments), subject to certain post-closing adjaats based on current assets and current liabibf Equator at closing, to be settled within
90 days of the closing date. Additionally, the dhase and Sale Agreement (the “Purchase Agreenmt/)des for the payment of up to $80
million in potential additional consideration deténed based on Equator Adjusted EBITA (as defimetthé Purchase Agreement) in the three
consecutive 12-month periods following closing. td$22.5 million of this potential additional caderation can be earned in each of the firsi
two 12-month periods, and up to $35.0 million carelarned in the third 12-month period. Any amoeatsied upon the achievement of
Adjusted EBITA thresholds are payable through 200 may, in our discretion, pay up to 20% of epahment of any of this potential
additional consideration in shares of Company istt stock, with the balance to be paid in cash.

During the first quarter of 2014, we expect tordistte $0.7 million to the Lenders One membersesenting non-controlling interests.

Management is not aware of any other trends orteveammitments or uncertainties which have no¢tfise been disclosed that will or are
likely to impact liquidity in a material way (setsa “ Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingesitbelow).

We believe that we will generate sufficient casiw to fund operations, capital expenditures, megudebt, interest and Earn Out payments.
Were we to need additional capital, we believe Wi@have adequate access to both debt and eqpitalamarkets.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

We prepare our consolidated financial statemendés@ordance with GAAP. In applying many of theseoainting principles, we need to make
assumptions, estimates and judgments that affeaefiorted amounts of assets, liabilities, revemgeexpenses in our consolidated financial
statements. We base our estimates and judgmethistonical experience and other assumptions tledbelieve are reasonable under the
circumstances. These assumptions, estimates dgoh@nts, however, are often subjective. Actualltesnay be affected negatively based or
changing circumstances. If actual amounts armattly different from our estimates, the revisians included in our results of operations for
the period in which the actual amounts become knowie have identified the critical accounting p@cand estimates addressed below. We
also have other key accounting policies, which imedhe use of assumptions, estimates and judgntiegitare significant to understanding our
results. For additional information, see Note #him consolidated financial statements. Althoughbelieve that our assumptions, estimates
and judgments are reasonable, they are based ofpomation presently available. Actual results ndiffer significantly from these estimates
under different assumptions, judgments or condition

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from the services we providecordance with the Financial Accounting Stansl@wolard’'s (“FASB”) Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 60Bevenue RecognitidhASC Topic 605”). ASC Topic 605 sets forth guidanas to when revenue is realized
or realizable and earned which is generally wheaofahe following criteria are met: (1) persuasasdence of an arrangement exists; (2)
delivery has occurred or services have been peddri(8) the seller’'s price to the buyer is fixeddeterminable; and (4) collectability is
reasonably assured. Generally, the contract teonthese services are relatively short in durgtaond we recognize revenue as the services &
performed either on a per unit or a fixed priceidas

At Mortgage Services, we recognize revenue fontlagority of the services we provide in this segmmmtompletion of the service to our
customers. For default processing services andingrtoperty preservation services, we recognizemee over the period during which we
perform the related services, with full recognitmmcompletion of the related foreclosure filingowor closing of the related real estate
transaction. We record revenue associated withestate sales on a net basis as we perform seascms agent without assuming the risks an
rewards of ownership of the asset and the commmissaoned on the sale is a fixed percentage.
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At Financial Services, we generally earn our f@esabset recovery management services as a pegeasftthe amount we collect on delinqu
consumer receivables and charged-off mortgagegbalbof our clients and recognize revenue upotectibn from the debtors. We also earn
fees for packaging and selling charged-off mortgaa®d recognize revenue after the sale of the moig®nce the risks and rewards of the
mortgage notes are transferred to the purchasemsddition, we provide customer relationship mamagnt services for which we earn and
recognize revenue on a per-call, per-person onpeute basis as the related services are performed.

At Technology Services, we charge fees for our RE4ite platform based on the number of our clieloizhs processed on the system or on g
per-transaction basis. We record transactionamee when the service is provided and other reverarghly based on the number of loans
processed, employees serviced or services providéa provide IT infrastructure services to Ocwed #@s subsidiaries, HLSS, Residential i
AAMC and charge for these services primarily basedhe number of employees that are using the g systems and the number and-

of licensed products used by Ocwen and its subgidiaHLSS, Residential and AAMC. We record reveas®ociated with implementation
services upon completion and maintenance rataldy the related service period. For Equator’s safénapplications, we recognize revenue
from arrangements with multiple deliverables inadance with ASC Subtopic 605-F8evenue Recognition: Multiple-Element Arrangement
(*ASC 605-25"), and Securities and Exchange ComimisStaff Accounting Bulletin Topic 1Revenue RecognitidhSAB Topic 13”). ASC
605-25 and SAB Topic 13 require each deliverabliwia multiple-deliverable revenue arrangemerte¢@ccounted for as a separate unit if
both of the following criteria are met: (1) the idefed item or items have value to the customea standalone basis and (2) for an arrange
that includes a general right of return relativéh®e delivered item(s), delivery or performancéhaf undelivered item(s) is considered probable
and substantially in the seller’s control. Delafgles not meeting the criteria for accounting tresit as a separate unit are combined with a
deliverable that meets that criterion. Equatoiv@srits revenue from platform services fees, msifinal services fees and other services.
Equator does not begin to recognize revenue fafgpia services fees until these fees become béladd the services fees are not fixed and
determinable until such time. Platform servicessfare recognized ratably over the shorter ofaima bf the contract with the customer or the
minimum cancellation period. Professional serviees consist primarily of configuration servicetated to customizing the platform for
individual customers and are generally billed &sttburs are worked. Due to the essential and alpesti nature of the configuration services,
these services do not qualify as separate unasa@junting separate from the platform servicebasi¢livered services do not have value t
customer on a standalone basis. Therefore, thtetefees are recorded as deferred revenue uafiirtiject configuration is complete and then
recognized ratably over the longer of the termhefagreement or the estimated expected custoraerQither services consist primarily of
training, including agent certification, and congg services. These services are generally spdrately and are recognized as revenue as t
services are performed and earned.

Significant areas of judgment include the periodrovhich we recognize property preservation revenesdain default management services
revenue, certain insurance program managemenafekthe determination of fair value for certainnirastructure services we provide Ocwen
and its subsidiaries, HLSS, Residential and AAM@anagement considers historical information ancetothird party objective evidence on a
periodic basis in determining the appropriate rereerecognition.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets
Goodwill

We evaluate goodwill for impairment annually durihg fourth quarter or more frequently when an ewecurs or circumstances change that
indicates the carrying value may not be recoveraldfe first assess qualitative factors to determahether it is more likely than not that the
fair value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgang value as a basis for determining whether eednto perform the quantitative two-step
goodwill impairment test. Only if we determineskd on qualitative assessment, that it is mordylikean not that a reporting unit’s fair value
is less than its carrying value will we calculdte fair value of the reporting unit. We would theat goodwill for impairment by first
comparing the book value of net assets to thevidire of the reporting units. If the fair valuedistermined to be less than the book value, a
second step is performed to compute the amoumpdirment as the difference between the estimateddlue of goodwill and the carrying
value. We estimate the fair value of the reportings using discounted cash flows. Forecastsitoié cash flows are based on our estimate «
future sales and operating expenses, based pynoariéstimated pricing, sales volumes, market saegstere, cost trends and
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general economic conditions. Certain estimatafisufounted cash flows involve businesses with &ohfinancial history and developing
revenue models.

Based on the fourth quarter 2013, 2012 and 201litgie and quantitative analyses, managementladed no impairment was indicated
given that the fair value for the associated reépgrinits was substantially in excess of the boalki& and n o impairments of goodwill were
recorded for the years ended December 31, 2012, &3d 2011.

Identifiable Intangible Asse

Identified intangible assets consist primarily astomer relationships, acquired trade names addrrarks. We perform tests for impairment
if conditions exist that indicate the carrying v&lmay not be recoverable. When facts and circurostaindicate that the carrying value of
intangible assets determined to have definite limag not be recoverable, management assessestiverability of the carrying value by
preparing estimates of cash flows of discrete igitsle assets consistent with models utilized feernal planning purposes. If the sum of the
undiscounted expected future cash flows is legss ik carrying value, we would recognize an impaintrto the extent the carrying amount
exceeds fair value. Based on the fourth quart&B2R012 and 2011 cash flow analyses prepared bpagesent for certain of the intangible
assets, no impairments of intangible assets wegrded for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2011.

Acquisitions

For those acquisitions that meet the definitiom dlusiness combination, we allocate the purchase,pncluding any contingent consideration,
to the assets acquired and the liabilities assuah#tkir estimated fair values as of the date efatbquisition with any excess of the purchase
price paid over the estimated fair value of neetsacquired recorded as goodwill. The fair vaifihe assets acquired and liabilities assumet
is typically determined by using either estimateseplacement costs or discounted cash flow valnatethods. When determining the fair
value of tangible assets acquired, we estimatedheto replace the asset with a new asset takingcdbnsideration such factors as age,
condition and the economic useful life of the ass&hen determining the fair value of intangiblsets acquired, we estimate the applicable
discount rate and the timing and amount of fut@ghdlows, including rate and terms of renewal attidtion. The determination of the final
purchase price and the fair values on the acquisdtate of the identifiable assets acquired aruilii@s assumed may extend over more than
one period and result in adjustments to the preknyi estimate recognized.

Accounting for Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes principally in Lukenrg, the United States, India and the Philippin@ignificant judgment is required in
evaluating our tax positions and determining owwvgion for income taxes. During the ordinary cmiof business, there are many transac
and estimates for which the ultimate tax deternmatnay vary from year to year. For example, dteative tax rates could be adversely
affected by lower than anticipated earnings in ¢toes where we have lower statutory rates and higte anticipated earnings in countries
where we have higher statutory rates, by changfséngn currency exchange rates or by changdseimelevant tax, accounting and other
laws, regulations, principles and interpretatioii¢e are subject to audits in various taxing judidns, and such jurisdictions may assess
additional income tax during an examination. Aligh we believe our tax balances are sufficienufgpsrt our future tax liabilities, the final
determination of tax audits and any related lifgatould differ from the balances we have accrued.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adoptedgwdance on goodwill impairment testing that sifi@d how an entity tests goodwill for
impairment. This new guidance allows an entitfinst assess qualitative factors to determine et is more likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrysiadue as a basis for determining whether it néegrform the quantitative two-step goodwill
impairment test. Only if an entity determines,dzhen qualitative assessment, that it is moreyiken not that a reporting unit’s fair value is
less than its carrying value will it be requirecctdculate the fair value of the reporting unitheTqualitative
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assessment is optional and the Company is perntdtbgpass it for any reporting unit in any peramt begin its impairment analysis with the
guantitative calculation. In 2013, the Companyedwined that, based upon the qualitative assesstherfair value of its reporting units’
goodwill was not less than the carrying valuese Tompany is permitted to perform the qualitatissessment in any subsequent period.

Future Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance on the dssck requirements for unrecognized tax benefita,mortion of an unrecognized tax
benefit. This new guidance requires the Comparprésent an unrecognized tax benefit as a redutdiardeferred tax asset for a net opere
loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a taxdarearryforward, with some exceptions. This navidgnce is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning aRecember 15, 2013. We do not anticipate a maierfzact on our consolidated financial
statements as a result of this guidance.

OTHER MATTERS

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our off-balance sheet arrangements consist of esanal trust arrangements and operating leases.

We hold customers’ assets in escrow and trust ats@i various financial institutions pending coetjan of certain real estate activities. We
also hold cash in trust accounts at various fir@nastitutions where contractual obligations maedaaintaining dedicated bank accounts for
Financial Services collections. These amounthalein escrow and trust accounts for limited pasiof time and are not included in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Amdfdsin escrow and trust accounts were $71.8 millind $47.2 million at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingenies

Our long-term contractual obligations generallyliie our long-term debt and operating lease paysmamtertain of our property and
equipment. The following table sets forth infornoatrelating to our contractual obligations as ot&maber 31, 2013:

Payments due by perioc

Less than More than
(in thousands) Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Non-cancelable operating lease obligati $ 34,40¢ $ 9,14: $ 1559: $ 9,563¢ $ 13¢
Long-term debt 396,50: 3,97t 7,95( 7,95( 376,62
Contractual interest paymer® 119,70: 17,77¢ 35,01/ 34,29¢ 32,61:
Total $ 550,61 $ 30,89 $ 58,55¢ $ 51,78 $ 409,37!

(M Represents estimated future interest payments iosenior secured term loan based on applicablesistteates as of December 31, 2013.
For further information, see Notes 13 and 21 tocihresolidated financial statements.
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Related Parties
Ocwen

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arld 2@lgenerated Mortgage Services segment reveoime@cwen and its subsidiaries of
$424.0 million, $306.8 million and $223.2 milliorespectively. For the years ended December 313,212 and 2011, we generated
Financial Services segment revenue from Ocwentarglibsidiaries of $27.6 million, $0.2 million a$@.3 million, respectively. Also, for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, mezaged Technology Services segment revenue froneand its subsidiaries of $5(
million, $31.2 million and $21.8 million, respectly. Services provided to Ocwen and its subsiegduring this period included residential
property valuation, real estate asset managemergales, trustee management services, propertgdtisp and preservation, insurance
services, charge-off mortgage collections, corbrietogy back office support and multiple busineshhologies including our REALSuite of
products. We provided all services at rates webelto be comparable to market rates.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid @@&lbilled Ocwen and its subsidiaries $2.6 mil)i$2.7 million and $2.6 million,
respectively, and Ocwen and its subsidiaries bilie&2.9 million, $2.4 million and $1.9 million,seectively, for support services such as
human resources, vendor management, corporatesgraperational effectiveness, quality assuraqeantitative analytics and treasury. See
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statementgutiher information. These amounts are refleegdomponents of SG&A in the consolid:
statements of operations.

On December 27, 2012, we entered into a seniorcunse term loan agreement with Ocwen pursuant ichwiie loaned $75.0 million to
Ocwen. Interest income related to this loan ferybars ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was f0chrand $0.1 million, respectively (r
comparative amount in 2011). On February 15, 2@k3ven repaid the entire outstanding principal amaf this loan plus all accrued and
unpaid interest and the term loan was terminafiéte interest rate at December 31, 2012 was 8.25é&. Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements for further information.

On January 31, 2013, we entered into non-binditigrie of intent with Ocwen to acquire certain feesdd businesses associated with Ocwen’:
acquisitions of the Homeward and the ResCap seyigortfolios. Ocwen acquired the Homeward semg@ortfolio on December 27, 2012
and the ResCap servicing portfolio on February2083. Altisource acquired the Homeward fee-basesihiesses from Ocwen on March 29,
2013 for $75.8 million, after a working capital amet income adjustment. Altisource entered intagmreement with Ocwen on April 12, 2013
to establish additional terms related to our sewin connection with the ResCap fee-based busisessl paid Ocwen $128.8 million for the
ResCap fee-based businesses. See Note 5 to thalidated financial statements for further inforimat

Correspondent One and HLSS

In July 2011, we acquired an equity interest inr€gpondent One. On March 31, 2013, we sold our ##8fest in Correspondent One to
Ocwen for $12.6 million. For the years ended Deoen31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, we billed Correspan@ee less than $0.1 million, $0.4
million and $0.1 million, respectively. We alsmpided certain origination related services to €spondent One. We earned revenue of $0..
million and $0.3 million for the years ended DecemB1, 2013 and 2012, respectively, for these sesvino comparative amount in 2011).

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 201RBilleg HLSS $0.7 million and $0.6 million, respemtiy (no comparative amount in 2011)
for services under a support services agreemedmselamounts are reflected as a component of S@&teiconsolidated statements of
operations.

Residential and AAM!

Residential and AAMC were established, capitaliaed their equity was distributed to our sharehalaer December 21, 2012 and each are
separate publicly traded companies (tt&eparation of the Residential Asset Busine§yseSor the year ended December 31, 2013, wedille
Residential $2.6 million, and we billed AAMC le$smh $0.1 million under services and support sesvaggeements (no comparative amounts
in 2012 and 2011).
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Market Risk

Our financial market risk consists primarily oféngst rate risk and foreign currency exchange risk.
Interest Rate Ris

As of December 31, 2013, the interest rate chaogeithe senior secured term loan was 4.50%. Tleedst rate is calculated based on the
Adjusted Eurodollar Rate (as defined in the sesémured term loan agreement) with a minimum flddr.00% plus 3.5%.

Based on the principal amount outstanding at Deeerdb, 2013, a 1 percentage point increase in tinedollar rate would increase our annua
interest expense by approximately $0.7 million dobgn the December 31, 2013 Adjusted Eurodollae Rat

Foreign Currency Exchange Ri

We are exposed to currency risk from potential glearin currency values of our foreign currency adeinated assets, liabilities and cash
flows. Our most significant foreign currency expas relate to the Euro and Indian Rupee; howéerhalances in Euros and Indian Rupees
on our consolidated balance sheets are immaterial.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Alticce Portfolio Solutions S.A.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.Ad anbsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related cdasedl statements of operations, consolidated seasnof equity, and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2@®13. These financial statements are the respbtysdf the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateta@eferred to above present fairly, in all matieréspects, the financial position of AltisoL
Portfolio Solutions S.A. and subsidiaries as of @aber 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of tipeirations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31,20 conformity with accounting principles gerraccepted in the United States of
America.

As discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company has entered into sigmifitansactions with Ocwen Financial
Corporation, a related party.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2013, based on the criteria establish&utérnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatudrike Treadway Commission and our report datdaieey 13, 2014 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal cohtiver financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLI
Atlanta, Georgit
February 13, 201
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Alticce Portfolio Solutions S.A.:

We have audited the internal control over finanglorting of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.Adsubsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishedeémal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camijzamanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financi
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigsrd internal control over financial reportingelided in the accompanying Management
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti@yir responsibility is to express an opinion o& @ompanys internal control over financi
reporting based on our audits.

As described itManagement’s Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting, management excluded from its assessment thaahter
control over financial reporting at Equator, LLChiash was acquired on November 15, 2013 and whosadial statements constitute 17% of
total assets and less than 1% of revenues andawhe attributable to Altisource of the consoliddieancial statement amounts as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2013. Accordinglyaadit did not include the internal control overdincial reporting at Equator, LLC.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&/nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corax@r financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we comsldercessary in the circumstances. We believethiadudit provides a reasonable basis
our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons pemiorg similar functions, and effected by the compapard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anlget preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles. A company’s internaitcol over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertainéariaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactions@eded as necessary to permit preparatio
of financial statements in accordance with gengrdtepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are bein
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngan@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peoxédsonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asitjon, use, or disposition of the company’s assleat could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods ateébject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotisat the degree of compliance with the polideprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fingl reporting as of December 31, 2013,
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifribe
Treadway Commission

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year endszeBber 31, 2013 of the Company and our reportidagbruary 13, 2014 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statememd mcluded an explanatory paragraph regardingfsignt transactions with Ocwen Financ
Corporation, a related party.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLI
Atlanta, Georgit
February 13, 201
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Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Prepaid expenses and other current a
Deferred tax assets, r
Total current asse

Premises and equipment, |
Deferred tax assets, r
Intangible assets, n

Goodwill

Investment in Correspondent O
Loan to Ocwer

Other asset

Total asset

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Current portion of lon-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligatic
Deferred revenu
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portir
Other nor-current liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Equity:

ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31

Common stock ($1.00 par value; 100,000 shares améh 25,413 issued and 22,629 outstanding as
of December 31, 2013; 25,413 issued and 23,42 Tamdlimig as of December 31, 20:

Additional paic-in-capital
Retained earning

Treasury stock, at cost (2,784 shares as of Deae®ih@013 and 1,986 shares as of December

2012)
Altisource equity

Non-controlling interest:
Total equity

Total liabilities and equit

2013 2012
ASSETS
$ 130,32 $ 105,50;
101,29 88,95t
11,38¢ 7,61¢
2,837 1,77¢
245,84 203,85
87,25: 50,39
622 4,07:
276,16: 56,58t
97,37t 14,91
— 12,72¢
— 75,00(
17,58( 11,67
$ 72483% $ 429,221
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
$ 79,49 $ 58,97
3,97¢ 2,00(
— 232
36,74 2,48:
10,13 7,941
130,34( 71,63:
391,28: 196,02
45,47¢ 1,73¢
25,41 25,41
89,27 86,87
239,56: 124,12
(197,549 (77,959
156,69 158,45
1,04z 1,37(
157,74: 159,82
$ 72483 $ 429,221

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 3:

2013 2012 2011

Revenue $ 768,35 $ 568,36( $ 423,68
Cost of revenu 492,48( 366,20 275,84¢
Gross profit 275,87 202,15¢ 147,83t
Selling, general and administrative exper 113,81( 74,71 62,13:
Income from operation 162,06 127,44 85,70%
Other income (expense), n

Interest expens (20,29) (1,210 (85)

Other income (expense), r 557 (1,58¢) 28€

Total other income (expense), | (19,739 (2,799 203

Income before income taxes and -controlling interest: 142,33: 124,64¢ 85,91(
Income tax provisiol (8,540) (8,73°%) (7,949
Net income 133,79: 115,91: 77,96°
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: (3,820) (5,289 (6,85%)
Net income attributable to Altisour: $ 129,970 $ 110,620 $ 71,11¢
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 5.6 $ 474 % 2.97

Diluted $ 5.1¢ $ 44 $ 2.71
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 23,07: 23,35¢ 24,37

Diluted 25,05¢ 24,96 25,68¢
Transactions with related parties included ab

Revenue $ 502,08 $ 338,22° % 245,26

Selling, general and administrative exper 2,921 2,43( 1,89:

Other income 778 86 —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance, January 1, 20.

Net income

Contributions from non-controlling interes
holders

Distributions to non-controlling interest
holders

Sharebased compensation expel

Exercise of stock optior

Repurchase of shar

Balance, December 31, 20

Net income

Contributions from non-controlling interest
holders

Distributions to non-controlling interest
holders

Net assets distributed in connection with
Separation of the Residential Asset
Businesse

Sharebased compensation expel

Exercise of stock optior

Repurchase of shar

Balance, December 31, 20

Net income

Contributions from non-controlling interest
holders

Distributions to non-controlling interest
holders

Sharebased compensation expel

Exercise of stock optior

Repurchase of shar

Balance, December 31, 20

ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Consolidated Statements of Equity
(in thousands)

Additional Treasury stock Non-
paid-in Retained controlling
Common stock capital earnings at cost interests Total
Shares

2541 $ 2541: $ 79,297 $ 5854t $ (14,419 $ 3,06( $ 151,89
— — 71,11 — 6,85¢ 77,96°
— — — — — 49 49
_ — — — — (6,776) (6,776)
— — 3,93: — — — 3,93:
— — — (3,499 4,521 — 1,02¢
— — — — (62,15 — (62,15))

25,41 25,41 83,22¢ 126,16 (72,049 3,18¢ 165,94.
— — — 110,62 — 5,28¢ 115,91:
— — — — — 43 43
— _ — — — (7,145 (7,145
— — — (105,000 — — (105,000
— — 3,64¢ — — — 3,64¢
— — — (7,66)) 10,87t — 3,21«
— — — — (16,787 —  (16,78)

25,41 25,41 86,87: 124,12 (77,959 1,37( 159,82¢
— — — 129,97 — 3,82( 133,79
— — — — — 28 28
_ _ — — — (4,176 (4,176
— — 2,40( — — — 2,40(
— — — (14,539 21,42¢ — 6,88t
_ — — — (141,019 — (141,019

2541 $ 2541 $ 89,27 $23956. $ (19754) $ 1,047 $ 157,74

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

For the years ended December 3:
2013 2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 133,79: $ 11591. $ 77,967
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by

operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 19,05¢ 12,77¢ 8,351
Amortization of intangible asse 28,17¢ 5,03( 5,291
Shar~-based compensation expel 2,40( 3,64¢ 3,932
Equity in losses of and impairment loss on investinie affiliate 17¢ 1,741 53C
Bad debt expens 2,54¢ 3,04¢ 967
Amortization of debt discour 22¢ 27 —
Amortization of debt issuance co: 95¢ 57 —
Deferred income taxe 2,01t 2,992 (381)
Loss on sale or disposal of fixed as: 1,30¢ 44E —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, naetqtiisitions
Accounts receivabl (5,602 (39,999 81z
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (2,81%) (2,616 747
Other asset (1,586 2,17z (4,892
Accounts payable and accrued expel 7,381 11,65: 14,76(
Other current and n«current liabilities (2,557 (352 3,521
Net cash flows provided by operating activit 185,47- 116,52¢ 111,61:
Cash flows from investing activitie
Additions to premises and equipm (34,139 (35,567 (16,447
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu (267,94¢) (2,51Y)
Investment in equity affiliat (50 — (15,000
Proceeds from sale of equity affilic 12,64¢ — —
Proceeds from loan to Ocw 75,00( — —
Loan to Ocwer — (75,000 —
Change in restricted ca (1,467) — 887
Net cash flows used in investing activit (215,94, (110,56 (33,070)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of l-term deb! 200,50: 198,00( —
Repayment of lor-term debi (3,49¢) — —
Distribution of cash in connection with the Sepamabf the Residential Asset
Businesse — (105,000 —
Debt issuance cos (3,200 (4,319 —
Principal payments on capital lease obligati (239) (60%) (69€)
Proceeds from stock option exerci: 6,88t 3,21¢ 1,02¢
Purchases of treasury stc (141,019 (16,787 (62,157
Contributions from nc-controlling interest: 28 43 49
Distributions to no-controlling interest: (4,17¢) (7,145 (6,776
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing\dtiés 55,29: 67,41 (68,55()
Net increase in cash and cash equival 24,82: 73,37 9,991
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofdheq 105,50:. 32,12¢ 22,13¢
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the p $ 130,32: $ 105,50 $ 32,12¢
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Interest paic $ 19,32 $ 1,132 $ 83
Income taxes paid (refunded), | 3,671 4,912 (1,956
Non-cash investing and financing activitit
Amortization of ta-deductible goodwil — 3,33¢ 3,361
Premises and equipment purchased on act 4,552 2,457 —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A., together with subsidiaries, (which may be referred to asisalirce,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” or
“our”) is a premier marketplace and transactiomgohs provider for the real estate, mortgage arsemer debt industries offering both
distribution and content. We leverage proprietauginess process, vendor and electronic paymenageament software and behavioral scit
based analytics to improve outcomes for marketpbectcipants.

We conduct our operations through three reporteggrents: Mortgage Services, Financial ServicesTaotinology Services. In addition, we
report our corporate related expenditures and eétions as a separate segment (see Note 22 fecapt®n of our business segments).

Basis of Presentation— Our consolidated financial statements includeatbsets, liabilities, revenue and expenses diratiljoutable to our
operations. All significant intercompany and irs@gment transactions and accounts have been atediin consolidation.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting— The consolidated financial statements are prepiaraccordance with accounting principles gengraticepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP").

Principles of Consolidation— The financial statements include the accounts®Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and ¢hergtities
in which we have a variable interest and are tiragoy beneficiary. Intercompany balances and @etisns have been eliminated.

The Mortgage Partnership of America, L.L.C. (“MPA8 wholly-owned subsidiary of Altisource, serveste manager of Best Partners
Mortgage Cooperative, Inc. (‘BPMC") doing businassLenders One Mortgage Cooperative (“Lenders ON&PA provides services to
Lenders One under a management agreement thabemdiscember 31, 2025. MPA acts on behalf of Len@gre and its members principally
to provide its members with education and trairalang with revenue enhancing, cost reducing andketahare expanding opportunities. For
providing these services, MPA receives payments frenders One, and in some instances the vendassdlupon the benefits achieved for
the members. The management agreement provideswitiRAroad powers such as recruiting members &rders One, collection of fees
other obligations from members of Lenders One, ggsing of all rebates owed to Lenders One, dayayoegeration of Lenders One and
negotiation of contracts with vendors includingrsiy contracts on behalf of Lenders One.

The management agreement between MPA and LenderspOrsuant to which MPA is the management comp@ihenders One, represents a
variable interest in a variable interest entityPMis the primary beneficiary of Lenders One dsai the power to direct the activities that mos
significantly impact Lenders One’s economic perfarmpe and the obligation to absorb losses or th tigreceive benefits from Lenders One.
As a result, Lenders One is presented in the acaowipg consolidated financial statements on a dateded basis with the interests of the
members reflected as non-controlling interestsDé&tember 31, 2013, Lenders One had total ass&&.®&imillion and liabilities of $3.5
million. At December 31, 2012, Lenders One hadltassets of $2.3 million and liabilities of $1.@lion.

Use of Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in comfity with GAAP requires estimates and assumptibias affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revemageexpenses, and related disclosures of contitigeilities in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes. Estimatesadefor, but not limited to, determining share-ldasempensation, income taxes,
collectability of receivables, valuation of acquiri@tangibles and goodwill, depreciable lives a&fil assets and contingencies. Actual results
could differ materially from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents— We classify all highly liquid instruments with aniginal maturity of three months or less at tineet of
purchase as cash equivalents.
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement&Continued)

Accounts Receivable, Net— Accounts receivable are net of an allowance @axdful accounts that represents an amount thastimate to
be uncollectible. We have estimated the allowdacdoubtful accounts based on our historical woitis, our analysis of past due accounts
based on the contractual terms of the receivalbld®ar assessment of the economic status of otwroess, if known. The carrying value of
accounts receivable, net, approximates fair value.

Premises and Equipment, Net— We report premises and equipment, net at cosstimated fair value at acquisition and depredtaee
assets over their estimated useful lives usingtiaght-line method as follows:

Furniture and fixture 5 years

Office equipmen 5 years

Computer hardwar 5 years

Computer softwar 3-7 years

Leasehold improvemen Shorter of useful life, 10 years or the term of leeese

Maintenance and repair costs are expensed aséagcuwe capitalize expenditures for significant ioygments and new equipment and
depreciate the assets over the shorter of theatiapidl asset’s life or the life of the lease.

We review premises and equipment for impairmentnelier events or changes in circumstances indibatdtie carrying amount of an asse
asset group may not be recoverable. We measueaebility of assets to be held and used by coimpawof the carrying amount of an asset
or asset group to estimated undiscounted futuite fbaws expected to be generated by the assetset geoup. If the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group exceeds its estimated fuasteflows, we recognize an impairment charge ferattmount that the carrying value of the
assets exceeds the fair value of the asset or greagd.

Computer software includes the fair value of sofenacquired in business combinations and purchsesfiédlare. Purchased software is
recorded at cost and amortized using the straigatrhethod over its estimated useful life. Softwacquired in business combinations is
recorded at its fair value and amortized usingsth&ight-line method over its estimated useful litaging from two to three years.

Business Combinations— We account for acquisitions using the purchasthatkof accounting in accordance with the Finan&tatounting
Standards Board’s Accounting Standards Codificafi&$C”) Topic 805,Business CombinationsThe purchase price of an acquisition is
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilitissim&d using the fair values as of the acquisitate.d

Investment in Equity Affiliates — We utilize the equity method to account for inwmesnts in equity securities where we have thetghidi
exercise significant influence over operating andricial policies of the investee. We include egartionate share of losses of equity method
investees in equity losses of affiliates, net whghncluded in other income (expense), net inaiesolidated statements of operations. We
review investments in equity affiliates for an attiean temporary impairment whenever events ouaistances indicate that the carrying ve

is greater than the value of the investment andio®is other than a temporary decline.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acdjlnusiness over the fair value of the identifighlegible and intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business auatibn. We evaluate goodwill for impairment aniyiar more frequently when an event
occurs or circumstances change that indicate ligatarrying value may not be recoverable. We éissess qualitative factors to determine
whether it is more likely than not that the faitueof a reporting unit is less than its carryiredue as a basis for determining whether we neec
to perform the quantitative two-step goodwill inypaént test. Only if we determine, based on oulitpive assessment, that it is more likely
than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is l&san its carrying value will we calculate the fe@ue of the reporting unit. We test goodwill for
impairment by first comparing the book value of assets to the fair value of the reporting unifshe fair value is determined to be less than
the book value, a second step is performed to ctertpe amount of impairment as the difference betwle estimated fair value of goodwill
and the carrying value. We estimate the fair valiune reporting units using discounted cash floverecasts of future cash flows are base
our estimate of future sales and operating expebssgd primarily on estimated pricing, sales vasymarket segment share, cost trends an
general economic conditions.
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement&Continued)

We conduct our annual impairment assessment aswdémiber 30 each year. No impairments of goodwillenrecorded for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Intangible Assets, Net —ldentifiable intangible assets acquired in busireesabinations are recorded based on their fairegbt the date of
acquisition. We determine the useful lives of m@ntifiable intangible assets after considering gpecific facts and circumstances related to
each intangible asset. Factors we consider whemmndiming useful lives include the contractual tevhany arrangements, the history of the
asset, our long-term strategy for use of the as#bther economic factors. We amortize intangaskets that we deem to have definite lives
on a straight-line basis over their useful livesnerally ranging from 5 to 20 years.

We perform tests for impairment if conditions extsit indicate the carrying value may not be recalvie. When facts and circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of intangible éssketermined to have definite lives may not bevecable, management assesses the
recoverability of the carrying value by preparirggimates of cash flows of discrete intangible assensistent with models utilized for internal
planning purposes. If the sum of the undiscouetqebcted future cash flows is less than the cagryalue, we would recognize an impairment
to the extent the carrying amount exceeds fairezaBased on the fourth quarter 2013, 2012 and 2844 flow analyses prepared by
management for certain of the intangible assetémpairments of intangible assets were recordedhf®ryears ended December 31, 2013, :
and 2011.

Debt Issuance Costs —Bebt issuance costs are capitalized and amortizeddrest expense through maturity of the reldielt using the
effective interest method.

Long-Term Debt — Long-term debt is reported net of applicable distourhe debt discount is amortized to interesease through maturity
of the related debt using the effective interestimog.

Fair Value Measurements— Our financial assets and liabilities primarilcinde cash and cash equivalents, restricted caisty;term debt

and acquisitiorrelated contingent consideration. Cash and casivalgnts and restricted cash are carried at arsdhat approximate their fe
value due to the shoteérm nature of these instruments. The fair valas determined by level 1 of the three level hidraestablished by AS
Topic 820,Fair Value Measurementusing quoted prices in active markets for idextissets. The carrying amount of long-term debt
approximates fair value due to the variable interg®. The fair value was determined by level thefthree level hierarchy in ASC Topic 820
using inputs other than quoted prices that arerebbée, either directly or indirectly. The carrgiamount of acquisition-related contingent
consideration, related to the acquisition of EqudtbC (“Equator”) on November 15, 2013 (see Nojedpproximates fair value due to the
recent closing of the transaction and purchase @llocation calculations. The fair value was dateed by level 3 of the three level hierarchy
in ASC Topic 820 using unobservable inputs thatsagported by little or no market activity and that significant to the fair value of the
assets or liabilities.

The Company may be required to pay up to $80 miliiopotential additional consideration under therts of the Equator Purchase and Sale
Agreement based on Equator Adjusted EBITA (as éefin the Purchase and Sale Agreement) in the tdanegecutive 12-month periods
following closing. Acquisition-related contingerdnsideration was initially measured and recordddiavalue as an element of consideration
paid in connection with an acquisition, with anypsequent adjustments recognized in operating eepanghe consolidated statements of
operations. The Company determines the fair vafsquisition-related contingent consideratiord any subsequent changes in fair value,
using a discounted probability-weighted approathis approach takes into consideration level 3 seolable inputs including probability
assessments of expected future cash flows overdtied in which the obligation is expected to bitlee and applies a discount factor that
captures the uncertainties associated with thgatitin. Changes in these unobservable inputs cghificantly impact the fair value of the
liabilities recorded in the accompanying consokddabalance sheets and operating expenses in thelictaited statements of operations. As of
December 31, 2013, the Company estimates the @dlie Equator acquisition-related contingent cdesition required payments to be $46.C
million.

Functional Currency — The currency of the primary economic environnamhich our operations are conducted is the UnBtates dollar.
Therefore, the United States dollar has been datedrio be our functional and reporting currendlon-United States dollar transactions and
balances have been measured in United Statessdmilaccordance with ASC Topic 83®reign Currency MattersAll transaction gains and
losses from the
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement&Continued)

measurement of monetary balance sheet items deatadim non-United States dollar currencies afectfd in the statement of operations as
income or expenses, as appropriate.

Defined Contribution 401(k) Plan— Some of our employees currently participate defined contribution 401(k) plan under which we may
make matching contributions equal to a discretipmercentage determined by us. We recorded exm#r&®4 million, $0.2 million and $0.1
million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20®2011, respectively, related to our discretipmanounts contributed.

Share-Based Compensation —-Share-based compensation is accounted for underalesions of ASC Topic 71&ompensation — Stock
Compensation Under ASC Topic 718, the cost of employee sesviegeived in exchange for an award of equity imsénmts is generally
measured based on the grant-date fair value aiwlzed. Share-based awards that do not requiresfetrvice are expensed immediately.
Share-based employee awards that require futuveceeatre recognized over the relevant service gerkeurther, as required under ASC Topic
718, we estimate forfeitures for share-based awhatsare not expected to vest.

Earnings Per Share— We compute earnings per share (“EPS”) in accaréavith ASC Topic 260zarnings Per Share Basic net income
per share is computed by dividing net income atteble to Altisource by the weighted average nundbshares of common stock outstanding
for the period. Diluted net income per share fiehe assumed conversion of all dilutive se@siti

Revenue Recognition— We recognize revenue from the services we provigecordance with ASC Topic 60Bevenue RecognitiolASC
Topic 605 sets forth guidance as to when reventesized or realizable and earned, which is géiyardnen all of the following criteria are
met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangementsex®y delivery has occurred or services have Ipegformed; (3) the seller’s price to the
buyer is fixed or determinable; and (4) collecti#tpiks reasonably assured. Generally, the conteants for these services are relatively short ir
duration, and we recognize revenue as the seraigegerformed either on a per unit or a fixed phiasis. Specific policies for each of our
reportable segments are as follows:

Mortgage Services We recognize revenue for the majority of thevieers we provide in this segment on completiorhefgervice to our
customers. For default processing services andingstoperty preservation services, we recognizemee over the period during which we
perform the related services, with full recognitimmcompletion of the related foreclosure filingoor closing of the related real estate
transaction. We record revenue associated withestate sales on a net basis as we perform seasc®s agent without assuming the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset and the cesion earned on the sale is a fixed percentagentiResable expenses of $102.0
million, $95.6 million and $80.1 million incurredf the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and &8ddectively, are included in
revenue with an equal offsetting expense includexbst of revenue primarily related to our propg@mgservation and default processing
services. These amounts are recognized on a lgasss principally because we have complete contret selection of vendors and the
vendor relationship is with us, rather than witlt oustomers.

Financial Services We generally earn our fees for asset recovenyaga@ament services as a percentage of the amouctdllget on
delinquent consumer receivables and charged-offgages on behalf of our clients and recognize neeermpon collection from the debtors.
We also earn fees for packaging and selling chaafiechortgages and recognize revenue after theafdlge notes and once the risks and
rewards of the mortgage notes are transferrecetptinchasers. In addition, we provide custometti@iship management services for
which we earn and recognize revenue on a pergmtiperson or per-minute basis as the relatedcesrare performed.

Technology ServicesFor our REALSuite platform, we charge basedhmniumber of our clients’ loans processed on tetegyor on a
per-transaction basis. We record transactionalme¥evhen the service is provided and other revemughly based on the number of loans
processed, employees serviced or services providethermore, we provide information technologyf ()l infrastructure services to Ocw
Financial Corporation (“Ocwen”) and its subsidiarielome Loan Servicing Solutions, Ltd. (“HLSS") tidburce Residential Corporation
(“Residential”) and Altisource Asset Managementiwation (“AAMC”) and charge for these serviceaatily based on the number of
employees that are using the applicable systemsha@ntumber and type of licensed products useddwye@ and its subsidiaries, HLSS,
Residential and AAMC. We
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record revenue associated with implementation sesvilpon completion and maintenance ratably oeerelated service period.

For Equator’s software applications, we recogn&eenue from arrangements with multiple deliverabtesccordance with ASC Subtopic
605-25,Revenue Recognition: Multiple-Element Arrangem@®WSC 605-25"), and Securities and Exchange ComimisStaff Accounting
Bulletin Topic 13,Revenue RecognitidiSAB Topic 13”). ASC 605-25 and SAB Topic 13 raégueach deliverable within a multiple-
deliverable revenue arrangement to be accounteakfarseparate unit if both of the following cideare met: (1) the delivered item or ite
have value to the customer on a standalone bagi@afior an arrangement that includes a geneght of return relative to the delivered
item(s), delivery or performance of the undeliveiteth(s) is considered probable and substantialthé seller’s control. Deliverables not
meeting the criteria for accounting treatment asfarate unit are combined with a deliverablerniests that criterion. Equator derives its
revenue from platform services fees, professioamnlises fees and other services. Equator doelsagi to recognize revenue for platform
services fees until these fees become billabltheaservices fees are not fixed and determinaltiesuch time. Platform services fees are
recognized ratably over the shorter of the terrthefcontract with the customer or the minimum cHatien period. Professional services
fees consist primarily of configuration servicelated to customizing the platform for individualstomers and are generally billed as the
hours are worked. Due to the essential and sjsmithature of the configuration services, theseices do not qualify as separate units of
accounting separate from the platform servicebasltlivered services do not have value to theomest on a standalone basis. Therefore,
the related fees are recorded as deferred revartili¢he project configuration is complete and tlieoognized ratably over the longer of
term of the agreement or the estimated expectadroes life. Other services consist primarily @itring, including agent certification, and
consulting services. These services are genevaltyseparately and are recognized as revenue agthices are performed and earned.

Income Taxes— We account for certain income and expense itdffexrently for financial purposes and income taxgmses. We recognize
deferred income tax assets and liabilities for¢hgifferences between the financial reporting bast the tax basis of our assets and liabilities
as well as expected benefits of utilizing net opegaloss and credit carryforwards. The most sigaift temporary differences relate to accruec
compensation, amortization and loss and crediyf@wards. We measure deferred income tax asseétfiailities using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yeavshith we anticipate recovery or settlement of éhtmmporary differences. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a changedirrates is recognized in income in the periodmthe change is enacted. Deferred tax assets
are reduced by a valuation allowance when it isenfigely than not that some portion or all of thefetred assets will not be realized.

Tax laws are complex and subject to different pitetations by the taxpayer and respective govertahtaxing authorities. Significant
judgment is required in determining tax expenseiar@laluating tax positions including evaluatingartainties under ASC Topic 74
Income Taxe.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncem

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adoptedgwdance on goodwill impairment testing that sifigd how an entity tests goodwill for
impairment. This new guidance allows an entitfingt assess qualitative factors to determine it is more likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrysiadue as a basis for determining whether it néeqgrform the quantitative two-step goodwill
impairment test. Only if an entity determines,dzhen qualitative assessment, that it is moreyiken not that a reporting unit’s fair value is
less than its carrying value will it be requirecctculate the fair value of the reporting unithelqualitative assessment is optional and the
Company is permitted to bypass it for any reporting in any period and begin its impairment anialygth the quantitative calculation. In
2013, the Company determined that, based uponuhlitative assessment, the fair value of its repgranits’ goodwill was not less than the
carrying values. The Company is permitted to penfthe qualitative assessment in any subsequeioicper

Future Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncen

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardaildssued guidance on the disclosure requirenfientsirecognized tax benefits, or a
portion of an unrecognized tax benefit. This newdgnce requires the Company to present an unrezagjtax benefit as a reduction to a
deferred tax asset for a net operating loss camal, a
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similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward, wi#ome exceptions. This new guidance is effe¢tivéiscal years, and interim periods within
those years, beginning after December 15, 2013.ddVmot anticipate a material impact on our comnlstéd financial statements as a result of
this guidance.

3. SEPARATION OF RESIDENTIAL ASSET BUSINESSES

On December 21, 2012, we completed the spin-offayofwholly-owned subsidiaries, AAMC and Residehfiato separate publicly traded
companies (the “Separation of the Residential ABsstnesses”).

Altisource shareholders of record as of DecembePQT2 received a pro rata distribution of:

« one share of Residential common stock for evemetlshares of Altisource common stock held;
e one share of AAMC common stock for every ten shafedltisource common stock held and
*  received cash in lieu of Residential and AAMC fractl shares.

We eliminated the assets and liabilities of Redidéand AAMC from our consolidated balance shéfsative at the close of business on
December 21, 2012. As Residential and AAMC wenreetippment stage companies and had not commencedtiops at the date of
separation, these entities had no historical residiloperations.

The carrying value of the net assets transferredlitiyource was as follows:

(in thousands) Residential AAMC Total
Cash $ 100,00 $ 5,00 $ 105,00(
Reduction in Altisource retained earnir $ 100,00( $ 500 $ 105,00

We incurred $2.7 million of expenses for the yaatesl December 31, 2012 representing salaries t@@iceamployees who became employees
of AAMC after the separation (included in cost e¥enue) and advisory expenses (included in selljegeral and administrative expenses)
incurred in connection with the Separation of tlesiBential Asset Businesses. These expenses &rdeddn our Mortgage Services segment.

Impact on Shar-Based Compensation

The exercise price of each outstanding stock opifolitisource was adjusted to reflect the valudRekidential and AAMC common stock
distributed to Altisource shareholders. On the sapan date, all holders of Altisource stock opsarceived the following:

»  stock options (issued by Residential and AAMC)¢quare the number of shares of Residential or AAd@mon stock equal to the
product of (a) the number of Altisource stock opsidield on the separation date and (b) the disimibuatio of 1 share of Residential
common stock for every 3 shares of Altisource comsitock and 1 share of AAMC stock for every 10 shaf Altisource common
stock and

* an adjusted Altisource stock option, with a redueeercise price per stock option.
4. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Ocwen
Ocwen, together with its subsidiaries, is our latgistomer. Our Chairman is also the Chairmadavfen. Ocwen is contractually obligated
to purchase certain mortgage services and techygleyices from us through August 2025 under thmdeof a master services agreement an

amendments to the master services agreement (dlgcthe “Service Agreements”). In connectioithwour acquisition from
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Ocwen of the fee-based businesses of Homeward &gl Inc. (‘Homeward”) that closed on March 2913 and the acquisition from
Ocwen related to the fee-based businesses of Réisid€apital, LLC (“ResCap”) that closed on AptR, 2013 (see Note 5), our Service
Agreements with Ocwen were amended to extend theftem 2020 to 2025. Further, as part of the angnts, we are the exclusive prov

of services to Ocwen with respect to the HomewaiResCap servicing portfolios, and Ocwen agre¢doestablish similar fee-based
businesses that would directly or indirectly conepeith Altisource’s services with respect to thentéavard and ResCap businesses. We sett
amounts with Ocwen on a daily, weekly or monthlgibalepending upon the nature of the service arahwie service is provided.

Related party revenue consists of revenue earmedtlyi from Ocwen and its subsidiaries and revesar@ed from the loans serviced by Oc\
and its subsidiaries when Ocwen designates usasetivice provider. We earn additional revenuéherportfolios serviced by Ocwen and its
subsidiaries that are not considered related pavtgnue when a party other than Ocwen selectsodilti® as the service provider. Related
party revenue as a percentage of segment and atsd revenue was as follows for the years endszeDber 31:

2013 2012 2011
Mortgage Service 71% 68% 72%
Financial Service 30% <1% <1%
Technology Service 49% 42% 39%
Consolidated revent 65% 60% 58%

We record revenue we earn from Ocwen and its siaivigd under various longgrm servicing contracts at rates we believe tmbeket rates
they are consistent with one or more of the follogvithe fees we charge to other customers for coabpservices, the fees Ocwen pays to
other service providers and fees charged by oupetitors.

Support Services

We have support services agreements with Ocweiitsindbsidiaries. These services include suchsaasduman resources, vendor
management, corporate services, operational effretss, quality assurance, quantitative analytidstreeasury. Payment for the services
provided is based on the fully-allocated cost @vjiling the service based on an estimate of the &imd expense of providing the service. Fol
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2@lLhilled Ocwen and its subsidiaries $2.6 millio, Zmillion and $2.6 million,
respectively, and Ocwen and its subsidiaries bille&2.9 million, $2.4 million and $1.9 million,gectively, for services provided under these
agreements. These amounts are reflected as a centpafrselling, general and administrative expemséise consolidated statements of
operations.

Unsecured Term Loan

On December 27, 2012, we entered into a seniorcunse term loan agreement with Ocwen under whicthoared $75.0 million to Ocwen.
Payments of interest were due quarterly at a rat@apnum equal to the Eurodollar Rate (as defingde agreement) plus 6.75%, provided tha
the Eurodollar Rate shall at no time be less th&0%. On February 15, 2013, Ocwen repaid the adénhg principal amount of $75.0 millic
plus all accrued and unpaid interest and the team Was terminated. Interest income related ®lti@in was $0.8 million and $0.1 million for
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, resgec¢ho comparative amount for 2011).

Transactions Related to FBased Businesses

On January 31, 2013, we entered into non-binditigrie of intent with Ocwen to acquire certain fesdd businesses associated with Ocwen’:
acquisitions of the Homeward and ResCap servicorfglios. Ocwen acquired the Homeward servicingfplio on December 27, 2012 and
the ResCap servicing portfolio on February 15, 20ABisource acquired the Homeward fee-based lassies from Ocwen on March 29, 2013
(see Note 5). Altisource entered into an agreemvé@htOcwen on April 12, 2013 to establish addiibterms related to our services in
connection with the ResCap fee-based businessed(te 5).
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Correspondent One® and HLSS"

In July 2011, we acquired an equity interest inr€gpondent One S.A. (“Correspondent One”) (see M@}Ye Correspondent One purchased
closed conforming and government guaranteed retsad@emortgages from approved mortgage bankersMarch 31, 2013, we sold our 49%
interest in Correspondent One to Ocwen for $12I8ami Under a support services agreement, we pexviCorrespondent One certain finar
human resources, legal support, facilities, teabgyl vendor management and risk management serniemsthe years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, we billed Correspondent Csretlean $0.1 million, $0.4 million and $0.1 milliaespectively. We also provided certain
origination related services to Correspondent ONe. earned revenue of $0.1 million and $0.3 milfionthe years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively, for these services (no evatjye amount in 2011).

HLSS is a publicly traded company whose primaneotiye is the acquisition of mortgage servicinditggand advances. In connection with
the February 2012 HLSS initial public offering asubsequent thereto, HLSS acquired mortgage segvieiated assets from Ocwen. Our
Chairman is also the Chairman of HLSS. Under gstiservices agreement, we provide HLSS certaanite, human resources and legal
support services. For the years ended Decemb@03B,and 2012, we billed HLSS $0.7 million andéh@illion, respectively (no comparati
amount in 2011).

These amounts are reflected as a component afgeafieneral and administrative expenses in theotiolased statements of operations.
Residential and AAMC

Residential and AAMC were established, capitaliaed their equity was distributed to our sharehalaer December 21, 2012 and are each
separate publicly traded companies. Residestifmldused on acquiring and managing single fanaiftal properties by acquiring portfolios of
sub-performing and non-performing residential magig loans throughout the United States. AAMC iasset management company
providing portfolio management and corporate goaeae services to Residential. Our Chairman isthlis&hairman of Residential and
AAMC.

For purposes of governing certain ongoing relatigms between Altisource, Residential and AAMC after Separation of the Residential
Asset Businesses, and to provide for an orderhsttmn, we entered into certain agreements witkidmtial and AAMC. We have agreeme
to provide Residential with renovation managemiegise management and property management senlicaddition, we have agreements
with Residential and AAMC to provide support seedgesuch as finance, human resources, legal sufgalities, technology, vendor
management and risk management. Further, we legagate agreements for certain services relatedtoone tax matters, trademark licenses
and technology products and services. For thegeded December 31, 2013, we billed Residentid 8tllion, and we billed AAMC less
than $0.1 million, under these agreements (no coatipa amounts in 2012 and 2011).

5. ACQUISITIONS
Homeward Fee-Based Businesses

On March 29, 2013, we acquired certain fee-bassihbsses associated with Ocwen’s acquisition of éleand. As part of the acquisition,
Ocwen agreed not to develop similar fesed businesses that would directly or indiresiypete with services provided by Altisource rek
to the Homeward servicing portfolio. Additionallye terms of our service agreements with Ocweraarended to extend the term from
2020 to 2025 (see Note 4). We paid $75.8 millafter a working capital and net income adjustméitld.1 million, for the Homeward fee-
based businesses. From the acquisition date thidegember 31, 2013, we recorded service reven#$&@g.8 million and we estimate piae«
income is $24.3 million related to these businesses

Since the acquisition date, management adjusteprédieninary purchase price allocation and assigresibciated asset lives based upon
information that has become available. In additmthe working capital adjustment, we also redymeanises and equipment by $1.2 million
based on a post-acquisition detailed analysis fbfvaoe licenses received. The purchase price ailoc and assessment of asset lives will
continue to be revised as additional
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information about the fair value of assets andiliitds becomes available. Such assessment mustrneleted within 12 months from the
acquisition date.

The preliminary adjusted allocation of the purchpisee is estimated as follows:

(in thousands)

Premises and equipme $ 1,55¢
Customer relationshi 75,60¢
77,16¢
Accounts payable and accrued expet (1,35)
Purchase pric $ 7581

Estimated

life

(in years)
Premises & equipmel 3-5
Customer relationshi 7

ResCap Fee-Based Businesses

On April 12, 2013, we entered into an agreemertt @itwen to establish additional terms related ¢oetkisting servicing arrangements
between Altisource and Ocwen in connection withaiamrmortgage servicing platform assets of Res@sm“‘ResCap Business”). The Service
Agreements provide that (i) Altisource will be tieclusive provider, except as prohibited by appliedaw, to Ocwen of certain services
related to the ResCap Business, (i) Ocwen willegiablish similar fee-based businesses that wditddtly or indirectly compete with
Altisource’s services as they relate to the RedBaginess and (iii) Ocwen will market and promote thilization of Altisource’s services to
their various third party relationships. Additidigathe parties agreed to use commercially reastenest efforts to ensure that the loans
associated with the ResCap Business are boardedhtirgource’s mortgage servicing platform. Wec&iL28.8 million ($80.0 million on

April 12, 2013 and $48.8 million on May 10, 2018j the ResCap fee-based businesses. From the iioguitate through December 31, 2013,
we recorded service revenue of $59.4 million andeaténate pre-tax income is $19.9 million relatedhese businesses.

We acquired no tangible assets and assumed nbitiggbin connection with the acquisition. Howeyveertain employees as well as practices
and processes developed to support the ResCapisgrpbrtfolio were components of the transactivie accounted for this transaction as a
business combination in accordance with ASC Topk:. 8

Management prepared a final purchase price allotaind assigned associated asset lives based vaitabe information at the time of the
agreement and through the date of filing. The emgent consideration of $128.8 million was fullyoatted to the customer relationship
intangible asset with an estimated average uséubfl 7 years.

Equator Acquisition

On November 15, 2013, we completed the acquisidfall of the outstanding limited liability compaimyterests of Equator pursuant to the
previously reported Purchase and Sale Agreemeat @t of August 19, 2013 (the “Purchase Agreemeiiysuant to the terms of the
Purchase Agreement, we paid $63.4 million at ctpsincash (net of closing working capital adjustisgnsubject to certain post-closing
adjustments based on current assets and currbiititas of Equator at closing, to be settled witli0 days of the closing date. Additionally,
the Purchase Agreement provides for the paymeup o6 $80 million in potential additional considéoa (the “Earn Out”). The Earn Out
consideration is determined based on Equator AeluEBITA (as defined in the Purchase Agreementf)érthree consecutive 12-month
periods following closing. Up to $22.5 million dfe¢ Earn Out consideration can be earned in eattfedirst two 12-month periods, and up to
$35.0 million can be earned in the third 12-morehigd.
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Any amounts earned upon the achievement of AdjusBdd A thresholds are payable through 2017. We ,nragur discretion, pay up to 20%
of each payment of any Earn Out consideration areshof Company restricted stock, with the baldad#e paid in cash. From the acquisition
date through December 31, 2013, we recorded semi@nue of $7.5 million, and pre-tax loss is $hibion.

The preliminary adjusted allocation of the purchpisee is estimated as follows:

(in thousands)

Accounts receivabl $ 9,29:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 954
Premises and equipme 16,97
Customer relationships and trade nai 43,39:
Goodwill 82,46(
Other nor-current asset 242

Assets acquire 153,31t
Accounts payable and accrued expet (7,239
Deferred revenu (36,689

Liabilities assume: (43,92)
Purchase pric $ 109,39

The Equator purchase price includes the fair vafitee Earn Out of $46.0 million, determined basadhe present value of
future estimated Earn Out paymer

Estimated
life
(in years)
Premises and equipment (excluding internally depexdiosoftware 3-5
Internally developed software (included in premiaed equipment 7
Customer relationshiy 7-1E
Trade name 4

The following tables present the unaudited pro foansolidated results of operations as if the Heand, ResCap Business and Equator
transactions had occurred at the beginning of éinkest period presented.

Year ended
December 31, 2013
(in thousands, except per share amount: As reported Pro forma
Revenue $ 768,35 $ 854,09t
Net income attributable to Altisour: 129,97: 132,90°
Earnings per sha— diluted 5.1¢ 5.31
Year ended
December 31, 2012
(in thousands, except per share amount: As reported Pro forma
Revenue $ 568,36( $ 781,83«
Net income attributable to Altisour: 110,62° 129,22!
Earnings per sha— diluted 4.4z 5.1¢

The unaudited pro forma information presents thraltioed operating results of Altisource and the Haarel, ResCap Business and Equator
transactions. The Homeward, ResCap Business amat@&cpperating results were derived from theitdnisal financial statements for the m
comparable periods available. The results pridhéo
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acquisition dates have been adjusted to includerihéorma impact of the adjustment of amortizatiéithe acquired intangible assets based o
the preliminary purchase price allocations, theustiijent of interest expense reflecting the pordbour $200 million senior secured term loan
increased to $400 million on May 7, 2013, and Anmeadt No. 2 to the senior secured term loan agreedaed as of December 9, 2013 usec
in the Homeward, ResCap Business and Equator tamiss and to reflect the impact of income taxeshenpro forma adjustments utilizing
Altisource’s effective income tax rate in each pdmpresented.

The unaudited pro forma results are presentedlfstrative purposes only and do not reflect addil revenue opportunities, the realization o
any potential cost savings and any related integratosts. Certain revenue opportunities and saghgs may result from the transactions an
the conversion to the Altisource model; howevegréhcan be no assurance that these revenue opfiegamd cost savings will be achieved.
These pro forma results do not purport to be irttieaof the results that would have actually bebtamed if the transactions occurred as of th
beginning of each of the periods presented, nthreigro forma data intended to be a projectiorestiits that may be obtained in the future.

6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net consists of the followaisgof December 31;

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Billed
Non-related partie $ 39,58¢ $ 25,95(
Ocwen 11,41( 19,81"
Correspondent Or — 27
HLSS 83 162
AAMC 1,34 14
Residentia 547 —
Other receivable 1,642 353
54,617 46,32«
Unbilled
Non-related partie 42,28¢ 39,49¢
Ocwen 10,027 6,371
Correspondent Or — 32
106,92¢ 92,22¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun (5,637 (3,279
Total $ 101,29 $ 88,95

Unbilled fees consist primarily of asset managenaadtdefault management services for which we mgizegevenues over the service deliy
period but bill following completion of the service
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A summary of the allowance for doubtful accountt, af recoveries, for the years ended Decembe2@®13, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

(in thousands)

Balance, January 1, 20. $ 2,132
Bad debt expens 967
Recoveries (54)
Write-offs (999
Balance, December 31, 20 2,047
Bad debt expens 3,04¢
Recoveries (22
Write-offs (1,80))
Balance, December 31, 20 3,27¢
Bad debt expens 2,54¢
Recoveries (22)
Write-offs 17y
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 563

7. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expenses and other current assets cohtist following as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2013 2012

Maintenance agreements, current por $ 4,60C $ 3,63¢
Income taxes receivab 1,64t 1,81«
Prepaid expenst 4,191 1,64(
Other current asse 952 52¢
Total $ 11,38¢ $ 7,61¢

8. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Premises and equipment, net, which include amaentsded under capital leases, consists of theviiilig as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Computer hardware and softwz $ 103,400 $ 68,32¢
Office equipment and oth: 28,057 15,59:
Furniture and fixture 8,391 5,34¢
Leasehold improvemen 17,57¢ 12,98:
157,42: 102,24
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (70,170 (51,84%)
Total $ 87,25 $ 50,39¢

Depreciation and amortization expense, inclusiveapital lease obligations, amounted to $19.1 amilli$12.8 million and $8.4 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ctasghe, and is included in cost of revenue for gtimg assets and in selling, general
administrative expenses for non-operating assdtsimccompanying consolidated statements of apesat
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9. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Goodwill

Goodwill primarily relates to the acquisitions afiator, MPA, Springhouse, LLC and Tracmail. Chanigegoodwill during the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized below:

Mortgage Financial Technology
(in thousands) Services Services Services Total
Balance, January 1, 2012 and December 31, $ 10,91¢ $ 2,37¢ $ 1,61¢ $ 14,91t
Acquisition of Equato — — 82,46( 82,46(
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,91¢ $ 2,37¢ % 84,07¢ $ 97,37¢

Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets relate to our acquisitions oftbemeward and ResCap fee-based businesses, Equ&arand Nationwide Credit, Inc.
(“NCI") (see Note 5). No impairment charges weaken during the periods presented.

Intangible assets, net consist of the followingBBecember 31, 2013 and 2012:

Weighted
average
estimated Accumulated
useful life Gross carrying amount amortization Net book value
(dollars in thousands) (years) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Definite lived intangible asse
Trademark: 14 $ 1224¢ $ 1061¢ $ (453) $ (4,060 $ 7,71¢ $ 6,55¢
Custome-related intangible asse 10 284,48: 38,36¢ (44,209 (18,567)(a) 240,27t 19,79¢
Operating agreeme 20 35,00( 35,00( (6,859 (5,109 28,14¢ 29,89¢
Non-compete agreeme 4 1,30( 1,30( (1,275) (96%) 25 337
Total $ 333,03 $ 8528 $ (56,87) $ (28,69) $ 276,16 $ 56,58

(a) Prior to our acquisition of NCI in 2007, NCI comigd an acquisition which created tax-deductibledyal that amortizes for tax
purposes over time. When we acquired NCI in 20@¥recorded a lesser amount of goodwill for finahoéporting purposes than what
had previously been recorded at NCI for tax purpo$ais difference between the amount of goodwitiorded for financial reporting
purposes and the amount recorded for taxes igeefto as “Component 2" goodwill and resulted im mcording periodic reductions first
to our book goodwill balance in our consolidatethficial statements. As our book goodwill balance fully written off at December 31,
2010, we continued to amortize the remaining Compb@ goodwill for United States tax purposes ldugeng certain intangible assets
the remaining tax benefits of the Component 2 galbdw they are realized in our tax returns. Téa@uction in intangible assets was $3.3
million and $3.4 million for the years ended DecemB1, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Component 2gilowas fully amortized in
2012.

Amortization expense for definite lived intangilslesets was $28.2 million, $5.0 million and $5.3iomlfor the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Expected aramaltization for 2014 through 2018, is $44.2 miili $40.3 million, $34.4 million, $29.1
million and $24.0 million, respectively.
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10. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY AFFILIATES
Correspondent One purchased closed conforming eveligment guaranteed residential mortgages fromoapd mortgage bankers. Prior to
the sale of our interest in Correspondent One twedoon March 31, 2013 (see Note 4), we had sigmifilmfluence over the general operati

of Correspondent One consistent with our 49% owniptgvel, and therefore, accounted for our investtrunder the equity method. On
March 31, 2013, we sold our 49% interest in Comesient One to Ocwen for $12.6 million.

Our loss in equity affiliates was $0.2 million, $Imillion and $0.5 million for the years ended Daber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectiy
In the first quarter of 2013, we anticipated emtgiinto an agreement to sell all of our equity iegt in Correspondent One to Ocwen for
approximately $12.7 million. As a result, we recagtch $0.6 million impairment loss as of December2Bil 2, representing the difference
between the expected sales price and the carrglug as of December 31, 2012. The loss was indludnin loss in equity affiliates in other
income (expense), net in the consolidated statesvdrdperations.

11. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following as of Decarlie

(in thousands) 2013 2012

Security deposits, ni $ 7,291 % 5,01¢
Debt issuance costs, r 6,681 4,26(
Maintenance agreements, I-current portior 1,46¢ 1,61«
Restricted cas 1,62( 15¢
Other 517 623
Total $ 17,58( $ 11,67«

Debt issuance costs of $3.2 million and $4.3 milleere capitalized for the years ended Decembe2®ll3 and 2012, respectively, in
connection with issuing and refinancing our longrtelebt (see Note 13).

In connection with the acquisition of Equator (dlste 5), we executed a standby letter of credihénamount of $1.5 million, secured by a
restricted cash balance.

12. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist ébitbwing as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2013 2012

Accounts payabl $ 11,60C $ 5,07¢
Accrued expense- genera 21,547 16,52¢
Accrued salaries and benel 29,80¢ 19,61
Income taxes payab 11,21 8,75(
Payable to Ocwe 5,322 8,86¢
Payable to AAMC 7 141
Total $ 79,49: $ 58,97¢
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Other current liabilities consist of the followiag of December 31.:

(in thousands) 2013 2012

Book overdrafts $ 423z $ 5,22¢
Other 5,89¢ 2,712
Total $ 10,13 $ 7,941

13. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following as of Daber 31.:

(in thousands) 2013 2012

Senior secured term lo: $ 396,50 $ 200,00(
Less: unamortized discount, (1,249 1,979
Net lon¢-term deb 395,25t¢ 198,02
Less: current portio (3,979 (2,000
Long-term debt, less current porti $ 391,28: $ 196,02°

On November 27, 2012, we entered into a senioredderm loan agreement, as subsequently amendéd3ank of America, N.A., as
administrative agent, and certain lenders, pursteawhich we borrowed $200 million. The seniorwged term loan was issued with a 1.0%
original issue discount of $2.0 million, resultimgnet proceeds of $198.0 million (the “Initial Reeds”), with the Company and certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries acting as guarantordéctively, the “Guarantors”).

The Initial Proceeds were used to capitalize Residieand AAMC (see Note 3), and also to pay caerfags, commissions and expenses in
connection with the senior secured term loan agesemThe Initial Proceeds were also used for géroarporate purposes, including
acquisitions and investments permitted under thessecured term loan agreement.

On May 7, 2013, we amended the senior securedltenmagreement to increase the principal amoutiteosenior secured term loan by $200
million (the “Incremental Term Loan”), which wasiged with a $1.0 million original issue premiunmsuking in gross proceeds to the
Company of $201.0 million.

The Incremental Term Loan was used to fund a podfdhe Company’s previously announced transadtiin Ocwen related to the ResCap
servicing portfolio (see Note 5), with the remainttebe used for stock repurchases and for generpbrate purposes, including additional
acquisitions. The Incremental Term Loan was ak&duo pay certain fees, commissions and expensesmnection with the Incremental Te
Loan. The Company paid costs associated withrtbeeinental Term Loan of $2.4 million, which werearled as debt issuance costs in othe
assets in the accompanying consolidated balan@tsshe

Additionally, the Incremental Term Loan amendedd@erior secured term loan agreement to, among ollaarges, provide for an additional
$200 million incremental term loan facility accasdiborrowings and increase the maximum amount sfrRéed Payments (as defined in the
senior secured term loan) that may be made byakiding increasing the amount of Company sharercdases permitted.

On December 9, 2013, we entered into an Amendmen2‘Second Amendment”) to the senior secureth tean agreement in which we
incurred indebtedness in the form of Refinancingt{as defined in the senior secured term loanesgeat), the proceeds of which were used
to refinance, in full, the $397.5 million of termans outstanding under the senior secured termagaaement immediately prior to the
effectiveness of the Second Amendment. The RefingrDebt bears interest at lower rates and haatarity date approximately one year
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later than the prior term loans. The Second Ameardrfurther modified the senior secured term logie@ment to, among other changes,
increase the maximum permitted amount of Restridtedor Payments (as defined in the senior sederedloan agreement), including share
repurchases by the Company.

The refinanced term loans under the senior sederedloan agreement must be repaid in equal cotiseauarterly principal installments of
$1.0 million commencing on December 31, 2013, withbalance due at maturity. After giving effexthie Second Amendment, all amounts
outstanding under the senior secured term loareagget will become due on the earlier of (i) Decenthe2020, being the seventh anniversar
of the closing date of the Second Amendment ahth@ date on which the loans are declared to leeadd owing by the administrative ager
the request (or with the consent) of the Requiredders (as defined in the senior secured termdgeeement) upon the occurrence of any
event of default under the senior secured term &mpaement.

In addition to the scheduled principal payments,Refinanced Debt is (with certain exceptions) scijo mandatory prepayment upon
issuances of debt, casualty and condemnation esadtsales of assets, as well as from a percenfageess cash flow (as defined in the
senior secured term loan agreement) if the leveratie (as defined in the senior secured term bgneement) is greater than 2.75 to 1.00. Nc
mandatory prepayments were owed for the year ebéedmber 31, 2013. We are permitted to make vatymirepayments without penalty
after June 9, 2014. If prepayments are made fwidune 9, 2014, a fee of 1.0% of the principal am@f the prepaid term loans will be
incurred.

After giving effect to the Second Amendment, altloé term loans outstanding under the senior sdderen loan bear interest at rates based
upon, at our option, the Adjusted Eurodollar Ratéhe Base Rate (each as defined in the senioregéerm loan agreement). Adjusted
Eurodollar Rate loans bear interest at a rate peura equal to the sum of (i) the greater of (x)Aldgusted Eurodollar Rate for the applicable
interest period and (y) 1.00% plus (ii) a 3.50% girar Base Rate loans bear interest at a raterpgma equal to the sum of (i) the greater of
(x) the Base Rate and (y) 2.00% plus (ii) a 2.508&6gim. The interest rate at December 31, 20134N&3%.

Payments under the senior secured term loan agreemeeguaranteed by the Guarantors and are selouragledge of all equity interests of
certain subsidiaries, as well as a lien on subisianall of the assets of Altisource Solutions §13 a wholly-owned subsidiary of Altisource,
and the Guarantors, subject to certain exceptions.

The senior secured term loan agreement includesnamis that restrict or limit, among other things;, ability to: create liens and
encumbrances; incur additional indebtedness;tsafisfer or dispose of assets; change lines ohbasj amend material debt agreements or
other material contracts; engage in certain traimacwith affiliates; enter into sale/leasebaangactions; grant negative pledges or agree to
such other restrictions relating to subsidiary diévids and distributions; make changes to its figeat and engage in mergers and
consolidations.

The senior secured term loan agreement contaitait@vents of default, including (i) failure toypprincipal when due or interest or any othet
amount owing on any other obligation under the@esecured term loan agreement within 5 days obteény due, (ii) material incorrectness
of representations and warranties when madeb(@ach of covenants, (iv) failure to pay principainterest on any other debt that equals or
exceeds $40.0 million when due, (v) default on atiyer debt that equals or exceeds $40.0 milliohdhases, or gives the holder or holders of
such debt the ability to cause, an acceleratiuoh debt, (vi) occurrence of a Change in Conasldefined in the senior secured term loan
agreement), (vii) bankruptcy and insolvency evéassdefined in the senior secured term loan agregeiii) entry by a court of one or more
judgments against us (as defined in the senioredderm loan agreement) in an amount in exce$d@0 million that remain unbonde
undischarged or unstayed for a certain number yg déter the entry thereof, (ix) the occurrenceatain ERISA events and (x) the failure of
certain Loan Documents (as defined in the senicureel term loan agreement) to be in full force afidct. If any event of default occurs and
is not cured within applicable grace periods sehfin the senior secured term loan agreement oredaall loans and other obligations could
become due and immediately payable and the facitityd be terminated.

At December 31, 2013, debt issuance costs wererllidn, net of $1.0 million of accumulated amasgtion. At December 31, 2012, debt
issuance costs were $4.3 million, net of $0.1 orillof accumulated amortization. Debt issuance @stincluded in other assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

68




Table of Contents

ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement&Continued)

Interest expense on the term loans, including aratitn of debt issuance costs and the net debbdig, totaled $20.3 million and $1.2 milli
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20L& ctgely (no comparative amount in 2011).

Maturities of our long-term debt are as follows:

(in thousands)

2014 $ 3,97¢
2015 3,97t
2016 3,97¢
2017 3,97¢
2018 3,97¢
Thereaftel 376,62¢
396,50:

Less: current portio (3,979
$ 39252

14. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other non-current liabilities consist of the follmg as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2013 2012

Contingent consideratic $ 42,94¢  $ —
Other nor-current liabilities 2,53( 1,73¢
Total $ 4547¢  $ 1,73¢

15. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND SHARE-BASED COMPENSAT ION
Common Stock

Our Board of Directors has the power to issue shaf@uthorized but unissued common stock withotihér shareholder action subject to the
requirements of applicable laws and stock exchangé®ecember 31, 2013, we had 100.0 million shanathorized. At December 31, 2013,
we had 22.6 million shares of common stock outstandrhe holders of shares of Altisource commortlstre entitled to one vote for each
share on all matters voted on by shareholderstrantolders of such shares will possess all vgimger.

Stock Repurchase Plan

In May 2012, our shareholders approved a new seylrchase program, which replaced the previouk sapurchase program. Under the
program, we are authorized to purchase up to 3lf®mshares of our common stock in the open mairkeddition to amounts previously
purchased under the prior program. From authadozaif the previous program in May 2010 through &aber 31, 2013, we have purchased
approximately 3.7 million shares of our common ktiocthe open market at an average price of $6ped4hare. We purchased 1.2 million
shares of common stock at an average price of $21f&r share during the year ended December 38, &@d 0.3 million shares at an average
price of $63.25 per share during the year endecdber 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2013, approeipat3 million shares of common
stock remain available for repurchase under thgrara. Luxembourg law limits share repurchases pu@ymately the balance of Altisource
Portfolio Solutions S.A. (unconsolidated parent pamy) retained earnings, less shares repurchasedf December 31, 2013, approximately
$14 million was available to repurchase our comstock under Luxembourg law. Our senior secured tean also limits the amount we can
spend on share repurchases in any year and magrprev
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repurchases in certain circumstances. As of Deee®b, 2013, approximately $55 million was avaiata repurchase our common stock
under our senior secured term loan.

Equity Incentive Plan

Our 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plapfovides for various types of equity awards, inaligdstock options, stock appreciation rights, s
purchase rights, restricted shares and other ayar@scombination of any of the above. Under tlaenRBve may grant up to 6.7 million
Altisource share-based awards to officers, diragtioey employees and to employees of our affiliadssof December 31, 2013, 2.5 million
share-based awards were available for future gnagér the Plan. The shares will be issued frothairzed and unissued shares of our
common stock. Expired and forfeited awards ardlaa for reissuance. Vesting and exercise ofest@sed awards are generally contingent
on continued employment.

Share-Based Compensation

We issue share-based awards in the form of stoti&regpand certain other equibased awards for certain employees and officersrabterdec
share-based compensation expense of $2.4 millRe,@illion and $3.9 million for the years endedcBmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The amount for the year ended DeceBbe2012 includes the reversal of $0.8 milliorsbére-based compensation expense
related to the departure of an executive officdviarch 2012.

Outstanding share-based compensation currentlyistensimarily of stock option grants that are anbination of service-based and market-
based options.

Service-Based OptionsThese options are granted at fair value on #te df grant. The options generally vest over faars with equal
annual cliff-vesting and expire on the earlier 6fyears after the date of grant or following teration of service. A total of 0.8 million
service-based awards were outstanding at Decenh@033.

Market-Based Options These option grants have two components eawlhigh vest only upon the achievement of certaiteda. The

first component, which we refer to internally asdimary performance” grants, consists of two-thiofishe market-based grant and begins
to vest if the stock price is at least double thereise price, as long as the stock price reabzesmpounded annual gain of at least 20%
over the exercise price. The remaining third ofriterket-based options, which we refer to internafly'extraordinary performancgtants
begins to vest if the stock price is at least ¢rihle exercise price, as long as the stock praezes a compounded annual gain of at least
25% over the exercise price. The vesting schefdulall market-based awards is 25% upon achievemifethte criteria and the remaining
75% in three equal annual installments. A total &fmillion market-based awards were outstandirigemember 31, 2013.

The Company granted less than 0.1 million stockoopt(at a weighted average exercise price of 840ger share), 0.3 million stock options
(at a weighted average exercise price of $69.48Ip@re) and 0.2 million stock options (at a weidldeerage exercise price of $33.15 per
share) during the years ended December 31, 2012, &0d 2011, respectively.
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The fair value of the service-based options waserd@hed using the Black-Scholes option pricing nhoaled a lattice (binomial) model was
used to determine the fair value of the market-baggions, using the following assumptions as efghant date:

2013 2012 2011
Black-Scholes Binomial Black-Scholes Binomial Black-Scholes Binomial
Risk-free interest rate (% 1.02—1.81 0.01—2.71 0.87— 1.17 0.08— 2.04 1.69— 1.9:2 0.04— 3.0z
Expected stock price volatility (¥ 36.35— 36.7¢ 36.40— 36.8( 34.22— 34.6¢ 34.20— 34.6( 48.0( 55.70— 55.8(
Expected dividend yiel — — — — — —
Expected option life (in year 6.2¢ — 6.2¢ — 6.2t —
Contractual life (in years — 14 — 14 — 14
Fair value $31.33— $49.1¢ $16.12— $41.7: $19.25— $29.8( $9.98— $22.7¢ $16.33— $17.8¢ $16.91— $20.3¢

The following table summarizes the weighted-avefagevalue of stock options granted and the totainsic value of stock options exercised
for the years ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011
Weighted average fair value at date of g $ 325¢ $ 20.77 $ 17.6¢€
Intrinsic value of options exercist (in thousands 40,76: 17,59¢ 4,96¢
Fair value of options veste¢ (in thousands 3,15¢ 2,79( 3,53¢

Stock-based compensation expense is recorded estiofated forfeiture rates ranging from 1% to 10%.

As of December 31, 2013, estimated unrecognizecpeosation costs related to share-based paymentméedao $2.5 million which we
expect to recognize over a weighted average rengngiquisite service period of approximately 2.8rge

The following table summarizes activity of our dtaptions:

Weighted
Weighted average Aggregate
average contractual intrinsic value
Number of exercise term
options price (in years) (in thousands’
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 3,058,30! $ 17.6¢ 6.11 $ 211,07:
Grantec 75,00( 104.8¢
Exercisec (401,719 16.4¢
Forfeited (142,249 55.3¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,589,34. 18.3: 5.2( 363,29:
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 2,194,75! 12.6¢ 4.7¢ 320,32¢
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The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions outstanding and exercisable at Dece®ibe2013:

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted Weighted
average Weighted average Weighted

remaining average remaining average

contractual exercise contractual exercise
Exercise price range Number life price Number life price
$0.00— $10.00(a) 1,700,11. 44¢ 3 9.14 1,700,11. 44¢ 3 9.14
$10.01— $20.00(a) 97,73 2.8C 12.4¢ 97,73 2.8C 12.4¢
$20.01— $30.00(a) 502,68¢ 6.3C 23.07 328,62! 6.31 23.1¢
$30.01— $40.00(a) 61,05¢ 6.9¢ 33.5¢ 23,87 7.3C 33.4¢
$50.01— $60.00(a) 10,00( 8.37 53.0(C 3,75(C 8.37 53.0(C
$60.01— $70.00(a) 142,75( 8.1¢ 60.67 40,657 8.1¢ 60.67
$80.01— $90.00(a) 15,00( 9.12 83.8¢ — — —
$90.01— $100.00(a; 30,00( 9.21 94.1¢ — — —
$120.01— $130.00(a; 30,00( 9.62 125.9¢ = — —

2,589,34. 2,194,75!

(&) These options contain market-based componentssasiliked above. All other options are time-basedrds:

The following table summarizes the market pricesessary in order for the market performance optiorisegin to vest:

Market -based options

Ordinary Extraordinary

Vesting price performance performance
$160.01— $170.00 7,50( —
Over $170.0( 22,50( 52,12¢
30,00( 52,12¢
Weighted average share pr $ 107.27 $ 74.0¢

16. COST OF REVENUE

Cost of revenue principally includes payroll andptogee benefits associated with personnel emplayedstomer service and operations rc
fees paid to external providers related to provisibservices, reimbursable expenses, technolodyelacommunications expenses as well as
depreciation and amortization of operating as3éts.components of cost of revenue were as foll@vthie years ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011

Compensation and benef $ 156,81 $ 113,14! $ 82,54¢
Outside fees and servic 193,23: 123,33t 86,20:
Reimbursable expens 102,47¢ 96,14% 82,07
Technology and telecommunicatic 25,53¢ 23,40« 18,77:
Depreciation and amortizatic 14,42 10,167 6,254
Total $ 492,48( $ 366,20. $ 275,84¢
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17. SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling, general and administrative expenses irchad/roll for personnel employed in executive, fice, legal, human resources, vendor
management, risk and operational effectiveness roldis category also includes occupancy costdegsional fees and depreciation and
amortization on non-operating assets. The comperadrselling, general and administrative expenger® as follows for the years ended
December 31:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011

Compensation and benef $ 27,86¢ $ 21,16¢ $ 22,32%
Professional service 8,022 9,86¢ 6,65¢
Occupancy related cos 28,42+ 24,04: 17,82«
Amortization of intangible asse 28,17¢ 5,03( 5,291
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,63: 2,60¢ 2,097
Other 16,69 12,00: 7,93¢
Total $ 11381 $ 74,71 $ 62,13

18. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET

Other income (expense), net consists of the folgvfor the years ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011

Loss in equity affiliates, including impairment & $ (17¢) $ @,74) $ (530
Interest incom 89¢ 222 32
Change in fair value of put optic — — 732
Other, ne (16€) (69 54
Total $ 557 $ (1,58¢) $ 28¢

Loss in equity affiliates primarily represents @uoportional share of the losses in Correspondeet &d impairment loss on the investment
(see Note 10).

The change in fair value of put option relateshi@é put option agreements we entered into wittaiceof the sellers of MPA. The put option
expired in December 2011.
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19. INCOME TAXES

The income tax provision consists of the followfogthe years ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Current:
Domestic- Luxembourc $ 2,51 $ 2841 % 2,30(
Foreign- U.S. Federa 6 — —
Foreign- U.S. State 40¢ 35: 11¢
Foreign- Non U.S. 3,60( 2,557 2,891
$ 6,52t $ 574¢ $ 5,31(
Deferred:
Domestic- Luxembourg $ — $ 38 $ (387)
Foreign- U.S. Federa 2,50¢ 2,41¢ 3,21¢
Foreign- U.S. State 84 (23 (22
Foreign- Non U.S. (575) 20€ (174)
2,01¢ 2,99: 2,63¢
Total $ 854( $ 8,73t $ 7,948

We received a favorable ruling in June 2010 regardhe treatment of certain intangibles that eikispurposes of determining the Company’s
taxable income. This ruling does not have a maitaripact on our deferred tax assets or liabilititecome tax computed by applying the
Luxembourg statutory income tax rate of 29.22%edlefffrom income tax computed at the effective & primarily because of the effect of
favorable tax ruling, differing tax rates in mulégurisdictions, changes in valuation allowancd arinority interest.

We operate under tax holidays in certain geographiéndia and the Philippines. The India tax tiajis are effective through 2020, and may
be extended if certain additional requirementssatisfied. The Philippines tax holiday is effeetihrough 2016, and may also be extended.
The tax holidays are conditional upon our meetieigain employment and investment thresholds. Tpact of these tax holidays decreased
foreign taxes by $0.2 million ($0.01 per dilutecst), $1.5 million ($0.06 per diluted share), aBdbdmillion ($0.02 per diluted share) for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ctaghe. The Philippines tax holiday commence@@13 and had no impact on taxes
the year ended December 31, 2013.

The Company accounts for certain income and expieerss differently for financial purposes and in@tax purposes. We recognize defe
income tax assets and liabilities for these diffess between the financial reporting basis andahdasis of our assets and liabilities as we
expected benefits of utilizing net operating losd aredit carryforwards. We measure deferred inctarassets and liabilities using enactec
rates expected to apply to taxable income in tlsyim which we expect to recover or settle theseporary differences.
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A summary of the tax effects of the temporary défeces is as follows for the years ended Decener 3

(in thousands) 2013 2012

Current deferred tax asse

Allowance for doubtful accounts and other rese! $ 43  $ 40

Accrued expense 3,18: 1,94(
Current deferred tax liabilitie:

Prepaid expenst (389) (205)
Current deferred tax assets, $ 2831 $ 1,77

Non-current deferred tax asse

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 12,43¢  $ 14,34
Non-U.S. deferred tax asse 1,471 89t
Shar+based compensatic 784 95¢€
Other 7 7
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie:
Intangible assel (6,03%) (6,869
Depreciatior (4,85%) (2,845
3,811 6,48¢
Valuation allowanct (3,189 (2,419
Non-current deferred tax assets, $ 62z $ 4,07¢
Net deferred tax asse $ 345¢ § 5,84¢

A valuation allowance is provided when it is deemaate likely than not that some portion or all aleferred tax asset will not be realized. In
determining whether a valuation allowance is negdedconsidered estimates of future taxable incduotere reversals of temporary
differences, the tax character of gains and lossebsthe impact of tax planning strategies thatmmplemented, if warranted. The increase
in valuation allowance of $0.8 million during 20d8ates to state and foreign losses generatectioutrent year.

We have not provided Luxembourg deferred taxesuonutative earnings of non-Luxembourg affiliatesreshave chosen to indefinitely
reinvest these earnings. The earnings reinvestefl Recember 31, 2013 were approximately $38.5anil

The Company had a deferred tax asset of $12.4omids of December 31, 2013 relating to United Stitderal, state and foreign net opera
losses compared to $14.3 million as of DecembeRB12. Of this amount, $1.4 million as of DecemBEr2013 related to state net operating
losses subject to a valuation allowance compar&d 6 million as of December 31, 2012, and $1.8onilas of December 31, 2013 related to
Luxembourg net operating losses subject to a vialuatlowance compared to $0.9 million as of Decensi, 2012. The Company has not
recognized federal net operating loss carry foraafd$9.5 million as of December 31, 2013 relatedtock options exercised compared to
million as of December 31, 2012. If realized, bemefit would be an increase to additional paiddpital. The gross amount of net operating
losses available for carryover to future yearppraximately $32.6 million as of December 31, 2@b&pared to $36.1 million as of
December 31, 2012. Of this amount, $13.5 millism&iDecember 31, 2013 compared to $14.7 millioafddecember 31, 2012 relates to NCI
for periods prior to our acquisition of NCI andsisbject to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Gtue“Code”) which limits their use to
approximately $1.3 million per year. These lossesscheduled to expire between the years 2022G21i

The distribution of the Company in connection wtike separation from Ocwen during 2009 was interiddx a tax-free transaction under
Section 355 of the Code. However, Ocwen recogniaed paid tax on, substantially all of the gaihat in the assets that comprised Altiso
as a result of the restructuring. To the extenwé&vtdoes recognize tax under Section 355 of theChltisource has agreed to indemnify
Ocwen. In addition, we have agreed to indemnifyw@t should the expected tax treatments not be dphmn review or audit to the extent
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related to our operating results. The Company doéanticipate a material obligation under thidamnity. The following table reconciles the
income tax provision to the Luxembourg statutoigoime tax rate for the years ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011
Statutory tax rat 29.2:% 28.8(% 28.8(%
Foreign rate differentic (24.9%) (23.30 (20.09)
Change in valuation allowan: 0.7¢ 0.1¢€ —
State tax expens 0.24 0.17 0.0¢
Other 0.7t 1.1¢ 0.42
6.0(% 7.01% 9.25%

The Company follows ASC Topic 740 which clarifibe taccounting and disclosure for uncertainty ingasitions. We analyzed our tax filing
positions in all of the domestic and foreign tarigdictions where we are required to file incomertturns as well as for all open tax years in
these jurisdictions. Based on this review, nomesefor uncertain income tax positions were regpliio have been recorded pursuant to ASC
Topic 740.

We recognize accrued interest and penalties retatadcertain tax positions in selling, general addhinistrative expenses in the consolidatec
statements of operations. As of December 31, 20132012, we did not have a liability recordeddayment of interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax positions.

20. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic EPS is computed by dividing income availableommon stockholders by the weighted average euamwibcommon shares outstanding
for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the assunmersion of dilutive securities.

Basic and diluted EPS are calculated as followstferyears ended December 31

(in thousands, except per share datz 2013 2012 2011
Net income attributable to Altisour: $ 129,97. $ 110,627 $ 71,11:
Weighted average common shares outstanding, 23,07: 23,35¢ 24,37:
Dilutive effect of stock option 1,981 1,60¢ 1,312
Weighted average common shares outstanding, di 25,05¢ 24,96 25,68¢
Earnings per shan
Basic $ 565 $ 474 $ 2.92
Diluted $ 5.1¢ $ 44 $ 2.71

An immaterial amount of options for the years enBedember 31, 2013 and 2012 and 0.1 million optfonshe year ended December 31,
2011 that were anti-dilutive have been excludethftbe computation of diluted EPS. These optionsewaati-dilutive because their exercise
price was greater than the average market priceio$tock. Also excluded from the computation dditgid EPS are 0.1 million, 0.3 million and
0.3 million options for the years ended December2B13, 2012 and 2011, respectively, granted fareshthat are issuable upon the
achievement of certain market and performanceriitelated to our common stock price and an anreirate of return to investors that have
not yet been met.
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21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

From time to time, we are involved in legal prodegd arising in the ordinary course of business fdtord a liability for litigation if an
unfavorable outcome is probable and the amourdss tan be reasonably estimated, including expétsedance coverage. For proceedings
where a range of loss is determined, we recordsadstimate of loss within the range.

When legal proceedings are material, we disclosaéture of the litigation, and to the extent palssithe estimate of loss or range of loss. In
the opinion of management, after consultation Wétfal counsel, the outcome of current legal proiregd both individually and in the
aggregate, will not have a material impact on uarfcial condition, results of operations or cdsiws.

Leases

We lease certain premises and equipment underusoperating lease agreements. Future minimunre [gagments at December 31, 2013
under non-cancelable operating leases with anraligerm exceeding one year are as follows:

Operating lease

(in thousands) obligations
2014 $ 9,142
2015 8,517
2016 7,07
2017 5,14¢
2018 4,38¢
Thereaftel 13€
$ 34,40¢

Total operating lease expense, net of subleaseneceovas $12.8 million, $10.9 million and $10.8 ioifl for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The operatgagds generally relate to office locations an@ceftustomary lease terms which range fron
3 to 6 years in duration.

Escrow and Trust Balances

We hold customers’ assets in escrow and trust ats@i various financial institutions pending coetjan of certain real estate activities. We
also hold cash in trust accounts at various firenastitutions where contractual obligations maedaaintaining dedicated bank accounts for
Financial Services collections. These amountdalein escrow and trust accounts for limited pasiof time and are not included in the
consolidated balance sheets. Amounts held in esanal trust accounts were $71.8 million and $47lan at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

22. SEGMENT REPORTING

Our business segments are based upon our organaksitructure, which focuses primarily on the &y offered, and are consistent with the
internal reporting used by our Chief Executive €Hfito evaluate operating performance and to asisesglocation of our resources.

We classify our business into three reportable segen TheMortgage Servicesegment provides services that span the mortgatjecahestat
lifecycle and are typically outsourced by loan g&xs, loan originators and investors in singleifafmomes. The=inancial Servicesegment
provides collection and customer relationship managnt
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services primarily to debt originators and senddgr.g., credit card, auto lending, retail credd anortgage) and the utility and insurance
industries. Th&echnology Servicesegment principally consists of our REALSuite safitevapplications, Equator’s software applications a
well as our information technology infrastructues\dces. The REALSuite platform provides a fuliyegrated set of software applications anc
technologies that manage the end-to-end lifecyaledsidential and commercial mortgage loan samgigmcluding the automated management
and payment of a distributed network of vendoraudigr's software applications provide comprehensel-to-end workflow and transaction
services to manage real estate related activitidgparchase related services from vendors. IntiaddCorporate Items and Eliminations
includes eliminations of transactions between #porting segments and costs related to corporafgosufunctions including executive,
finance, legal, human resources, vendor managemsngnd operational effectiveness.

Financial information for our segments is as fokow

For the year ended December 31, 20

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Iltems and Consolidated

(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue $ 596,15 $ 92,95¢ $ 103,89: $ (24,649 768,35
Cost of revenu 374,71; 55,32¢ 84,53¢ (22,099 492,48
Gross profit 221,43¢ 37,63( 19,35: (2,54%) 275,87
Selling, general and administrative exper 46,51t 15,57 12,44 39,28: 113,81(
Income from operation 174,92 22,05¢ 6,911 (41,827 162,06
Other income (expense), r (136) (10 7 (19,595 (19,739
Income before income taxes and non-controlling

interests $ 174,78t $ 22,04¢ $ 6,91¢ $ (61,427) 142,33:

For the year ended December 31, 207

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Iltems and Consolidated

(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue $ 452,79t $ 64,52: $ 74,18¢ $ (23,14 568,36
Cost of revenu 285,58t 46,73 54,63¢ (20,756) 366,20:
Gross profit 167,21( 17,78¢ 19,55¢ (2,39)) 202,15¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 25,09¢ 13,41¢ 8,88¢ 27,31( 74,71
Income from operation 142,11: 4,37( 10,66 (29,707 127,44
Other income (expense), r (1,713 (27) (25) (1,039 (2,799
Income before income taxes and non-controlling

interests $ 140,39¢ $ 4.34: $ 10,64: $ (30,73‘) 124,64
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For the year ended December 31, 20:

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Items and Consolidated
(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue $ 311,92 $ 71,18. $ 56,09 $ (15,509 $ 423,68
Cost of revenu 202,03! 51,09¢ 36,87 (14,156 275,84¢
Gross profit 109,88t 20,08t 19,22( (1,359 147,83t
Selling, general and administrative exper 15,27¢ 15,63« 4,86 26,35: 62,13:
Income from operation 94,60¢ 4,451 14,35: (27,70%) 85,70’
Other income (expense), r 24¢ (34 (49) 38 203
Income before income taxes and non-controlli
interests $ 94,85¢ $ 4417 $ 14,30 $ (27,667 $ 85,91(
Our services are provided to customers primaritated in the United States.
Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Iltems and Consolidated
(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Total assets
December 31, 201 $ 308,21: $ 55,93( $ 274,76t $ 85,92¢ $ 724,83t
December 31, 201 132,92: 37,78: 64,57( 193,95( 429,22¢
Premises &
equipment, net
Country (in thousands)
United State: $ 63,61!
India 16,40
Luxembourg 3,217
Philippines 4,01¢
Total $ 87,25

23. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following tables contain selected unauditetestent of operations information for each quarfe2G13 and 2012. The following
information reflects all normal recurring adjustrteenecessary for a fair presentation of the infdionafor the periods presented. The opera
results for any quarter are not necessarily intlieadf results for any future period. Our businissaffected by seasonality.
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Unaudited quarterly results are as follows:

2013 quarter endecH®)

(in thousands, except per share date March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
Revenue 148,82 186,11( $ 210,83 $ 222,58!
Gross profit 51,86¢ 69,13¢ 76,57¢ 78,30(
Income before income taxes and -controlling interest: 30,67¢ 34,48t 38,61+ 38,55¢
Net income 28,52% 32,06¢ 36,95¢ 36,241
Net income attributable to Altisour 27,51¢ 30,93: 36,00¢ 35,51¢
Earnings per shar

Basic 1.1¢ 134 $ 156 $ 1.5€

Diluted 1.1C 128 $ 14z $ 1.4z
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 23,37¢ 23,16: 23,02t 22,73¢

Diluted 25,05¢ 24,82% 25,33: 25,00¢

2012 guarter endec®

(in thousands, except per share datz March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
Revenue 139,06t 144,20 $ 143,98( $ 141,10:
Gross profit 47,30¢ 51,467 49,70 53,68¢
Income before income taxes and -controlling interest: 29,94( 32,12¢ 30,98: 31,59¢
Net income 27,12 29,35: 28,08 31,35«
Net income attributable to Altisour 25,22¢ 28,08: 27,024 30,29
Earnings per shar

Basic 1.0¢ 1.2C $ 1.1€¢ $ 1.3C

Diluted 1.0z 11 $ 1.0¢ $ 1.2C
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 23,38: 23,31¢ 23,33¢ 23,38¢

Diluted 24,84+ 24,84¢ 25,01¢ 25,16:

@ The sum of quarterly amounts, including per shameunts, may not equal amounts reported for yealate-periods. This is due to the
effects of rounding and changes in the number églted-average shares outstanding for each period.
@ On March 29, 2013, we acquired the Homeward feedassinesses. On April 12, 2013, we completedRéwCap fee-based business
transaction. On November 15, 2013, we acquiredaiegsee Note 5).
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNT ANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluationof Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0&r have evaluated the effectiveness of our désgko controls and procedures (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) of the SdegrEExchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchawtj§) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on such evaluasioch officers have concluded that our disclosurgrots and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report were effective toueaghat information required to be disclosed bynube reports that we file or submit under
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summaaizedeported within the time periods specifiethim SEC rules and forms, and to ensure
that such information is accumulated and commuedtéd our management, including the Chief Execu@ifficer and Chief Financial Officer,
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regardimuired disclosure.

Managemer's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repag

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financigading, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of
the Exchange Act. Management has assessed tletivaffess of our internal control over financigdoging as of December 31, 2013 base
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrafedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirga@izations of the Treadway
Commission. The scope of management’s assessmtre effectiveness of internal control over finaheceporting includes all of our
businesses except for Equator, which was acquinedavember 15, 2013 and whose financial statenreptesent 17% of total assets and les:
than 1% of revenues and net income attributabhdtisource of the consolidated financial statememibunts as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013. See Note 5 to the accompagyingplidated financial statements for further déson of this acquisition. As a result of
this assessment, management concluded that, ascefiber 31, 2013, our internal control over finah@porting was effective in providing
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynafitial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfee Deloitte & Touche LLP has independently assd the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting and its reporirisluded herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repogtin

There were no changes in our internal control éwancial reporting during the quarter ended Decendi, 2013 that materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, ourimtal control over financial reporting.

Limitationson Controls

Our disclosure controls and procedures and intexorairol over financial reporting are designed tovide reasonable assurance of achieving
their objectives as specified above. Managemees dot expect, however, that our disclosure cantintl procedures or our internal control
over financial reporting will prevent or detect etfor and fraud. Any control system, no mattew lneell designed and operated, is based upo
certain assumptions and can provide only reasonabteabsolute, assurance that its objectivesheilinet. Further, no evaluation of controls
can provide absolute assurance that misstatemeatoderror or fraud will not occur or that all ¢l issues and instances of fraud, if any,
within the Company have been detected.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this item is incorp@herein by reference to our definitive proxyestant in connection with our 2014 annual
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReigpn 14A under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@dherein by reference to our definitive proxyesta¢nt in connection with our 2014 annual
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReigpn 14A under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorp@herein by reference to our definitive proxyestant in connection with our 2014 annual
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReigpn 14A under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorp@dherein by reference to our definitive proxyestagnt in connection with our 2014 annual
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReigpn 14A under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorp@dherein by reference to our definitive proxyesta¢nt in connection with our 2014 annual
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReign 14A under the Exchange Act.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filed as part of tmsaal report

1. Financial Statement
See Item 8 abow

2. Financial Statement Schedul
Schedules for which provision is made in the ailie accounting regulations of the SEC are notirequnder the related
instructions or are not applicable, and theref@echbeen omittec

3. Exhibits:

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

2.1 Form of Separation Agreement between Altisourcéf&lar Solutions S.A. and Ocwen Financial Corparat{incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant’s Foi®R12B/A — Amendment No. 1 to Form 10, as filed wiitle Commission on
June 29, 200¢

2.2 Separation Agreement, dated as of December 21, P@h®een Altisource Residential Corporation antisAurce Portfolio
Solutions S.A. (incorporated by reference to Extibl to the Compar's Form &K filed on December 21, 201

2.3 Separation Agreement, dated as of December 21, P@h®een Altisource Asset Management Corporatimh/Altisource
Portfolio Solutions S.A. (incorporated by referengéxhibit 2.2 to the Compa’s Form &K filed on December 21, 201,

2.4 Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of Mar2029, by and among Altisource Portfolio Solutiomg,., Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l.,, Ocwen Financial Corporationméavard Residential, Inc. and Power Valuation Sesji¢nc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Comp’s Form K filed on April 4, 2013)

25 Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of Augug018, by and among Altisource Portfolio Soluti@4., Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. and the Equity Interestholddér&aquator, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhihil to the Company’s
Form &K filed on August 21, 2013

3.1* Articles of Incorporation of Altisource Portfolicofitions S.A.

10.1 Separation Agreement, dated as of August 10, 2008nd between Altisource Portfolio Solutions SaAd Ocwen Financial
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhilbitl1of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form &Kfiled with the
Commission on August 13, 200

10.2 Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of August 10, 2B6688yeen Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. and Ocwerafcial Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of thegRtrant’'s Current Report on Form 8-K, as filedhwthe Commission on
August 13, 2009

10.3 Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of Augus2@09, between Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. and &ctwinancial

Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhilbiidlof the Registrant’s Current Report on Form &Kfiled with the
Commission on August 13, 200
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10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8t

10.9t

10.10t

10.11t

10.12

10.13t

10.14t

10.15

10.16t

10.17%

Technology Products Services Agreement, dated Asigdist 10, 2009, between Altisource Solutionsr$.and Ocwen
Financial Corporation (incorporated by referenc&xhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Current Reportramrm 8K, as filed with the
Commission on August 13, 20C

Services Agreement, dated as of August 10, 2009dem Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. and Ocwen Fam@rCorporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of thegRtrant’'s Current Report on Form 8-K, as filedhwthe Commission on
August 13, 2009

Data Center and Disaster Recovery Services Agreemated as of August 10, 2009, between AltisoSolkitions S.a r.l. and
Ocwen Financial Corporation (incorporated by rafeesto Exhibit 10.7 of the Registrant’s Current &¢pn Form 8-K, as filed
with the Commission on August 13, 20(

Intellectual Property Agreement, dated as of Aud@st2009, by and between Altisource Solutionsr$.and Ocwen Financial
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhilbi3lof the Registrant’s Current Report on Form &Kfiled with the
Commission on August 13, 20C

Form of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. 2009ty Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference xbiBit 10.8 of Amendment
No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form 10iJed with the Commission on June 29, 20!

Employment Agreement by and between Altisource t8ois S.a r.l. and William B. Shepro (incorporabgdreference to
Exhibit 10.9 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registrat®tatement on Form 10, as filed with the Commissiedune 29, 200¢

Employment Agreement by and between Altisource t8nis S.a r.l. and Robert D. Stiles (incorporatgaddference to
Exhibit 10.10 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registrat®atement on Form 10, as filed with the Commissio June 29, 200!

Employment Agreement by and between Altisource t8ois S.a r.l. and Kevin J. Wilcox (incorporatedriference to
Exhibit 10.11 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registmnat®tatement on Form 10, as filed with the Commissio June 29, 200!

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of Febraa@p10, by and among Altisource Portfolio Solui@&A., and the Equity
Interest Holders of The Mortgage Partnership of Acze L.L.C. and the Management Owners (incorparatereference to
Exhibit 10.12 of the Compa’s 1(-K as filed with the Commission on March 17, 20

Form of Put Option Agreements (incorporated bynazfee to Exhibit 10.13 of the Company’s K@s filed with the Commissic
on March 17, 201C

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement, pansuto the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (incorpordigdeference to
Exhibit 10.14 of the Compa’s 1(-K as filed with the Commission on February 18, 2(

First Amendment to the Transition Services Agreetmggted as of August 10, 2011, by and between @dvirgancial
Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (immwrated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the ConyfmB-K, as filed with the
Commission on August 16, 201

Separation Agreement dated February 22, 2012 batikisource Portfolio Solutions S.ar.l., Altisamar Portfolio Solutions S./
and Robert D. Stiles (incorporated by referencéxbibit 10.1 to the Company’s 8-K as filed with tiemmission on
February 23, 201z

Employment Agreement dated March 13, 2012 betwdtsofirce Portfolio Solutions S.a r.l. and Michdle Esterman
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlerpanys &K as filed with the Commission on March 16, 20
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10.18

10.19t

10.20t

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

Support Services Agreement, dated as of Augus2dT®, by and between Ocwen Mortgage Servicing,dnd.Altisource
Solutions S.a r.[(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmmPanys Form K filed on August 16, 201z

First Amendment to the Employment Contract datedfasugust 15, 2012 between Altisource Solutiors 9. and William B.
Shepro (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.the Compar’s Form &K filed on August 20, 201z

First Amendment to the Employment Contract datedfasugust 15, 2012 between Altisource Solutiorss 9. and Kevin J.
Wilcox (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1002he Compar’'s Form K filed on August 20, 2012

Services Agreement, dated as of October 1, 201ankbybetween Ocwen Mortgage Servicing, Inc. andédtrce Solutions S.a
r.l. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1he Compan's Form &K filed on October 1, 201z

Technology Products Services Agreement, dated @ctber 1, 2012, by and between Ocwen Mortgageiceg, Inc. and
Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.2 to the Compi¢'s Form K filed on October 1, 201:

Data Center and Disaster Recovery Agreement, det@d October 1, 2012, by and between Ocwen Moet§agvicing, Inc. an
Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.3 to the Compi¢s Form K filed on October 1, 201z

Intellectual Property Agreement, dated as of Oatdh@012, by and between Ocwen Mortgage Servidirgy,and Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbibit 10.4 to the Compar's Form K filed on October 1, 201z

First Amendment to Support Services Agreement,ddaseof October 1, 2012, by and between Ocwen Mgedervicing, Inc.
and Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated&ference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Comp’s Form {-K filed on October 1, 201:

First Amendment to Services Agreement, dated &ctdber 1, 2012, by and between Ocwen Financigb@ation and
Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.6 to the Comp¢s Form K filed on October 1, 201z

First Amendment to Technology Products and Serndggsement, dated as of October 1, 2012, by andd®t Ocwen Financi
Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (inEwated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the ConyfmRorm 8-K filed on
October 1, 2012

First Amendment to Data Center and Disaster Rego&greement, dated as of October 1, 2012, by ahddsn Ocwen
Financial Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.&incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8he Company’s Form 8-K
filed on October 1, 201z

First Amendment to Intellectual Property Agreemeated as of October 1, 2012, by and between O&wemcial Corporation
and Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated&ference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Comp’s Form {-K filed on October 1, 201:

Credit Agreement, dated as of November 27, 2012ngm\ltisource Solutions S.ar.l., as borrower, @enpany and certain of
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, as guaranBank of America, N.A, as Administrative Agamd Collateral Agent,
Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank PLC and Citigp Global Markets Inc., as Lead Arrangers and lBgscBank PLC and
Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as Co-Syndicationefits, and certain lenders party thereto from tionne. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K filed on December 3, 201.

Support Services Agreement, dated as of Decemh&@04P, between Altisource Residential Corpora#ind Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbibit 10.1 to the Compars Form K filed on December 21, 201

Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of December 212, 2fHtween Altisource Residential Corporation aftisdurce Solutions S
r.l. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3he Compan’'s Form &K filed on December 21, 201
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10.33**

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

Master Services Agreement, dated as of Decemb&@P, between Altisource Residential Corporatiod Altisource Solution
S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11@.5he Compar’s Form K filed on December 21, 201

Trademark License Agreement, dated as of Decenthe?®2, between Altisource Residential Corporaéind Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbibit 10.6 to the Compars Form K filed on December 21, 201

Support Services Agreement, dated as of Decemh&@MP, between Altisource Asset Management Cotjporand Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbibit 10.2 to the Compars Form K filed on December 21, 201

Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of December 212, 2idtween Altisource Asset Management CorporatiahAltisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbibix 10.4 to the Compar's Form K filed on December 21, 201,

Trademark License Agreement, dated as of Decenthet2, between Altisource Asset Management Catjmor and
Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.7 to the Compé¢'s Form K filed on December 21, 201

Technology Products Services Agreement, betwedsoiitce Asset Management Corporation and AltisoGaetions S.ar.l.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to tlmrpanys Form K filed on December 21, 201.

Senior Unsecured Term Loan Agreement, dated agoémber 27, 2012, among Altisource Solutions §,as. Lender, Ocwen
Financial Corporation, as Borrower, and certairs@dibries of Ocwen Financial Corporation, as Gueman (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K filed on December 31, 201.

Second Amendment to Services Agreement, dated Msuah 29, 2013, by and between Ocwen Financiap@uition and
Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compi¢'s Form K filed on April 4, 2013)

Second Amendment to Technology Products Servicesefgent, dated as of March 29, 2013, by and bet@egren Financial
Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (immrated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the ComyfmRorm 8-K filed on
April 4, 2013)

Second Amendment to Data Center and Disaster Rec®egvices Agreement, dated as of March 29, 26¢2nd between
Ocwen Financial Corporation and Altisource Solusi@ha r.l. (incorporated by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s
Form &K filed on April 4, 2013)

Second Amendment to Intellectual Property Agreepaited as of March 29, 2013, by and between Odeancial
Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (immrated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the ComyfmRorm 8-K filed on
April 4, 2013)

First Amendment to Services Agreement, dated &saoth 29, 2013, by and between Ocwen Mortgage &ergyilnc. and
Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.5 to the Compi¢'s Form K filed on April 4, 2013)

First Amendment to Technology Products ServicesAmgrent, dated as of March 29, 2013, by and bet@egren Mortgage
Servicing, Inc. and Altisource Solutions S.a idcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to thenpany’s Form 8-K filed on
April 4, 2013)

First Amendment to Data Center and Disaster Regdservices Agreement, dated as of March 29, 201 3nbl between Ocwen
Mortgage Servicing, Inc. and Altisource Solutiona Bl. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1txThe Company’s Form 8-K
filed on March 29, 201%
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10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

21.1*

23.1*

31.1*

31.2*

32.1*

32.2*

First Amendment to Intellectual Property Agreemelated as of March 29, 2013, by and between Ocwentigége
Servicing, Inc. and Altisource Solutions S.a idcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to thenpany’s Form 8-K filed on
March 29, 2013

Agreement, dated as of April 12, 2013, by and amaltigource Solutions S.ar.l., Ocwen Financial @mation and Ocwen
Mortgage Servicing, Inc. (incorporated by referetw&xhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Form K filed on April 18, 2013

Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as of F1&2013, among Altisource Solutions S.a r.l.basower, Altisource
Portfolio Solutions S.A., Bank of America, N.A., administrative agent and incremental term lendertae other lenders party
thereto. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Compar’'s Form &K filed on May 13, 2013

Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement, dated as aeDder 9, 2013, among Altisource Solutions S.aaslborrower,
Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A., Bank of Ameaid\.A., as Administrative Agent and the Lendengypthereto. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K filed on December 11, 201

Subsidiaries of the Registra

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing (Deloitte & Touche LLP)

Section 302 Certification of the Chief Executivei@dr pursuant to Exchange Act Rule -14(a).

Section 302 Certification of the Chief Financiafi®dr pursuant to Exchange Act Rule -14(a).

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuido 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursogsettion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoa®éttion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002
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101 Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, the follogviinancial information from the Company’s Annigport on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2013 is formattetBRL interactive data files: (i) Consolidated Bate Sheets at
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012; (ii) Amaed Statements of Operations for each of teeg/im the three-year
period ended December 31, 2013; (iii) Consolid&tdements of Equity for each of the years in linea-year period ended
December 31, 2013; (iv) Consolidated Statemen@ash Flows for each of the years in the three-pesod ended
December 31, 2013; and (v) Notes to Financial Btatgs.

* Filed herewith

**  Portions of this exhibit have been redactedspiant to a request for confidential treatment. idve-public information has been filed
separately with the Securities and Exchange Conioniss

t  Denotes management contract or compensataggement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date: February 13, 201

Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A.

By: /s/ William B. Shepr¢
Name: William B. Sheprc
Title: Director and Chief Executive Offict
(Principal Executive Officer

By: /s/ Michelle D. Esterma
Name: Michelle D. Estermal
Title: Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer an
Principal Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934 this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf

the registrant and in the capacities indicatedf &ebruary 13, 2014.

Signature

Title Date

/s/ William C. Erbey
William C. Erbey

/s/ William B. Shepr¢
William B. Sheprc

/s/ W. Michael Linn
W. Michael Linn

/s/ Roland Miille-Ineichen
Roland Miille-Ineichen

/s/ Timo Vatto
Timo Vatto

/s/ Michelle D. Esterma
Michelle D. Estermal

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Director and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccourdiOfficer)

February 13, 2014

February 13, 2014

Director February 13, 2014
Director February 13, 2014
Director February 13, 2014

February 13, 2014
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Exhibit 3.1
« Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. »
Société anonyme
Grand Duché de Luxembourg
R.C.S. Luxembourg: B 72 391
Chapter I. Form, Corporate name, Registered officeQbject, Duration

Art. 1. Form, Corporate name. There is established among the subscribe(s) artkdcse who may become owners of the shares hereafte
issued, a company in the form of a public limitedbility company (société anonyme) (the “Companyhich will be governed by the laws of
the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, in particular the taf 10 August 1915 on commercial companies, asnaex (the “Law”), article 1832 of
the Civil Code, as amended and by the presentestid incorporation (the “Articles”).

The Company will exist under the name dltisource Portfolio Solutions S.A.”

Art. 2. Registered office.The Company has its registered office in the Citiyuxembourg. The Director or, as the case mayhmBoard of
Directors is authorised to change the addresseo€ttmpany’s registered office inside the abovesdtatunicipality.

Branches or other offices may be established eithétre Grand Duchy of Luxembourg or abroad by Iiggmn of the Director or, as the case
may be, the Board of Directors. In the event thahe view of the Director or, as the case maythrBoard of Directors, extraordinary
political, economic or social developments occuam@ imminent that would interfere with the norraetivities of the Company at its registered
office or with the ease of communications with soffice or between such office and persons abrivaday temporarily transfer the registered
office abroad, until the complete cessation of ¢hasnormal circumstances. Such temporary measiitdsawe no effect on the nationality of
the Company, which notwithstanding the temporaamgfer of the registered office, will remain a c@mp governed by the laws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg. Such temporary measures \illdiken and notified to any interested partiesr®y af the bodies or persons entrusted
with the daily management of the Company.

Art. 3. Corporate object. The object of the Company is the acquisition, thetinuing management and the sale of participationany form
whatsoever, in Luxembourg and/or in foreign undenigs, in particular in the areas of outsourcirgstomer relationship management and
technology services in the real estate, mortgagecansumer finance industries. The Company maylathy manage and exploit intellectual
property rights and render services to other gimmppanies and third parties, notably in the areautgourcings.

The Company may invest in and acquire, disposgraft or retain, loans, bonds and other debt instnis, shares, warrants and other equity
instruments or rights, including, but




not limited to, shares of capital stock, limitedtparship interests, limited liability company irgsts, notes, debentures, preferred stock,
convertible securities and swaps, and any comioinati the foregoing, in each case whether readdyketable or not, and obligations
(including but not limited to synthetic securitigsligations) in any type of company, entity or atlegyal person; engage in such other activitie:
as the Company deems necessary, advisable, cont@n@dental to, or not inconsistent with, thegigoing; and grant pledges, guarantees ar
contracts of indemnity, of any kind, to Luxembowrgoreign entities in respect of its own or anlgetperson’s obligations and debts.

The Company may also acquire, hold, manage andsglnovable or immovable assets of any kind anfdn a general fashion the Company
may carry out any commercial, industrial or finah@peration which it may deem useful in the acdishment and development of its object.

The Company may also provide any financial assigtdo the undertakings in which the Company haarigipating interest or which form a
part of the group of companies to which the Compaalpngs, including, among others, the grantinpafs and the providing of guarantee:
securities in any kind of form. The Company maydgke, transfer, encumber or otherwise create sgawrér some or all of its assets.

In addition, the Company may render on an occablmasis assistance in any form (including but imotted to advances, loans, credits,
guarantees or granting of security) to third partither than the group of companies to which the@my belongs, subject to the condition
such assistance falls within the Company’s bestést and subject to the condition that such asgistwould not trigger any license
requirements. The Company may participate in teattwn, development, management and control otamypany or enterprise, either directly
or indirectly, which have similar objects or whasgects are closely related to its own.

In a general fashion, the Company may carry outcamymercial, industrial or financial operation ajage in such other activities as the
Company deems necessary, advisable, convenieitteirtal to, or not inconsistent with, the accomptient and development of the foregoi

Art. 4. Duration. The Company is formed for an unlimited duration.

Chapter Il. Share capital, Shares
Art. 5. Share capital. The share capital of the Company is set at thiitjan seven hundred eighty four thousand nine lraddand seven US
Dollars (USD 30,784,907.-), divided into thirty fioh seven hundred eighty four thousand nine huhdred seven (30,784,907) shares with a

nominal value of one United States Dollar (USD &agh.

The authorised share capital is set at one hundiéidn United States Dollars (USD 100,000,000 iided into one hundred million
(100,000,000.-) registered shares with a par valume US Dollar (USD 1.00) each with the sametsgtitached as the existing shares.




The Director or, as the case may be, the Boardrecirs, is authorised, during a period ending frears after the date of publication of this
delegation of powers or the renewal of such delegan the Luxembourg Official Gazette (Memorial Recueil des Sociétés et Associations)
to:

« realize any increase of the subscribed share tapttan the limits of the authorised share capitabne or several times, by the
issuing of new shares, against payment in cash kind, by conversion of claims, by the increaséhefpar value of existing shares or in any
other manner;

« determine the terms and conditions of any sucheas® and, more specifically, but not limited te, ptace and date of the issue or
the successive issues, the issue price, the ambuaeiv shares to be issued, whether the new shegds be issued and subscribed ,with or
without an issue premium and the terms and comditaf the subscription of and paying up of the séares (in cash or in kind);

« limit or waive the preferential subscription rigleserved to the then existing shareholder(s) ie casssue of shares against payn
in cash.

After each increase of the subscribed share cagitairding to the above, the present Articles dfehmended to reflect such increase.

In addition to the share capital, a premium accowsy be established into which any premium paidmynshare in addition to its par value is
transferred. The amount of the premium account beaysed to provide for the payment of any sharbghwthe Company may redeem on a
pro rata basis from its shareholders, to offsetraatyrealised losses, to make distributions tasttereholders or to allocate funds to the legal
reserve.

Art. 6. Shares.The shares will take the form of registered sharas.shareholders shall not have the right to askhe conversion of shares
into bearer shares.

A shareholders’ register will be kept at the registl office where it will be available for inspectiby any shareholder. This register shall
contain all of the information required by Artic3® of the Law.

Each shareholder will notify the Company of its mdd and any change thereto by registered letier Company will be entitled to rely on the
last address thus communicated.

Any person who acquires or disposes of sharesi€timpany’s share capital must notify the CompaByard of Directors of the proportion
of shares held by the relevant person as a refstiieacquisition or disposal, where that propaortieaches, exceeds or falls below a threshold
of 5%.

Ownership of shares will result from the recordingthe said register.
Transfers of shares will be carried out by a detian of transfer recorded in shareholders’ registated and signed by the transferor and the

transferee or by their representative(s). Trangieshares may also be carried out in accordanttetivé rules on the transfer of claims under
article 1690 of the Luxembourg Civil Code. Furtherm the




Company may accept and record in the shareholdsgister any transfer referred to in correspondemagher any document showing the
consent of the transferor and the transferee.

Any transfer of shares shall be entered into thester of shareholders, such inscription shallipaed by the Director or, as the case may be,
two members of the Board of Directors of the Conypainby one or more other persons duly authoribedeto by the Board of Directors.

Holders of shares may request the Company to msdeleliver certificates signed by the Directoras the case may be, two Directors, setting
out their respective holdings of shares. Suchfazate shall not constitute evidence of ownership.

No share shall be pledged or mortgaged with anygehaithout the approval of the Director or, as¢thse may be, the Board of Directc
Each share is indivisible as far as the Compagypmeerned.
Co-owners of shares must be represented towardsdimpany by a common attorney-in-fact, whether agpd amongst them or not.

The Company has the right to suspend the exertizk rights attached to that share until one peiisas been designated as the sole owner
towards the Company.

Art. 7. Payment of sharesPayments on shares not fully paid up at the timsubscription may be made at the time and uponitons which
the Director, or as the case may be, the Boardrefckbrs, shall from time to time determine subjecthe Law. Any amount called up on shi
will be charged equally on all outstanding sharégtvare not fully paid up.

Art. 8. Increase and Reduction of the share capitallhe subscribed share capital of the Company magdseased or reduced once or sev
times by a resolution of the sole shareholder ®tha case may be, by the general meeting of shldesis voting with the quorum and majority
rules set out under these Articles or, as the casebe, by the Law for any amendment of these ledic

The new shares to be subscribed for by contributiarash will be offered in preference to the emgsshareholders in proportion to the part of
the capital held by these shareholders. The Direotas the case may be, the Board of Directaa$i dbtermine the period within which the
preferred subscription right may be exercised. peisod may not be less than thirty days.

Notwithstanding the above, the sole shareholdeaothe case may be, the general meeting, votitigtié quorum and majority rules requil
for any amendment of the Articles, may limit or lndtaw the preferential subscription right or auid®the Director or, as the case may be, th
Board of Directors to do so in the case of an iaseeof capital within the authorised capital.




Preferred subscription right may also be waivedviddally by the shareholders, or by the genera¢ting, voting with the same conditions of
guorum and majority as for amendments of the Agtic@nd provided that the suppression of the pesfesubscription right is specifically
referred to in the shareholders notice to attend.

The preferred subscription right is not be applieathen the subscribed capital is increased by miehnontributions in kind.

Art. 9. Acquisition of own shares.The Company may acquire and hold its own sharesnihe following legal limits, in accordance with
article 49-2 and following of the Law.

The Company may acquire and hold its own sharesrdic to the Law.
Chapter lll. Directors, Board of directors, Statutory auditors

Art. 10. Board of directors. If the Company has a single shareholder, the lattr appoint only one Director (the “Director”);wever, a
single shareholder may also appoint a board ottlire (the “Board of Directors”) composed of atsteihiree (3) and of maximum seven
(7) members, if it so chooses. When the Companyséasral shareholders, it shall be managed by edBiaDirectors composed of at least
three (3) and of maximum seven (7) members who nettle shareholders.

The Director(s) shall be appointed, by the soleetha@der or, as the case may be, by the generalngeax shareholders. The sole shareholder
or as the case may be the general meeting of shldezh, will determine their number and the duratd their mandate for a period not
exceeding six (6) years, and they will hold offig#il their successors are elected. They may ldeeted, and they may be removed at any
time, with or without cause, by a resolution of #ude shareholder or, as the case may be, of therglemeeting of shareholders. The mandate
of the Director or, as the case may be, the Dirsctball be remunerated.

If a corporate entity is appointed as Directoshill designate a natural person as its permaapregsentative, who will represent the corporate
entity as Sole Director or as member of the Bodidiectors, in accordance with article 5\bis of thaw. In the event of a vacancy on the
Board of Directors, if applicable, the remainingditor(s) may meet and may elect a director tafith vacancy on a provisional basis until
the next meeting of shareholders.

The Director(s) shall not disclose, even aftertéren of their mandate, information on the Compamgeavailable to them, the disclosure of
which may be detrimental to the Company'’s interestsept when such a disclosure is mandatory byolaw public interest.

Art. 11. Meetings of the board of directorsIf the Company has one sole Director, the lattérexiercise the power granted by the Law to the
Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors will appoint from amongrite@mbers a chairman (the “Chairman”). It may alspcét a corporate secretary, who need
not be a Director and who




will be responsible for keeping the minutes of tineetings of the Board of Directors and of the dhaider(s).

The Board of Directors will meet upon call by thieaman. A meeting of the Board of Directors mustbnvened if any two Directors so
require.

The Chairman will preside at all meetings of theaibof Directors and of the shareholders, excegitithhis absence the Board of Directors
may appoint another Director and the general mgetirshareholders may appoint any other persohaisnsan pro tempore by vote of the
majority present or represented at such meeting.

Except in cases of urgency or with the prior cohsémll those entitled to attend, at least twefayr hours written notice of board meetings
shall be given. Any such notice shall specify tlaxe, the date and time of the meeting as wehasgenda and the nature of the business
transacted.

The notice may be waived by unanimous written cohgiven at the meeting by all Directors. No sefermtice is required for meetings held
at times and places specified in a schedule prslyiadopted by resolution of the Board of Directors

Every board meeting shall be held in Luxembourgumh other place indicated in the notice.
Any Director may act at any meeting of the BoardDa®ctors by appointing in writing another Directs his proxy.
A quorum of the Board of Directors shall be thesgrece or the representation of a majority of the®@ors holding office.

Decisions will be taken by a majority of the votéghe Directors present or represented at suchingedn case of plurality of votes, the
Chairman has a casting vote.

One or more Directors may participate in a meetipgneans of a conference call, by videoconferemd®sy @ny similar means of
communication enabling thus several persons ppéticig therein to simultaneously communicate wibheother. Such meetings shall be
considered equivalent as a meeting held at thetexgd office of the Company.

Where time is of the essence, a written decisi@sgd by circular means and expressed by cablénitesr any other similar means of
communication, signed by all the Directors, is @oand valid as though it had been adopted at éimyesf the Board of Directors which was
duly convened and held. Such a decision can bendecied in a single document or in several sepd@tements having the same content an
each of them signed by one or several Directors.

Art. 12. Minutes of meetings of the board of direairs. The minutes of any meeting of the Board of Direstsinall be signed by all Directors
present at the meeting. Any proxies will remaiactted thereto.

Copies or extracts thereof shall be certified leygble Director or, as the case may be, by theocatp secretary appointed by the Board of
Directors.




Art. 13. General powers of the board of directorsThe Director or, as the case may be, the Boardreicibrs is vested with the broadest
powers to act on behalf of the Company and to perfar authorise all acts of administrative or dsganature, necessary or useful for
accomplishing the Company’s object. All powers expressly reserved by the Law or by these Artitdethe sole shareholder or, as the case
may be, to the general meeting of shareholdelsyftlin the competence of the Director or, asd¢hee may be, the Board of Directors.

The Director or, as the case may be, the Boardrecibrs may freely decide to reimburse any shagenjum account of the Company to its
shareholders, in accordance with the provisiorth@i_aw.

Art. 14. Delegation of powersThe Director or, as the case may be, the Boardrecbrs, may delegate its powers to conduct tlilg da
management and affairs of the Company and thegeptation of the Company for such daily manageraedtaffairs to any member or
members of the Board of Directors, directors, managr other officers who need not be shareholofetftse Company under the form of an
Executive Committee, under such terms and with gasters as the Director or, as the case may b&dhed of Directors shall determine.

The Director or, as the case may be, the Boardretcidrs may also confer all powers and specialdates to any person who need not be a
Director, and delegate to one or more directors)agars of the company or other agents, who magrdeutot required to be shareholders,
acting either alone or jointly, and appoint andwgs all officers and employees and fix their emudats.

When the Company is managed by a Board of Directioesdelegation of daily management to a membéreBoard of Directors or the
Executive Committee entails the obligation for Bward of Directors to report each year to the adirgeneral meeting on the salary, fees an
any advantages granted to the delegate.

The Director, or, as the case may be, the BoaRireictors may appoint amongst others the followdngmittees, an Executive Committee, an
Audit Committee, a Nomination and Governance Congmjta Compensation Committee and any other agvtsonmittees required by law or
otherwise and the Director, or, as the case mathkeeBoard of Directors will determine their comjpies and purpose.

Art. 15. Representation of the companyin case only one Director has been appointed, trapany will be bound toward third parties by the
sole signature of that Director or by any persotgsyhom such authority has been delegated byimattor.

In case the Company is managed by a Board of Dirgcthe Company will be bound towards third parbig the joint signature of any two
Directors or by any person(s) to whom such authdrdts been delegated by the Board of Directors.




Art. 16. Conflict of interests. No contract or other transaction between the Compad any other company or firm shall be affected o
invalidated by the fact that any one or more offirectors or officers of the Company has a perkimterest in, or is a director, associate,
member, officer or employee of such other comparfyrim. Except as otherwise provided for hereaféay Director or officer of the Company
who serves as a director, associate, officer ol@pap of any company or firm with which the Compaimall contract or otherwise engage in
business shall not, by reason of such affiliatiathwuch other company or firm, be automaticallgyanted from considering and voting or
acting upon any matters with respect to such contmaother business.

Notwithstanding the above, in the event that amg&or or officer of the Company may have any peasmterest in any transaction of 1
Company, other than transactions concluded undenadconditions and falling within the scope of they-to-day management of the
Company, he shall make known to the Board of Dinec(if any) such personal interest and shall nos@ler or vote on any such transaction,
and such transaction and such Director’s or officieterest therein shall be reported to the sheholder or as the case may be, to the next
general meeting of shareholders.

However, when the Company is composed of a singkcr, minutes mentioning transactions in which Director has a personal interest
shall be recorded.

The Company shall indemnify (or as the case magdwvance to) any Director or officer and his hegsgcutors and administrators, against
expenses and costs (including reasonable lawyegs) freasonably incurred by him in connection it action, suit or proceeding to which
he may be made a party by reason of his beingwan@deen a director or officer of the Company,atrthe request of the Company, of any
other company of which the Company is a sharehadereditor and by which he is not entitled toifdemnified, except in relation to matters
as to which he shall be finally adjudged in suctioagc suit or proceeding to be liable for grossligemce or willful misconduct; in the event of
a settlement, indemnification shall be providedydnlconnection with such matters covered by thgesaent as to which the Company is
advised by its legal counsel that the person tméemnified did not commit such a breach of dutiye Toregoing right of indemnification shall
not exclude other rights to which he may be emtitle

Art. 17. Auditors. The supervision of the operations of the Compamnisusted to one or more auditors. The auditolisowielected by the
sole shareholder or, as the case may be, the gemeeting of shareholders by a simple majority ateg present or represented at the meeting
which will determine their number, for a period eateeding six years. They will hold office unkiktr successors are elected. They shall be
eligible for re-election, but they may be removédray time, with or without cause, by a resolutidrthe sole shareholder or, as the case may
be, by a resolution adopted by a simple majorityaiés present or represented at the meeting.




Chapter IV. Meetings of shareholders

Art. 18. Annual general meeting.The annual general meeting will be held at thestegéd office of the Company or at such other péscma
be specified in the notice convening the meetingherthird Wednesday of the month of May of eaciryat 10 a.m.

If such day is a public holiday, the meeting wil beld on the next following business day.

Art. 19. Other general meetings of shareholderdf the Company is composed of one sole sharehalderatter exercises the powers grantec
by the law to the general meeting of shareholdarsuch case, the decisions of the sole sharehateerecorded in minutes.

The Director or, as the case may be, the Boardrecibrs may convene other general meetings. Suatings must be convened if
shareholders representing at least one tenth ddimepany’s capital so require in writing with adlication of the agenda of the up coming
meeting. If the general meeting is not held withime month of the scheduled date, it may be convbpeth agent designated by the judge
presiding the Tribunal d’Arrondissement dealingnndbmmercial matters and hearing interim reliefterat upon the request of one or more
shareholders representing the 10% (ten percem3tibid.

General meetings of shareholders, including theialhgeneral meeting, may be held abroad if, indikeretion of the Director or, as the case
may be, the Board of Directors, circumstances afdanajeure so require.

Art. 20. Powers of the meeting of shareholderg\ny regularly constituted general meeting of shateérs of the Company represents the
entire body of shareholders.

Subject to all the other powers reserved to theddar or, as the case may be, the Board of Direchyrthe Law or the Articles, the general
meeting of shareholders has the broadest poweajat, carry out or ratify any act relating to tperations of the Company.

Art. 21. Procedure, Vote.The sole shareholder or, as the case may be, trezajeneeting of shareholders will meet upon calihe Director
or, as the case may be, by the Board of Directoteauditor(s) made in compliance with Luxembdaxg and the present Articles.

The notice sent to the shareholders in accordaitbetle Law will specify the time and place of tineeting as well as the agenda and the
nature of the business to be transacted.

Shareholders representing at least one tenth d@oepany’s share capital may request in writing #uitional items be included on the
agenda of any general meeting. Such request shallitiressed to the registered office of the Compgimegistered letter at least five days
before the date on which the general meeting sledtlield.

If all the shareholders are present or represeattadyeneral meeting of shareholders and if thete $hat they have been informed of the ag
of the meeting, the meeting may be held withoutrqniotice.




A shareholder may act at any meeting of shareh®lojgappointing in writing whether in original, Eacsimile or e-mail to which an electronic
signature (valid under Luxembourg law) is affixexdhés proxy another person who need not be a sbialeh

The Director or, as the case may be, the Boardrecbrs may determine all other conditions thaste fulfilled in order to take part in a
general meeting of shareholders.

Except as otherwise required by the Law or by tlesent Articles, all other resolutions will be tak®y a simple majority of votes irrespective
of the number of shares present or representée améeting.

Any resolution whose purpose is to amend the pteseities or whose adoption is subject by virtdahese Articles or, as the case may be
Law to the quorum and majority rules set for theeadment of the Articles will be taken by two thefishareholders representing at least half
of the subscribed share capital of the Company.

One or several shareholders may participate inetimgeby means of a conference call, by videocamieg or by any similar means of
communication thus enabling several persons ppéticig therein to simultaneously communicate wébheother. Such participation shall be
deemed equivalent to a physical presence at théngee

One vote is attached to each share.

Copies or extracts of the minutes of the resolstipassed by sole shareholder or, as the case mhy e general meeting of shareholders
shall be certified by the sole Director or, as¢hee may be, by the Chairman of the Board of Ddrsar by any two Directors.

Chapter V. Financial year, Distribution of profits

Art. 22. Financial year. The Company’s financial year begins on the first dbthe month of January and ends on the lasofilye month of
December every year.

Art. 23. Adoption of financial statements.At the end of each financial year, the accountsckrged, the Director or, as the case may be, the
Board of Directors, draw up an inventory of assetds liabilities, the balance sheet and the proifit @ss account, in accordance with the Law.

The balance sheet and the profit and loss accoargudbmitted to the sole shareholder or, as the ey be, the general meeting of
shareholders for approval.

Art. 24. Appropriation of profits. From the annual net profits of the Company, fivecpat (5%) shall be allocated to the reserve regiy
the Law. That allocation will cease to be requiasdsoon and as long as such reserve amounts perteent (10%) of the subscribed share
capital of the Company.

Upon recommendation of the sole Director, or axds® may be, the Board of Directors, the solectimdder or, as the case may be, the ge
meeting of shareholders shall determine how theaneder of the annual net profits will be disposédnay decide to allocate the whole or part
of the remainder to a reserve or to a provisiopmeas to carry it




forward to the next following financial year ordestribute it to the shareholder(s) as dividend.

Subject to the conditions fixed by the Law, theesDIrector, or as the case may be, the Board afdiors may pay out an advance payment or
dividends. The sole director or the Board of Dicestfixes the amount and the date of payment ofsaai advance payment.

Dividends may also be paid out of unappropriatedongfit brought forward from prior financial years

Subject to the prior approval or ratifications by following decision of the sole shareholder srihee case may be, of the general meeting of
shareholders, the Director or, as the case mathed3oard of Directors may pay out interim dividerh the basis of the statement of account
prepared by the Director or, as the case may beBtlard of Directors, showing sufficient funds adalie for distribution, provided that the
amount to be distributed does not exceed profdbaed since the end of the financial year incrddseprofits carried forward and distributable
reserves and decreased by losses carried forwdrdransums to be allocated to the reserves reghirdde Law or by the Articles. The
Director or, as the case may be, the Board of Boredixes the amount and the date of payment pfsach interim dividends.

Chapter VI. Dissolution, Liquidation of the company
Art. 25. Dissolution, Liquidation. Upon the affirmative proposal of the Sole Directmras the case may be, the Board of Directors, the
Company may be dissolved by a decision of the Slideeholder or, as the case may be, of the gemeeting of shareholders voting with the
same quorum and majority as for the amendmentesitiArticles, unless otherwise provided by the Law.
Should the Company be dissolved, the liquidatiolhlve carried out by one or more liquidators (whaynbe physical persons or legal entities)
appointed by the sole shareholder or by the genegating of shareholders, as the case may be, whilctietermine their powers and their
compensation.

After payment of all the debts of and charges agaive Company and of the expenses of liquidatlwnet assets shall be distributed equally
to the shareholders pro rata to the number oftthees held by them.

Chapter VII. Applicable law

Art. 26. Applicable law. All matters not governed by these Articles shalbe&rmined in accordance with the applicable Luxeung Law.”




Exhibit 21.1
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following are subsidiaries of Altisource PoliticGolutions S.A. as of December 31, 2013 anduhedictions in which they are
organized.

Jurisdiction of

incorporation
Name or organization
Altisource Solutions S.ar. Luxembourg
Altisource Asia Holdings, Ltd. Mauritius
Altisource Business Solutions Private Limil India
Altisource Portfolio Solutions, In Delaware
Altisource Fulfillment Operations, In Delaware
REALHome Services and Solutions, |i Florida
Altisource Solutions, Inc Delaware
Altisource US Data, Inc Delaware
Springhouse, LL( Missouri
Western Progressiv— Nevada, Inc Delaware
Premium Title Services, In Florida
Premium Title Agency, Inc Delaware
Western Progressiv— Arizona, Inc. Delaware
Premium Title of California, Inc California
PTS— Texas Title, Inc Delaware
Nationwide Credit, Inc Georgia
Altisource Online Auction, Inc Delaware
Power Default Services, In Delaware
Beltline Road Insurance Agency, Ir Texas
Hubzu USA, Inc Delaware
Hubzu Notes, LLC Delaware
Portfolio Management Outsourcing Solutions, L Florida
Western Progressive Trustee, L Delaware
Altisource Outsourcing Solutions S.R.L. (99.99%puafstanding stock Uruguay
Altisource Holdings, LLC Delaware
Altisource Outsourcing Solutions S.R.L. (0.01% afstanding stock Uruguay
Altisource Single Family, Inc Delaware
Altisource Solutions B.V Netherland:
Altisource Business Solutions, Ir Philippines
The Mortgage Partnership of America, L.L Missouri
Equator, LLC California
Altisource Real Estate Web Portal S.a Luxembourg
Altisource Consumer Analytics S.a | Luxembourg
Altisource Mortgage Solutions S.a | Luxembourg
Altisource Spend Management S.a Luxembourg




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement No. 333-161175 on Form S-8ufreports dated February 13, 2014,
relating to the consolidated financial statemenmt&ltsource Portfolio Solutions S.A. and subsidkar (the “Company”)which report express:
an unqualified opinion on the consolidated finahsiatements and includes an explanatory paragedpted to the significant transactions v
Ocwen Financial Corporation, a related party), tnedeffectiveness of the Company’s internal corakar financial reporting appearing in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for tlearyended December 31, 2013.

/s/ Deloitte and Touche LL

Atlanta, Georgit
February 13, 201




Exhibit 31.1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION

I, William B. Shepro, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ktleryear ended December 31, 2013 of Altisourcédtior Solutions S.A.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (a:
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coueydhis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directors

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reporting.

February 13, 2014 By: /s/ William B. Shepr
William B. Sheprc
Director and Chief Executive Offict
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION

I, Michelle D. Esterman, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ktleryear ended December 31, 2013 of Altisourcédtior Solutions S.A.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (a:
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coueydhis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directors

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reporting.

February 13, 2014 By: /s/ Michelle D. Esterma
Michelle D. Estermai
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer an
Principal Accounting Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban&3xley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10{KAdisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. (the “Compdhyor the year ended December 31,
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, WitlidB. Shepro, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®®0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaSas-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my

knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctiadiand results of operations of
the Company.

Date: February 13, 2014 By: /s/ William B. Sheprc
William B. Sheprc
Director and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban&3xley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10{KAdisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. (the “Compdhyor the year ended
December 31, 2013 as filed with the SecuritiesExcthange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pariMichelle D. Esterman, Chief

Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuadédstion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctiadiand results of operations of
the Company.

Date: February 13, 2014 By: /s/ Michelle D. Esterma
Michelle D. Estermay
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer an
Principal Accounting Officer




